SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

FORM 10-K/A

Annual report pursuant to section 13 and 15(d) [amend]

Filing Date: **2013-01-10** | Period of Report: **2011-12-31** SEC Accession No. 0001354488-13-000089

(HTML Version on secdatabase.com)

FILER

FUSION TELECOMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL INC

CIK:1071411| IRS No.: 582342021 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231 Type: 10-K/A | Act: 34 | File No.: 001-32421 | Film No.: 13521887

SIC: 4813 Telephone communications (no radiotelephone)

Mailing Address 420 LEXINGTON AVENUE SUITE 1718 NEW YORK NY 10170 Business Address 420 LEXINGTON AVENUE SUITE 1718 NEW YORK NY 10170 (212) 201-2400

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K/A

(Mark One)

`	
\square	ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
	For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011
□ 1934	TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ACT OF
	For the transition period from to
	Commission File Number <u>001-32421</u>
	FUSION TELECOMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
	(Exact name of registrant as specified in charter)
	Delaware 58-2342021
(Sta	tte or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or (IRS Employer Identification No.) Organization)
	420 Lexington Avenue, Suite 1718, New York, New York 10170 (Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
	(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)
	Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
	Title of each className of each exchange on which registeredNONENONE
	Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
	<u>Title of each class</u> Common Stock, par value \$0.01 per share
Indic	ate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes 🗆 No 🗹
Indic	ate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes 🗆 No 🗹
Exch	ate by a check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities ange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), 2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \square No \square
Intera	ate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every active Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the eding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes \square No \square
	ate by a check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not ontained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of

this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

☑

Indicate by check mark whether the regire reporting company. See the definitions of 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.		•		
Large accelerated filler Non-accelerated filler (do not check if a smaller reporting company)		Accelerated filer Smaller reporting company		
Indicate by check mark whether the regi	istrant is a	shell company (as defined in Rule 12	2b-2 of the Exchange Act). Y	es □ No ☑
The aggregate market value of the votin common stock reported by the OTC Bul	_	•		O i
Indicate the number of shares outstanding common stock are issued and outstanding	_	~	est practicable date: 163,12	1,154 shares of
j	DOCUME	ENTS INCORPORATED BY REF	ERENCE	
		None		

Table of Contents

		PAGE
PART I		3
Item 1.	Business.	3
Item 1A.	Risk Factors.	14
Item 1B.	Unresolved Staff Comments.	22
Item 2.	Properties.	22
Item 3.	Legal Proceedings.	23
Item 4.	Mine Saftey Disclosures.	23
PART II		24
Item 5.	Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.	24
Item 6.	Selected Financial Data.	25
Item 7.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.	25
Item 7A.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.	33
Item 8.	Financial Statements	34
Item 9.	Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure	34
Item 9A.	Controls and Procedures	34
Item 9B.	Other Information	35
PART II	I	36
Item 10.	Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance	36
Item 11.	Executive Compensation.	41
Item 12.	Security Ownership Of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters	45
Item 13.	Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence	47
Item 14.	Principal Accounting Fees and Services	48
PART IV		50
Item 15.	Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.	50
SIGNAT	URES	53
INDEX T	TO EXHIBITS	54

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K EXPLANATORY PARAGRAPH

Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc. (the "Company") is filing this Amendment No. 1 to its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, which was originally filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 2012 (the "Original Filing"), for the purpose of: (i) providing the name and the conformed signature of Rothstein Kass to their Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm in compliance with Rule 2-02(a) of Regulation S-X; and (ii) to clarify certain disclosure in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements regarding claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, this Amendment No. 1 contains no changes to the Original Filing.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

Overview

Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc. ("we", "Fusion" or "the Company") is a provider of Internet Protocol ("IP") based digital voice and data communications services to corporations and carriers worldwide. Our strategy is to continue to grow our existing carrier business segment while accelerating the growth of our corporate services business segment, to ensure that an increasing portion of our total revenues are derived from the higher margin and more stable corporate services business segment.

Our services include local, long distance, and international Voice over Internet Protocol ("VoIP") services; broadband Internet access; private line circuits; audio and web conference calling; fax services; and a variety of other enhanced communications services and features. The majority of our services utilize state-of-the-art VoIP technology, as opposed to traditional circuit-switched technology. This choice of technology allows us to efficiently deliver voice, data and Internet access services over a single facility, while providing service quality and reliability comparable to that of the historical circuit-switched service providers.

Our carrier services are sold to other communications service providers throughout the world, including U.S.-based carriers wishing to terminate transmission of telephone services to international destinations and foreign carriers wishing to terminate to the U.S. and throughout the world. We also purchase domestic and international termination services from many of our carrier customers. We currently have over 270 carrier customers and vendors.

In addition to our strong position in the carrier market, we believe that Fusion is well positioned to capitalize on the continuing rapid growth of the corporate VoIP market. Our corporate services are sold to small, medium, and large businesses located within the United States. These predominantly IP-based services are designed to meet the communications needs of growing businesses, while maximizing the price-performance ratio. We currently serve corporate users in 30 states.

We believe that the global networking infrastructure available through our carrier operations, coupled with our ability to leverage our domestic and international carrier relationships, provides us with a significant competitive advantage in the corporate market segment. We also believe that the extensive experience of our sales, operations, and management personnel provides the skills necessary to execute our strategy and grow this important segment of the Company's business.

Recent Developments

On January 30, 2012, we entered into purchase agreements to acquire the business currently operated by Network Billing Systems, LLC and Interconnect Systems Group II LLC (collectively, "NBS"). NBS currently provides voice (including VoIP) and data telecommunications services, as well as a wide variety of managed and cloud-based telecommunications services, to small and medium sized companies. For the year ended December 31, 2011, NBS had unaudited revenues of approximately \$26.8 million and unaudited net income of approximately \$3.0 million. NBS has approximately 5,000 customers, and we expect to realize considerable synergies after the transaction is consummated.

The aggregate purchase price for the NBS acquisition transaction is \$20 million, consisting of \$17.75 million in cash, \$1.0 million to be evidenced by a 24-month promissory note payable to the sellers and \$1.25 million in shares of restricted common stock of the Company. Consummation of the transactions contemplated by the purchase agreements is subject to the satisfaction of certain

conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, satisfactory completion of our due diligence on the business being acquired, completion of an audit of the financial books and records of NBS, receipt of certain regulatory approvals, our receipt of sufficient funding to pay the cash portion of the purchase price and provide for reasonable post-acquisition working capital requirements, negotiation and execution of mutually acceptable executive employment and non-compete agreements with Jon Kaufman, the principal operating officer of NBS, and other customary conditions of closing. While the purchase agreements contemplate that closing of the acquisition of NBS would take place during the second quarter of 2012, the conditions precedent to closing are such that there can be no assurance that the acquisition will be completed in that time or at all.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

On January 24, 2012, we announced our entering into an exclusive group purchasing agreement for cloud services and communications solutions with the group purchasing organizations ("GPOs") Essensa and Innovatix, LLC., subsidiaries of GNYHA Ventures, Inc.

In connection with this agreement, Fusion and the GPOs will offer the GPO members in healthcare and other vertical markets a full range of cloud services, including cloud computing, disaster recovery, storage and security. Under this agreement, we may also provide GPO members with hosted voice and data solutions that include a full complement of advanced service features, unified communications and presence, Internet and other broadband data services, as well as a comprehensive portfolio of leading edge equipment and software solutions designed to meet the specific needs of the healthcare industry.

Services

Historically, we have derived the majority of our revenues from the carrier business segment. These revenues have come primarily from U.S.-based carriers requiring voice connectivity to emerging markets. As we continue to execute our strategy for this segment, we anticipate serving a larger number of non-U.S.-based carrier customers, who will require voice connectivity to the U.S. and to other foreign locations.

We are aggressively seeking to expand our higher margin corporate services business by continuing to market to small, medium, and large business customers. Our corporate services are marketed through both direct sales and partner sales distribution channels. The direct sales organization generally targets medium to larger enterprise customers, while the partner sales organization generally targets smaller to medium size businesses.

Corporate Services

Fusion offers a full suite of advanced corporate communications solutions, designed to provide significant benefits to small, medium and large businesses with single or multiple locations worldwide. Our solutions provide all required hardware as well as the services themselves, thus providing the customer with everything needed to implement a complete communications service solution.

Our corporate services are designed to minimize upfront capital costs, increase the scalability and flexibility of the customer's communications network, provide compelling features when compared to traditional analog telephone service, offer high digital quality and reduce the overall cost of communications. On average, we believe that our corporate services save the customer approximately 20% when compared to similar services offered by that customer's previous service provider. Fusion's IP-based corporate solutions also prioritize voice traffic over data traffic to ensure that a customer always has adequate Internet bandwidth to experience premium voice quality.

Our growing suite of corporate services includes:

Hosted IP-PBX – Our Hosted IP-PBX service allows a customer to completely replace the legacy office telephone system it owns or leases with a state-of-the-art digital telephone system that is provided by us on a "hosted" basis. Our feature-rich, hosted solution eliminates the need to own and operate a costly, complex telephone system, often reducing upfront capital costs by 50% or more, and eliminates the cost of calls between customer locations. This service is ideal for companies with multiple offices or a highly mobile workforce, and for companies that are opening a new office or need to expand or replace existing telephone systems. Full integration with Microsoft Outlook® provides a simple method to place calls by clicking on an Outlook® contact, while voice mails are delivered as e-mails with an attached voice message that can be played on virtually any computer or handheld wireless device. All corporate service options can be configured by the user in real time using a personal user portal, virtually eliminating the costs associated with the labor-intensive reconfiguration of legacy telephone systems.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

IP Connect – Our IP Connect service allows a customer to retain and use its existing legacy telephone system, while relying on Fusion's IP-based network to provide its local network access and domestic and international long distance service. IP Connect customers save on their local, long distance, and international call charges, and gain the many advantages of Internet telephony. They also eliminate the cost of interoffice calling, and combine their voice and data traffic onto a single broadband access facility for further cost savings – all without having to abandon their existing technology investment.

IP Termination – IP Termination service allows a customer to retain and use its existing legacy telephone systems, as well as its existing local network access facilities, while leveraging Fusion's global network to obtain high quality, low cost domestic and international long distance service. This is a service that would typically be used by major corporations with significant domestic and/or international calling.

Internet Access – Fusion offers reliable, secure and cost-effective broadband Internet access to all users. Fiber optics, broadband over copper and other technologies allow us to provide Internet access at bandwidth levels ranging from T-1 (1.5 Mbps) to DS-3 (45 Mbps) and higher. Utilizing our ability to route both voice and data over the same facility while using Quality of Service routers designed to always provide adequate bandwidth for the highest quality voice traffic, we seek to maximize the efficiency of the Internet access service purchased. Our strong relationships with carriers throughout the world also allow us to provide Internet access on a global basis.

Conferencing Service – Fusion's conferencing service offers business customers a versatile online meeting experience. The simple-to-use, reservation-less service combines traditional audio conferencing with web access to let corporations communicate at any time with customers, suppliers, and partners anywhere. The service integrates with Microsoft Outlook®, offers audio recording capability, and even allows the user to publish recorded content as a podcast for further distribution.

Fusion Fax – Fusion's desktop fax solution allows customers to electronically send, receive, store, and print faxes using their existing email and Internet infrastructure. This advanced fax solution requires no application-specific hardware or software, and employs the latest in security capabilities. Additionally, each user account can be personally controlled through a secure web interface that controls user preferences, cover sheet design and delivery reporting options.

Private Line Networks – Leveraging our own network, as well as our relationships with carriers throughout the world, we offer corporate users a full range of private line services between both domestic and international locations. Services can be engineered to both U.S. (T-1) and international (E-1) standards, are available at all bandwidth levels and can be provisioned using traditional fiber optic or satellite facilities as well as packet-based technologies. Services include traditional point-to-point networks, as well as Multi-Protocol Label Switching (MPLS) networks and Virtual Private Networks.

Co-Location Services – Fusion offers its corporate customers the opportunity to locate their communications or data processing equipment in its secure, co-location facility. Our facility offers full environmental controls, battery and generator back-up power (AC and DC), 24x7 key-card access, round-the-clock security and alarm monitoring and a wide range of technical support services that can be provided by our on-site technical support personnel.

We combine services as necessary to create the precise communications package required by each customer. For example, we may use IP Connect service at a customer's headquarters location that already has a significant investment in telecommunications hardware, yet utilize a Hosted IP-PBX solution at a new branch office location being established. We believe that our ability to uniquely tailor services to each customer's specific requirements is a major part of what differentiates us from the competition.

Our corporate services generally offer several different calling packages, designed to meet the needs of different users. Base level plans offer a nominal monthly recurring charge ("MRC") for the basic service package. Additional services, such as local, long distance or international calling, are charged at per minute rates. Other packages with a higher MRC may include a specific number of minutes of local or long distance calling or even unlimited local or long distance calling. Optional, value-added features for our basic services are available for an incremental MRC appropriate for the service. Internet access services and/or private line services are charged on the basis of a fixed MRC for the service provided, and are generally based on the bandwidth utilized and the endpoints of the circuit.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
We have contracts with all of our corporate customers. The Company's contracts range from one to three years, and all contracts have early cancellation penalties. The majority of our contracts are for a three-year term, and the current average term of all contracts combined is approximately 2.6 years.

Carrier Services

Our carrier services include voice termination through both VoIP and traditional Time Division Multiplexing ("TDM") or "circuitswitched" technology. This wholesale termination traffic consists of minutes of domestic and international long distance usage that must be terminated to telephone numbers in the intended destination countries. The majority of this traffic is international traffic, and we terminate carrier voice traffic to all countries worldwide using three distinct methods of termination:

Direct Termination - Traffic routed via direct termination will travel directly from Fusion's international gateway switch to the facilities of an interconnecting carrier in the destination country. We enter into "interconnection agreements" with such carriers, typically the dominant or secondary carrier in the applicable market. The Company's interconnection with the distant carrier is usually via VoIP, but may in some cases utilize leased fiber optic or satellite transmission facilities. Our direct termination agreements allow us to terminate voice traffic into that country and, in most cases, receive return traffic from that country. The interconnection agreement provides for a "direct" relationship between Fusion and the interconnecting carrier and provides the maximum level of control over route quality. capacity, and cost.

Indirect Termination – Traffic routed via indirect termination will also travel from Fusion's international gateway switch to the facilities of a carrier in the destination country. However, when utilizing indirect termination, we are sharing the interconnection arrangement and facilities with another carrier. The Company has dedicated capacity on the route and significant control over quality and capacity, but does not bear the sole cost burden of the route or the sole responsibility of maximizing utilization of the route.

Transit Termination – Traffic routed via transit termination will travel from Fusion's international gateway switch via another carrier's switch and their international routes to the destination country. We often use multiple transit termination routes in order to obtain the best possible levels of quality and capacity for the termination of our carrier customers' voice traffic.

All voice termination services utilize our proprietary least cost routing ("LCR") technology and systems, to insure termination to the final destination at the lowest possible cost, thus maximizing our profit on that traffic. Using LCR technology, we will often "blend" routes to provide our customers with the optimal mix of price and quality, or to meet unique customer requirements for the termination of voice traffic to specific countries.

We also utilize the termination capacity obtained through our interconnection agreements and other methods of termination to carry our corporate customers' international traffic. As we continue to execute our strategy for the growth of our corporate business segment, we expect to use an increasing percentage of our termination capacity to carry our higher margin corporate traffic.

We procure required Internet access and private line circuits from our global network of carriers. We also leverage our relationship with these carriers in order to provide the high quality, low cost Internet access and private line services necessary to meet the international communications requirements of our corporate customers.

In addition to our carrier voice termination services, we provide co-location services to other communications service providers, enabling them to co-locate their equipment within our switching facility or lease a portion of our equipment located at that site. We also provide a variety of equipment maintenance services and other technical services to our carrier co-location customers. In addition, we frequently provide voice termination services to the carriers that co-locate with us.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

All carrier voice termination services are priced on a per minute basis, based upon the destination called, the time of day, and the customer's overall traffic volume. We have reciprocal agreements with many of our customers, and the pricing in those agreements may also reflect the pricing provided to us for our terminating traffic. Prices for Internet access or private line service provided to carriers, as well as pricing for co-location services, are based on a fixed MRC for the services provided.

We have contracts with all of our carrier customers. Our contracts with carriers typically have a one-year renewable term, with no minimum traffic volume per month, and allow the customer to terminate without penalty.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, our five largest customers represented the following percentages of our consolidated revenue: Qwest Communications 18.1%; MCI Communications d/b/a Verizon 8.3%; Vonage Networks, LLC 6.8%; T-Systems 6.7%; and ILC Canada, Inc. 6.6%.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, our five largest customers represented the following percentages of our consolidated revenue: Qwest Communications 18.8%; MCI Communications d/b/a Verizon 13.8%; AT&T 9.2%; T-Systems 6.8%; and VCG Telecom 5.2%.

Strategy

Our strategy is to continue to grow our existing carrier business segment while accelerating the growth of our corporate services business segment, to ensure that an increasing portion of our total revenues are derived from the higher margin and more stable corporate business segment.

Corporate Services Segment Strategy

In our corporate services segment, we are focusing on generating the rapid growth necessary to make the revenues and margin from this segment a more significant portion of our total revenues and margin. Specifically, we are focusing on the following strategies:

- Expand the Direct Sales Effort We intend to continue to expand the direct sales effort that we launched in 2009 by adding new sales personnel in the primary markets we serve. We currently have direct sales personnel based in our New York headquarters and our Fort Lauderdale, Florida office.
 - *Focus on Direct Sales to Large Enterprises* In the current economy, large enterprises are particularly focused on reducing costs wherever possible. This provides us with an excellent entry to some very large potential customers that previously may
- have been difficult to approach. We are leveraging this unique opportunity, as well the extensive contacts of our officers and directors, to meet with such large enterprise customers and drive the sale of our high-volume international call termination services, Internet access services and private line networking services.
 - *Increase the Number of Partners* We continue to seek new sales "partners" to assist in the indirect sale of our services to small and medium businesses, and to target customers in markets where we do not currently have a direct sales presence. In
- particular, we are looking to attract partners that have an existing base of voice and/or data customers, partners with a significant direct sales effort and/or a network of sub-agents that can sell our products and services and partners looking to add VoIP services to their existing product portfolio.
- Increase Partner Productivity We are working to increase the average productivity of our sales partners with additional training on our products and services, targeted promotions and closer management and support. We are also seeking to add new partners that have more direct control over the sale of our services, including hospitality management companies, franchise companies, and other similar entities.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Increase Average Revenue per Account – We are seeking to increase the average revenue per account for both new and existing customers. We are focusing on the sale of add-on or enhanced services, including auto-attendant service, call center features, audio and web conferencing and fax services. We are also working to increase the percentage of customers that order their broadband Internet access connections from us.

Introduce New Products and Services – We intend to continue to attract new customers and drive increased revenue through
 the introduction of new products and services, such as cloud computing, as well as innovative and competitive new service packages.

Carrier Segment Strategy

In growing our carrier segment, we intend to focus on both the revenue growth and the margin growth of this segment. In particular, we will focus on the following:

- **Expand Direct Termination Agreements** We will seek to expand the number of international carriers with whom we interconnect on a direct basis. As we continue to grow our base of carrier business, such direct interconnections are intended to provide the best possible levels of quality and capacity, with a view towards maximizing the revenue and margins attributable to the international traffic we terminate.
- Increase Business with Existing Carrier Customers We will seek to strengthen our relationships with existing major customers, and to maximize the traffic received from and sent to them. We believe that expanding existing relationships is the best way to quickly increase revenue, and that expanding volume generally leads to more attractive pricing and margins.
- Increase Sales to Non-Traditional Carriers We will seek to expand our sales to non-traditional carriers, including cable television providers, Internet search engine companies, and large IP telephone companies. We believe the revenue streams from such entities will be more predictable and will offer better margins than the revenues from traditional domestic and international carriers.
- Focus on Back-Office Automation We will continue to seek to automate functions that will allow us to reduce headcount and related costs, thereby improving margins and responding more quickly to the needs of our carrier customers. In this area, we anticipate continued improvements in areas such as routing, code management, traffic monitoring and alarms, capacity management, provisioning, circuit testing and billing.

Sales and Marketing

We market our IP-based services, as well as our broad range of other communications services, to carriers and corporations. Our day-to-day sales and marketing efforts employ direct sales and partner sales channels, as well as referrals and strategic relationships.

Direct Sales

Our carrier services are generally sold through direct sales channels. Our U.S.-based carrier sales and international business development personnel are responsible for selling to and buying from our carrier partners.

Our corporate services are also sold through direct sales channels. We currently have corporate sales personnel based at our New York headquarters and at our Ft. Lauderdale office.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Our direct sales personnel are experienced professionals who generally come to us with 10+ years of sales and communications experience. Ongoing training on our products and services, telecommunications technology and sales techniques are a part of each direct sales person's weekly routine.

Our direct sales personnel are compensated on a combination of base salary and incentive compensation, with the latter being based directly on revenue and margin generated. Each sales person has established monthly objectives, and is held directly accountable for the achievement of those objectives.

Partner Sales

Our corporate services are also sold through independent, third-party sales agents or "partners," who leverage their existing business relationships to sell our services. Our partners are compensated solely on a commission-based structure. We typically control the product, pricing, branding, technical support, billing and collections. Our partners include interconnect companies, data service companies, value added resellers, network and IT consultant, and LAN/WAN integrators, as well as companies dedicated to the sale of IP-based communications services. Many of these partners have multiple sales personnel working for them. In addition to local distribution and support, our partners occasionally assist in the installation of our services. As of December 31, 2011, we were represented by 105 partners located in 20 states.

Strategic Relationships

We enter into agreements with strategic partners that wish to market and distribute our products and services. In some cases, an agreement may also provide us the ability to market the strategic partner's products and services. The terms of these agreements differ by partner, but in general such agreements provide for the selling party to receive a commission based on sales volume or to participate in a revenue or profit sharing arrangement.

Marketing

We generally focus our marketing efforts on support of our direct and partner sales efforts. In particular, we focus on sales collateral, trade shows, and events for prospective customers. Our use of advertising is minimal.

Operations

We believe the manner in which we service customers after they have placed an order differentiates us from our competitors. We rely on our people and automated systems to ensure that provisioning, installation, training, billing and customer service provide the best possible experience for our customers.

The provisioning process turns a customer order into the necessary equipment and systems programming to properly deliver the specific services that were ordered. In the case of the Company's corporate services, this process consists of verifying all order information; conducting a site survey of the customer's location(s) and current equipment; building the proper customer profiles within our service platforms; ordering and shipping required telephones, routers, and other equipment; and setting up the necessary customer records in our billing system. For Internet access or private line circuits, provisioning may include engineering the circuit design and ordering required transmission facilities from the local telephone company or an interexchange carrier. In each case, we coordinate the efforts of our centralized provisioning organization and our provisioning systems to ensure that the process occurs in the minimum possible time, and that all components are tested and ready to meet the customer's scheduled installation date.

On the scheduled installation date, a Fusion installation technician (internal or contracted) is dispatched to the customer premises to complete the installation. Depending upon the actual service ordered, the technician may configure and install IP telephones, install a router or Internet access device, complete required cabling, install and test Internet service or install and test private lines. It is our objective to complete the installation on the scheduled date, and leave the customer satisfied that everything has been properly installed and is performing as expected.

We believe that training the customer to take full advantage of the features and functionality of our corporate VoIP services is a critical component of the service delivery process. Immediately after installation we complete an in-depth training session with the customer, either in person or via web conferencing, during which we train the customer's employees on the use of their new services and features

	9		

and train the customer's service administrator on the technical details required for the ongoing administration of the service. We also

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
Customer invoices for our corporate services are delivered electronically via email on a monthly basis. We do not send paper invoices. Invoices include full call detail, as well as a breakdown of charges, taxes and other fees. Monthly service charges are billed in advance, and usage-based charges are billed in arrears. Our use of package plans, including local and/or long distance calling, increases the percentage of total charges billed in advance as an MRC, thus simplifying billing for us and the customer and minimizing subsequent customer service issues. Invoices for our carrier customers may be rendered on a weekly, semi-monthly, or monthly basis, and are also delivered electronically. Upon request, we will also provide carriers with an electronic file of their call detail records ("CDR"s) for analysis or invoice audit purposes.

Customer service representatives are available to our customers on a 24 x 7 basis. Corporate customers will initially contact our retail customer service center, where billing questions and most general service questions are quickly answered. Where technical questions or service related issues require further assistance, the customer will be transferred to the Company's network operations center ("NOC") for the necessary technical support. The NOC continuously tracks real-time performance of the Company's network, and has full access to the necessary data, systems, tools, and technical personnel required to solve any customer or network issues.

The Network

Our products and services are delivered over an advanced. IP-based communications network that leverages the latest technology and allows for the rapid introduction of new features and applications. The Company's service platforms are built on a distributed architecture that enables us to extend our products and services globally, delivering our voice and data services to customers worldwide. The Company's NOC is manned 24 hours per day 7 days per week and employs state-of-the-art monitoring and alert systems that ensure quality of service and a proactive response to any potential customer service issues. Automated back-office and support systems accelerate service provisioning and allow customers to add or change services efficiently.

Our carrier-class network employs a digitized, packet-switched service platform capable of interfacing with all Internet protocols, as well as with TDM or circuit-switched systems, and provides the flexibility necessary to seamlessly transport our customers' voice and data traffic throughout the world. Multi-peered Internet access is delivered through dedicated and redundant high-speed interconnections to all major Internet backbones. Advanced route optimization technology delivers enhanced reliability and performance by routing around network hotspots and avoiding downtime, packet loss and latency.

Key network elements include the Company's Veraz ControlSwitch and associated media gateways; BroadSoft retail services platform; Cisco media gateways, routers, and switches; and Nextone session border controllers. These redundant network elements are interconnected via a dedicated, fiber-based gigabit Ethernet backbone. Most network elements are based on software applications that execute entirely on off-the-shelf servers. Built for easy and rapid scalability, as well as security and reliability, Fusion's service platforms minimize the capital expenditures associated with legacy switching infrastructures, allow for shorter installation intervals and faster customer provisioning and expedite the deployment of new and innovative products and services.

Our centralized network elements are housed in our own carrier-grade switching facility, located in a secure carrier building that houses many other carriers and is interconnected to all major carrier buildings. This location allows for cost-effective and rapid interconnection and capacity expansion to carrier customers and vendors, as well as major enterprise customers. We believe our choices of location and equipment offer an extensible platform to support our envisioned growth and allow us to quickly embrace emerging technologies as they become available.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Our network architecture is highly distributable and allows us to deliver our carrier and corporate services to every part of the world quickly and reliably. We are able to locate remote network gateways in decentralized locations throughout the world, yet control the services they deliver from our centralized facility. As a result, we believe we can capitalize on market opportunities that would previously have been uneconomical due to the expense of deployment and the associated marketplace risks. The Company's direct interconnections with over 270 global carriers are managed through sophisticated routing systems that allow us to fully monitor performance and dynamically route customer traffic based on unique parameters that ensure the highest quality at the lowest cost. Unlike many retail service providers that rely on only a few carriers to deliver their customers' traffic, Fusion can leverage the strength and depth of its carrier business to provide the greatest possible range of network and traffic termination options for its corporate customers.

Competition

The communications industry is highly competitive and significantly affected by regulatory changes, technology evolution, marketing strategies and pricing decisions of the larger industry participants. In addition, companies offering Internet, voice and data communications services are, in some circumstances, consolidating. Service providers generally compete on the basis of price, customer service, product quality, brand recognition and breadth of services offered. Additionally, carriers may compete on the basis of technology. Recently, the ability to provide VoIP services has been a key differentiator. As technology evolves and legacy systems become an encumbrance, we expect carriers to compete on the basis of technological agility and their ability to rapidly deliver new services.

Within our carrier services segment, we compete with many of the largest domestic communications carriers, including AT&T, Verizon, Qwest/Century Link and Global Crossing/Level 3. Internationally, we compete with major entities such as British Telecom, Telstra, Tata Communications, Cable & Wireless, Telecom Italia and KDDI. We also compete with smaller, internationally focused carriers, including Primus, iBasis, Phonetime, Compass Global and BTS.

Within our corporate services segment, we compete with companies such as Vonage, CBeyond, 8x8, and Skype. However, as Vonage and Skype focus primarily on consumers and smaller business customers, we do not currently see them as major competitors. As we grow our presence in the corporate marketplace, we see our primary competitors as the business-focused VoIP service providers, such as CBeyond and 8x8; service providers employing traditional technologies to sell into the enterprise marketplace, including Windstream and XO Communications; cable television companies offering VoIP services, like Cox Communications, Comcast and Cablevision; and the incumbent local telephone companies like AT&T, Verizon, and Qwest/Century Link. We also believe that in the future, given relatively low barriers to entry, other companies may elect to compete in the VoIP services arena. While we believe the Company's technology, back office systems, distribution relationships and marketing skills provide us with a competitive advantage, many of our existing competitors have significantly greater resources and more widely recognized brand names.

Government Regulation

In the United States, our services are generally subject to varying degrees of federal, state and local regulation, including regulation by the Federal Communications Commission (the "FCC") and various state public utility commissions or public service commissions. We may also be subject to similar regulation by foreign governments and their telecommunications/regulatory agencies. While these regulatory agencies grant us the authority to operate our business, they typically exercise minimal control over our services and pricing. However, they do require the filing of various reports, compliance with public safety and consumer protection standards and the payment of certain regulatory fees and assessments.

We cannot provide assurance that the U.S. and foreign regulatory agencies exercising jurisdiction over us will grant us the required authority to operate, will allow us to maintain existing authority so we can continue to operate or will refrain from taking action against us if we are found to have provided services without obtaining the necessary authority. Similarly, if our pricing and/or terms or conditions of service are not properly filed or updated with the applicable agencies, or if we are otherwise not fully compliant with the rules of the various regulatory agencies, regulators or other third parties could challenge our actions and we could be subject to forfeiture of our authority to provide service, or to penalties, fines, fees or other costs. We have been delinquent in certain filing and reporting obligations in the past including, but not limited to, filings with the FCC and Universal Service Fund ("USF") reports and payments. We are currently working with various federal and state regulatory agencies to complete any outstanding filings.

As an international carrier, we are subject to FCC regulation under the Communications Act. We have	have applied for and received the
necessary authority under Section 214 of the Communications Act to operate as an international ca	rrier. Generally, the Company's
international traffic is subject to minimal regulation by state and local jurisdictions.	

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

The regulatory requirements associated with operating as a VoIP service provider are evolving, and have historically been less clear. For example, the VoIP Regulatory Freedom Act of 2004 exempted VoIP service from state taxes and regulations and defined VoIP services as "lightly regulated information services." However, the bill reserved the ability for states to require VoIP service providers to provide 911 services, to require them to contribute to state universal service programs, and to require them to pay intrastate access charges to other telecom providers.

In April 2004 the FCC rendered a decision on an AT&T Petition for Declaratory Ruling. It determined that where 1+ calls were made from regular telephones, converted into an IP format, transported over the AT&T Internet backbone and then converted back from their IP format and delivered to the called party through the local telephone network, the service was a "telecommunications service" for which terminating access charges were due to the local exchange carrier. The FCC limited its decision to the specific facts of the AT&T case where the type of service involved ordinary Customer Premise Equipment ("CPE") with no enhanced functionality, and the calls originated and terminated on the public switched telephone network ("PSTN").

Although the FCC determined the specific services provided by AT&T to be telecommunications services subject to interstate access charges rather than information services not subject to such charges, it made no determination regarding the regulatory status of phone-to-phone VoIP or its exposure to key public policy issues like USF, 911 Emergency Service, and the Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act ("CALEA"). The FCC further qualified the decision by stating that in no way is the FCC precluded from adopting a different approach when resolving the pending IP-Enabled Services rulemaking proceeding or the Inter-Carrier Compensation rulemaking proceeding.

In June 2005, the FCC imposed 911 emergency service obligations on providers of "interconnected VoIP services." The FCC also required interconnected VoIP service providers to register with the FCC, comply with CALEA, and to make USF contributions. The FCC defined interconnected VoIP service as service where the customer was connected to the local PSTN for both origination and termination of telephone calls. Under this definition, Fusion is a provider of interconnected VoIP service. We believe that our services are currently compliant with all applicable requirements of the FCC's order, and we have made and are making the required contributions to USF. However, should we at some time fail to meet certain requirements or fail to make required contributions, we could be subject to revocation of the Company's authority to operate or to fines or penalties.

Some states have tried to directly regulate VoIP services on an intrastate basis, but these attempts have, so far, not held up to court challenges. Many states are holding hearings to research and discuss the issues surrounding the regulation of VoIP services. Others are encouraging or even requesting VoIP service providers to subject themselves to public service commission jurisdiction and obtain certification as telephone companies. However, most have adopted a "wait and see" attitude. We are monitoring the actions of the various state regulatory agencies, and are endeavoring to ensure that we are in compliance with the applicable regulations, including any new regulations that may be passed. However, there can be no assurance that we are fully aware of all applicable requirements or that we will always be fully compliant. Should we fail at any time to be compliant with applicable state regulations, or to file required reports to state regulatory agencies, we could be subject to fines or other penalties.

While we believe VoIP services may be subject to additional federal, state, local, or international regulation in the future, it is uncertain when or how the effects of such regulation could affect us. If additional regulation does occur, it is possible that such regulatory agencies may impose surcharges, taxes or regulatory fees on VoIP service providers. The imposition of any such surcharges, taxes, or regulatory fees could increase the Company's costs and thus reduce or eliminate any competitive advantage that we might enjoy today.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Intellectual Property and Trademarks

We have several trademarks and service marks, all of which are of material importance to us.

The following trademark is registered with the United States Patent Trademark Office; however, it is not registered at the international level:

Fusion Telecom

Applications covering the following trademarks and service marks have been filed with the United States Patent Trademark Office and are currently in the registration process:

- Fusion
- Fusion Tel
- Fusion Telecommunications International
- Fusion Softphone
- Fusion (Logo)

The telecommunications and VoIP markets have recently been characterized by substantial litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property rights. Litigation, which could result in substantial cost to and diversion of our efforts, may be necessary to enforce trademarks and/or service marks issued to us or to determine the enforceability, scope and validity of the proprietary rights of others. Adverse determinations in any litigation or interference proceeding could subject us to costs related to changing names, a loss of established brand recognition, or the need to change the technologies utilized in our services.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had 53 full time employees. None of our employees are represented by a labor union or collective bargaining agreement. We consider our employee relations to be good, and, to date, we have not experienced a work stoppage.

All the Company's employees have signed confidentiality agreements, and it is our standard practice to require newly hired employees and, when appropriate, independent consultants, to execute confidentiality agreements. These agreements provide that the employee or consultant may not use or disclose confidential information except in the performance of his or her duties for the Company, or in other limited circumstances. The steps taken by us may not, however, be adequate to prevent the misappropriation of our proprietary rights or technology.

Revenues and Assets by Geographic Area

During the years ended December 31, 2011, and December 31, 2010, 81.5% and 86.7%, respectively, of the Company's revenue was derived from customers in the United States and 18.5% and 13.3%, respectively, was derived from international customers. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company did not have any long-lived assets that were located outside of the United States.

Available Information

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission ("SEC") and, in accordance with those requirements, file reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy the reports, proxy statements and other information that we file with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20549. Please call 1-800-SEC-0339 for information about the SEC's Public Reference Room. The SEC also maintains a web site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding registrants that file electronically with the SEC. The address of the SEC's web site is http://www.sec.gov. The Company's web site is http://www.fusiontel.com. The information on the Company's website is neither a part of nor incorporated by reference into this report.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

An investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks described below before you decide to invest in our securities. If any of the following events actually occur, our business could be seriously harmed. In such case, the value of your investment may decline and you may lose all or part of your investment. You should not invest in our securities unless you can afford the loss of your entire investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

We have a history of operating losses, working capital deficit, and stockholders' deficit. There can be no assurance that we will ever achieve profitability or have sufficient funds to execute our business strategy.

At December 31, 2011, we had nominal cash on hand, a working capital deficit of approximately \$12.0 million and a stockholders' deficit of approximately \$10.6 million. Although we have reduced our losses, we continue to sustain losses from operations and for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we incurred net losses applicable to common stockholders of approximately \$4.9 million and \$6.4 million, respectively. In addition, we did not generate positive cash flow from operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. We may not be able to generate profits in the future and may not be able to support our operations or otherwise establish a return on invested capital. In addition, we may not have sufficient funds to execute our business strategy, requiring us to raise funds from the capital markets or other sources, resulting in dilution of our common stock.

These losses, among other things, have had and will continue to have an adverse effect on our working capital, total assets and stockholders' deficit. In light of our recurring losses, accumulated deficit and cash flow difficulties, the report of our independent registered public accounting firm on our financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 contained an explanatory paragraph raising substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. Our financial statements do not include any adjustments that may be necessary in the event we are unable to continue as a going concern.

Our carrier services revenue performance is subject to both internal and external influences, which have negatively impacted our revenues and may continue to do so in the future.

During 2011 and 2010, the Company's carrier services revenue was negatively impacted not only by seasonal and economic market fluctuations, but also by a general decline in the overall market for international communications as a result of current economic conditions. We were also adversely affected by limits on our ability to provide extended payment terms to larger customers. We anticipate that these revenue growth constraints will be eased as the general economic conditions and the Company's financial condition improve, but there is no assurance that we will be successful in our efforts to increase revenues and margin contribution in this business segment.

Our business is capital intensive, and we do not currently generate sufficient revenues to offset our operating expenses. If we are unable to obtain additional funding as and when required, we may have to significantly curtail or possibly terminate our operations.

We will require substantial future capital in order to continue to fund our operating expenses and to otherwise execute our business plan. If we are unable to obtain additional financing or generate sales revenue sufficient to sustain our operations, we could be forced to significantly curtail or suspend our operations, including laying-off employees, selling assets and other measures. Additional capital may not be available to us when needed on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all.

We have historically funded our working capital requirements through the sale of our equity securities. The sale of equity securities to fund operations is dilutive to the equity ownership of our existing stockholders. Unless we are able to substantially increase our revenues to fund our operating expenses, we will in all likelihood be required to continue to fund operations through additional sales of our equity securities. In addition, limited cash resources may restrict our ability to sell those carrier services that require us to purchase termination capacity on shorter payment terms than the terms under which we are able sell to our customers. This could limit our ability to grow our revenues and/or margins, or limit our ability to achieve our revenue and/or margin targets.

We have historically relied on our officers and directors to Real Partials Equalifor operations. If such loans are not available if and when we require them in the future, we may have insufficient capital to operate. We may also be required to repay loans, including those from our affiliates, from our accounts receivable.

We have historically relied upon loans from non-related and related parties, including Marvin Rosen, the chairman of our board of directors, to fund our operations. From January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011, we received approximately \$2.9 million in new loans from Mr. Rosen. We expect to continue to rely on additional sales of our securities and additional borrowings to support our operations and meet the Company's financial obligations for the remainder of 2012. There are no current commitments for such funds and there can be no assurances that such funds will be available to the Company as needed. In addition, a substantial portion of our outstanding indebtedness is payable upon ten days notice from the lender. Although we have yet to receive any demand notices for this indebtedness, there are no assurances that we will not receive any such notices in the future, and we currently do not have the financial resources to repay these loans should we receive a demand for payment.

We have historically funded our cash flow requirements, in part, from the proceeds of loans evidenced by secured promissory notes. To the extent that term notes were not repaid on their stated maturity date, they were typically converted into demand notes, which may be called in the discretion of the note holders.

As of December 31, 2011, approximately \$4.9 million of indebtedness was evidenced by such demand notes, all of which are held by Mr. Rosen. In connection with these notes, Mr. Rosen has been granted a subordinated security interest in our accounts receivable. If Mr. Rosen were to suddenly demand payment of all outstanding demand notes, or a substantial portion thereof, we likely would not have sufficient funds to repay those notes. In such event, he could assert rights against us in legal proceedings, and could seek to collect on the notes by enforcing his security interest in our accounts receivable. This could adversely affect the availability of the funds required to continue operation of our business.

If we are unable to manage our growth or implement our expansion strategy, we may increase our costs without increasing our revenues.

We may not be able to expand our product offerings, client base and markets, or implement the other features of our business strategy at the rate or to the extent presently planned. Our projected growth will place a significant strain on our administrative, operational, and financial resources and may increase our costs. If we are unable to successfully manage our future growth, continue to upgrade our operating and financial control systems, recruit and hire necessary personnel or effectively manage unexpected expansion difficulties, we may not be able to maximize revenues or achieve profitability.

The success of our growth is dependent upon market developments and traffic patterns, which may lead us to make expenditures that do not result in increased revenues.

Our purchase of network equipment and software will be based in part on our expectations concerning future revenue growth and market developments. As we expand our network, we will be required to make significant capital expenditures, including the purchase of additional network equipment and software, and to add additional employees. Our fixed costs will also increase from the ownership and maintenance of a greater amount of network equipment including our switching systems, gateways, routers, and other related systems. If our traffic volume were to decrease, or fail to increase to the extent expected or necessary to make efficient use of our network, our costs as a percentage of revenues would increase significantly.

We may be unable to adapt to rapid technology trends and evolving industry standards, which could lead to our products becoming obsolete.

The communications industry is subject to rapid and significant changes due to technology innovation, evolving industry standards and frequent new service and product introductions. New services and products based on new technologies or new industry standards expose us to risks of technical or product obsolescence. We will need to use technologies effectively, continue to develop our technical expertise and enhance our existing products and services in a timely manner to compete successfully in this industry. We may not be successful in using new technologies effectively, developing new products or enhancing existing products and services in a timely manner, and we cannot assure you that any new technologies or enhancements used by us or offered to our customers will achieve market acceptance.

Some of our services are dependent upon multiple service platforms, new or Release, and back-office systems that are reliant on third party providers.

We have deployed back-office systems and services platforms that enable us to offer our customers a wide-array of services and features. Sophisticated back office information and processing systems are vital to our growth and our ability to monitor costs, invoice customers, provision client orders, and achieve operating efficiencies. Some of these systems are dependent upon license agreements with third party vendors. These third party vendors may cancel or refuse to renew some of these agreements, and the cancellation or non-renewal of these agreements may harm our ability to invoice customers and provide services efficiently.

We may be impacted by litigation regarding patent infringement to which we were not a party.

On March 8, 2007, a jury in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia ruled that Vonage Holdings had infringed on six patents held by Verizon Communications, and ordered Vonage to pay Verizon \$58 million plus a future royalty payment equal to 5.5% of Vonage's customer sales. The patents related in part to technologies used to connect Internet telephone use to the traditional telephone network. Vonage appealed the decision, but terminated its appeals options in November 2007, when it agreed to pay Verizon approximately \$120 million in settlement. The future impact, if any, of this litigation, or of similar litigation that might be initiated by other companies against VoIP service providers, including us, is unclear. If we were restricted from using certain VoIP technologies, it could increase our cost of service or preclude us from offering certain current or future services.

Breaches in our network security systems may hurt our ability to deliver services and our reputation and result in liability.

We could lose clients or expose ourselves to liability if there are any breaches to our network security systems that jeopardize or result in the loss of confidential information stored in our computer systems. Since our inception, we have experienced only two known breaches of network security, which resulted in a temporary failure of certain network operations, but neither breach resulted in any loss of confidential customer information or in any material financial loss. However, a future network security breach could harm our ability to deliver certain services, damage our reputation or subject us to liability.

Our revenue growth is dependent upon our ability to build new distribution relationships and to bring on new customers, for which there can be no assurance.

Our ability to grow through efficient and cost effective deployment of our VoIP services is in part dependent upon our ability to identify and contract with local entities that will assist in the distribution of our services. This will include local sales partners that sell our corporate services. If we are unable to identify or contract for such distribution relationships, or if the efforts of third party sales agents are not successful, we may not generate the customers or revenues currently envisioned and our results of operations will be adversely impacted.

We are dependent upon our ability to obtain the necessary regulatory approvals and licenses to enter new domestic and international markets in which such approvals are required. Such approvals may or may not occur as planned and may or may not be delayed.

Our entry into new domestic and international markets may in certain cases rely upon our ability to obtain licenses or other approvals to operate in those markets, our ability to establish good working relationships with the relevant telecommunications regulatory authorities in that jurisdiction or our ability to interconnect to the local telephone networks in that market. If we are not able to obtain necessary licenses or approvals, our ability to enter into new markets may be delayed or prevented.

The communications services industry is highly competitive and we may be unable to compete effectively.

The communications industry, including the provisioning of voice services, Internet services and data services, is highly competitive, rapidly evolving and subject to constant technological change and intense marketing by providers with similar products and services. We expect that new carrier competitors, as well as "gray market" operators (operators who arrange call termination in a manner that bypasses the authorized local telephone company, resulting in high margins for them and substantially lower revenues for the legitimate providers), may have an impact on the market. In addition, many of our current carrier and corporate competitors are significantly larger and have substantially greater market presence; greater financial, technical, operational and marketing resources; and more experience. In the event that such a competitor expends significant sales and marketing resources in one or several markets where we compete with them, we may not be able to compete successfully in those markets. We also believe that competition will continue to increase, placing downward pressure on prices. Such pressure could adversely affect our gross margins if we are not able to reduce our

costs commensurate with the price reductions of our competitors. In addition, the pace of technological change makes it impossible for us to predict whether we will face new competitors using different technologies to provide the same or similar services offered or proposed to be offered by us. If our competitors were to provide better and more cost effective services than ours, we may not be able to increase our revenues or capture any significant market share.

Industry consolidation could make it more 2011 can NULAL BEPORTEON FORM 10-K

Companies offering voice, Internet, data and communications services are, in some circumstances, consolidating. We may not be able to compete successfully with businesses that have combined, or will combine, to produce companies with substantially greater financial, technical, sales and marketing resources, or with larger client bases, more extended networks or more established relationships with vendors, distributors and partners. With these heightened competitive pressures, there is a risk that our revenues may not grow as expected and the value of our common stock could decline.

Our ability to provide services is often dependent on our suppliers and other service providers who may not prove to be effective.

A majority of the voice calls made by our clients are connected through other communication carriers, which provide us with transmission capacity through a variety of arrangements. Our ability to terminate voice traffic in our targeted markets is an essential component of our ongoing operations. If we do not secure or maintain operating and termination arrangements our ability to increase services to our existing markets, and gain entry into new markets, will be limited. Therefore, our ability to maintain and expand our business is dependent, in part, upon our ability to maintain satisfactory relationships with other domestic carriers, Internet service providers, international carriers, satellite providers, fiber optic cable providers and other service providers, many of which are our competitors, and upon our ability to obtain their services on a cost effective basis. In addition, if a carrier with whom we interconnect does not carry the traffic routed to it, or does not provide the required capacity, we may be forced to route our traffic to, or buy capacity from, a different carrier on less advantageous terms, which could reduce our profit margins or degrade our network service quality. In the event network service is degraded, it may result in a loss of customers. To the extent that any of these carriers with whom we interconnect raise their rates, change their pricing structure or reduce the amount of capacity they will make available to us, our revenues and profitability may be adversely affected.

We rely on third party equipment suppliers who may not be able to provide us the equipment necessary to deliver the services that we seek to provide.

We are dependent on third party equipment suppliers for equipment, software and hardware components, including Cisco, Nextone, BroadSoft and Veraz. If these suppliers fail to continue product development and research and development or fail to deliver quality products or support services on a timely basis, or we are unable to develop alternative sources of supply if and as required, it could result in an inability to deliver the services that we currently provide or intend to provide, and our financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.

We rely on the cooperation of other international carriers and/or postal telephone and telegraph companies ("PTTs"), who may not always cooperate with us in our attempts to serve a specific country or market.

In some cases, the growth of our carrier services business requires the cooperation of other international carriers and/or the incumbent PTT in order to provide services to or from specific countries or markets. In the event the PTT, or another in-country international carrier, does not cooperate with us or support us in our efforts to serve that country, our ability to provide service to or from that country may be delayed, or the costs to provide service might increase due to our being forced to use another more expensive carrier. If we are unable to develop and maintain successful relationships with other international carriers and PTTs, our ability to service an important market could be prevented or adversely affected.

Service interruptions due to disputes or other conditions over which we have no or little control could result in a loss of revenues and harm our reputation.

Portions of our terminating network may be shut down from time to time, as a result of circumstances including disputes with vendors, acts of war, terrorism, acts of God or other issues, many of which are beyond our control. Any future network shut downs can have a significant negative impact on revenue and cash flows, as well as hurting our reputation. In addition, there is no assurance that we will be able to quickly resolve disputes or disruptions, which could result in a permanent loss of revenues.

Because we do business on an international AVELAN PARA SubJet OB Tan And Federal Para SubJet OB Tan And Federal Para SubJet OB Tan And Federal Para SubJet OB Tan Andrews (See Land 1988) and other uncertainties that may hurt our revenues.

There are certain risks inherent in doing business internationally, especially in emerging markets, such as unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, the imposition of tariffs or sanctions, licenses, customs, duties, other trade barriers, political risks, currency devaluations, high inflation, corporate law requirements and civil unrest. Many of the economies of these emerging markets we seek to enter are weak and volatile. We may not be able to mitigate the effect of inflation on our operations in these countries by price increases, even over the long-term. Further, expropriation of private businesses in such jurisdictions remains a possibility, whether by outright seizure by a foreign government or by confiscatory tax or other policies. Also, deregulation of the communications markets in developing countries may or may not continue. Incumbent service providers, trade unions and others may resist legislation directed toward deregulation and may resist allowing us to interconnect to their networks. The legal systems in emerging markets also frequently have insufficient experience with commercial transactions between private parties, therefore we may not be able to protect or enforce our rights in some emerging market countries. Governments and regulations may change, thus impacting the availability of new licenses or the cancellation or suspension of existing operating licenses. The instability of the laws and regulations applicable to our businesses, as well as their interpretation and enforcement, could materially impact our business in those countries and adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.

The regulatory treatment of VoIP outside the United States varies from country to country. Some countries are considering subjecting VoIP services to the regulations applied to traditional telephone companies and they may assert that we are required to register as a telecommunications carrier in that country or impose other more onerous regulations. In such cases, our failure to register could subject us to fines, penalties or forfeiture of our right to do business in that country. Regulatory developments such as these could have a material adverse effect on our international operations.

Additional taxation and government regulation of the communications industry may slow our growth, resulting in decreased demand for our products and services and increased costs of doing business.

As a result of changes in regulatory policy, we could be forced to pay additional taxes on the products and services we provide. We structure our operations and our pricing based on assumptions about various domestic and international tax laws, tax treaties and other relevant laws. Taxation authorities or other regulatory authorities might not reach the same conclusions about taxation that we have reached in formulating our assumptions. We could suffer adverse tax and other financial consequences if our assumptions about these matters are incorrect or the relevant laws are changed or modified.

In the U.S., our products and services are subject to varying degrees of federal, state and local regulation, including regulation by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) and various state public utility commissions. We may also be subject to similar regulation by foreign governments and their telecommunications and/or regulatory agencies. While these regulatory agencies grant us the authority to operate our business, they typically exercise minimal control over our services and pricing. However, they do require the filing of various reports, compliance with public safety and consumer protection standards, and the payment of certain regulatory fees and assessments.

We cannot assure you that the applicable U.S. and foreign regulatory agencies will grant us the required authority to operate, will allow us to maintain existing authority so we can continue to operate or will refrain from taking action against us if we are found to have provided services without obtaining the necessary authority. Similarly, if our pricing and/or terms and conditions of service are not properly filed or updated with the applicable agencies, or if we are otherwise not fully compliant with the rules of the various regulatory agencies, regulators or other third parties could challenge our actions and we could be subject to forfeiture of our authority to provide service, or to penalties, fines, fees or other costs. We have been delinquent in certain filing and reporting obligations in the past, including, but not limited to, filings with the FCC and Universal Service Fund (USF) reports and payments. We are currently working with various federal and state regulatory agencies to complete any outstanding filings and resolve outstanding payment issues.

In addition to new regulations being adopted, existing laws may be applied to the Internet, which could hinder our growth.

New and existing laws may cover issues that include: sales and other taxes; user privacy; pricing controls; characteristics and quality of products and services; consumer protection; cross-border commerce; copyright, trademark and patent infringement; and other claims based on the nature and content of Internet materials. Changes to existing regulations or the adoption of new regulations could delay growth in demand for our products and services and limit the growth of our revenue.

A large percentage of our current revenues 2111 related to a Strang group of Customer Stand loss of any of those customers could negatively impact our revenues.

A large percentage of our carrier services revenues are provided by a limited number of customers. Specifically, our five largest customers accounted for approximately 47% and 53% of our revenues for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. The terms of our customer agreements do not bind the customer contractually to continue using our services and if our business with these customers were to significantly decrease or cease altogether, it could have a negative impact on our revenues and cash flow.

Risks Related to our Common Stock

Although our shares are widely dispersed, two voting blocs may influence the outcome of matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders; and the interests of these voting blocs may differ from other stockholders.

West End Special Opportunity Fund II, LP ("West End") currently beneficially owns approximately 19.9 million shares, or 12.2%, of our outstanding common stock, and is the second largest single voting bloc in the Company. Additionally, our directors and executive officers as a group currently beneficially own approximately 49.6 million shares, or 27.9% of our common stock. As a result, while neither West End nor our directors and officers as a group have sufficient voting power to control the outcome of matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders, the extent of their ownership enables both groups to influence the outcome of these matters, including the election of directors and extraordinary corporation transactions including business combinations. The interests of the holders of these voting blocs may differ from those of other stockholders.

We are unlikely to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We intend to retain any future earnings to finance our operations and expand our business and therefore do not expect to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Holders of our outstanding preferred stock are entitled to receive dividends prior to the payment of any dividends on our common stock. The payment of dividends is also subject to provisions of Delaware law prohibiting the payment of dividends except out of surplus and certain other limitations.

Our common stock is subject to price volatility unrelated to our operations.

The market price of our common stock could fluctuate substantially due to a variety of factors, including market perception of our ability to achieve our planned growth, quarterly operating results of other companies in the same industry, trading volume in our common stock, changes in general conditions in the economy and the financial markets or other developments affecting our competitors or us. In addition, the stock market is subject to extreme price and volume fluctuations. This volatility has had a significant effect on the market price of securities issued by many companies for reasons unrelated to their operating performance and could have the same effect on our common stock.

In addition, the market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to a number of other factors, many of which are beyond our control, including but not limited to the following:

- Ability to obtain securities analyst coverage
- Changes in securities analysts' recommendations or estimates of our financial performance
- Changes in the market valuations of companies similar to us
- Announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, new offerings, acquisitions, commercial relationships, joint ventures, or capital commitments
- Failure to meet analysts' expectations regarding financial performance

Furthermore, in the past, companies that have experienced volatility in the market price of their stock have been subject to securities class action litigation. A securities class action lawsuit against us, regardless of its merit, could result in substantial costs and divert the attention of our management from other business concerns, which in turn could harm our business.

Our common stock may become subject to Hell ANNUADER FURB TO The SPEC, Which will make transactions in our shares cumbersome and may reduce the value of an investment in our shares.

For so long as the trading price of our common stock is less than \$5.00 per share, our common stock may be considered a "penny stock," and in such event trading in our common stock would be subject to the requirements of Rule 15g-9 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Under this rule, broker/dealers who recommend low-priced securities to persons other than established customers and accredited investors must satisfy special sales practice requirements. The broker/dealer must make an individualized written suitability determination for the purchaser and receive the purchaser's written consent prior to the transaction.

SEC regulations also require additional disclosure in connection with any trades involving a "penny stock," including the delivery, prior to any penny stock transaction, of a disclosure schedule explaining the penny stock market and its associated risks. These requirements severely limit the liquidity of securities in the secondary market because few broker or dealers are likely to undertake these compliance activities. In addition to the applicability of the penny stock rules, other risks associated with trading in penny stocks could also be price fluctuations and the lack of a liquid market.

To date, we have not been considered a "penny stock" due to an exemption from Rule 15g-9 for companies with average annual audited revenues for the prior three years of in excess of \$6,000,000 per year. However, should the exclusions from the definition of a "penny stock" change, or should our annual revenues fall dramatically, we may become subject to rules applicable to "penny stocks" and the market for our shares may be adversely affected.

The elimination of monetary liability against our directors, officers and employees under our certificate of incorporation and the existence of indemnification rights in favor of our directors, officers and employees may result in substantial expenditures by our Company and may discourage lawsuits against our directors, officers and employees.

Our certificate of incorporation contains provisions which eliminate the liability of our directors for monetary damages to our Company and stockholders to the maximum extent permitted under Delaware corporate law. Our by-laws also require us to indemnify our directors to the maximum extent permitted by Delaware corporate law. We may also have contractual indemnification obligations under our agreements with our directors, officers and employees. The foregoing indemnification obligations could result in our Company incurring substantial expenditures to cover the cost of settlement or damage awards against directors, officers and employees, which we may be unable to recoup. These provisions and resultant costs may also discourage our Company from bringing a lawsuit against directors, officers and employees for breaches of their fiduciary duties, and may similarly discourage the filing of derivative litigation by our stockholders against our directors, officers and employees even though such actions, if successful, might otherwise benefit our Company and stockholders.

Our use of equity to fund operations is dilutive to stockholders and, depending upon the market price for our shares at the time of issuance, we may be required to issue shares at depressed prices.

Historically, we have funded our working capital requirements through the sale of our equity. The use of our equity to fund operations is dilutive to the equity ownership of our securities by our existing stockholders. Unless we are able to generate substantial revenues to fund our operating expenses, we will, in all likelihood, be required to continue to fund operations through the sale of our equity. Moreover, the dilutive effect on our stockholders of the issuance of new equity shares is directly impacted by the market price for our shares at the time of issuance. If we are required to issue shares at a time when the market price for our shares is depressed, we will issue more shares than if the market price was higher, and the dilutive effect on our stockholders will be greater.

The issuance of our common stock upon the exercise of options or warrants or the conversion of outstanding convertible securities may cause significant dilution to our stockholders and may have an adverse impact on the market price of our common stock.

As of the date of this report, there were 163,121,154 shares of our common stock outstanding. The issuance of our shares upon the exercise or conversion of securities we have outstanding will increase the number of our publicly traded shares, which could depress the market price of our common stock. As of December 31, 2011, unexercised options to purchase 6,634,261 shares of our common stock, unexercised warrants to purchase 47,615,186 shares of our common stock and outstanding preferred stock, including accumulated dividends, convertible into 7,021,512 shares of common stock were outstanding.

The perceived risk of dilution may cause our stockholders to sell their shares, which would contribute to a downward movement in the stock price of our common stock. Moreover, the perceived risk of dilution and the resulting downward pressure on our stock price

could encourage investors to engage in short sales of our common amounts of short selling could further contribute to progressive pri	stock. By increasing the number of shares offered for sale, material ce declines in our common stock.
	20

We could use preferred stock to fund operations on New takes Very and the Benefit of preferred stock may cause additional dilution.

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, of which 5,045 shares of Series A-1, A-2 and A-4 Preferred Stock are currently issued and outstanding. Our certificate of incorporation gives our Board of Directors the authority to issue preferred stock without the approval of our common stockholders. We may issue additional shares of preferred stock to raise money to finance our operations. We may authorize the issuance of the preferred stock in one or more series. In addition, we may set the terms of preferred stock, including:

- Dividend and liquidation preferences
- Voting rights
- Conversion privileges
- Redemption terms
- Other privileges and rights of the shares of each authorized series

The issuance of large blocks of preferred stock could possibly have a dilutive effect to our existing stockholders. It can also negatively impact our existing stockholders' liquidation preferences. In addition, while we include preferred stock in our capitalization to improve our financial flexibility, we could possibly issue our preferred stock to friendly third parties to preserve control by present management. This could occur if we become subject to a hostile takeover that could ultimately benefit our stockholders and us.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF NBS

Consummation of our proposed acquisition of NBS is subject to the satisfaction of numerous conditions precedent and may not be consummated

Consummation of our proposed acquisition of NBS is subject to the satisfaction of numerous conditions precedent, including but not limited to, satisfactory completion of our due diligence and completion of an audit of the financial books and records of the business to be acquired, receipt of certain regulatory approvals, our receipt of sufficient funding to pay the cash portion of the purchase price and provide for reasonable post-acquisition working capital requirements, negotiation and execution of mutually acceptable executive employment and non-compete agreements with Jon Kaufman, the principal operating officer of NBS, and other customary conditions of closing. There is no assurance that the conditions precedent to closing will be satisfied or waived, or that the proposed acquisition of NBS will be consummated.

We may be unable to secure the funding necessary to consummate our proposed acquisition of NBS.

Among the conditions precedent to consummation of our acquisition of NBS is our ability to secure the necessary funding. While we are engaged in discussion with several potential sources of a combination of debt and equity financing, there is no assurance that we can obtain the necessary financing on acceptable terms, or at all.

Consummation of our acquisition of NBS does not provide assurance and far the polytons of NBS will be accretive to our earnings or otherwise improve our results of operations.

Acquisitions, such as our proposed acquisition of NBS, involve the integration of previously separate businesses into a common enterprise in which it is envisioned that synergistic operations and economies of scale will create accretive earnings and improved results of operations. However, realization of these envisioned results are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties including but not limited to:

- Diversion of management time and attention from daily operations;
- Difficulties integrating the acquired business, technologies and personnel into our business;
- Potential loss of key employees, key contractual relationships or key customers of the acquired business; and
- Assumption of the liabilities and exposure to unforeseen liabilities of the acquired business

Even if our proposed acquisition of NBS is consummated, there is no assurance that the acquisition will be accretive to our earnings or otherwise improve our results of operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

Not applicable to a smaller reporting company.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We are headquartered in New York, New York and lease offices and space in a number of locations. Below is a list of the Company's leased offices and space as of December 31, 2011.

Location	Lease Expiration	Annual Rent	Purpose	Approx. Sq. Ft.
420 Lexington Avenue, Suite 1718, New				
York,			Lease of principal	
New York 10170	October 2015	\$ 475,000	executive offices	9,000
75 Broad Street, New York, New York				
10007	November 2015	\$ 446,000	Lease of network facilities	9,274
1475 W. Cypress Creek Road, Suite 204,			Lease of network facilities	
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309	August 2014	\$ 150,000	and office space	9,716

We believe that the Company's leased facilities are adequate to meet our current and future needs.

HTEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. 2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K.

On February 16, 2012, a landlord over premises leased by the Company commenced a proceeding in the New York City Civil Court, County of New York (Index No. 56186/12), in which the landlord sought to recover against the Company certain unpaid rent and related charges due under a lease agreement between the landlord and the Company, and to evict the Company from the premises. The Company intends to contest and dispute the claims set forth in the foregoing Petition. However, due to the uncertainties of litigation and other unknown factors, there can be no assurances that the Company will be able to reach a favorable resolution to this proceeding.

The Company is from time to time involved in claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. Management does not expect that the outcome of any such claims or actions will have a material effect on the Company's operations or financial condition. In addition, due to the regulatory nature of the telecommunications industry, the Company periodically receives and responds to various inquiries from state and federal regulatory agencies. Management does not expect the outcome of any such regulatory inquiries to have a material impact on the Company's operations or financial condition.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Information

Our common stock is currently listed on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol "FSNN." The following tables list the high and low sales prices for the Company's common stock for each fiscal quarter during the two preceding fiscal years.

Year Ended December 31, 2011		High		Low
First Quarter	\$	0.10	\$	0.06
Second Quarter	\$	0.12	\$	0.07
Third Quarter	\$	0.11	\$	0.07
Fourth Quarter	\$	0.10	\$	0.06
Vaar Endad Dacambar 31 2010		Uiah		Low
Year Ended December 31, 2010		High		Low
Year Ended December 31, 2010 First Quarter	\$	High 0.16	\$	Low 0.10
	\$ \$		\$ \$	
First Quarter	\$ \$ \$	0.16		0.10
First Quarter Second Quarter	•	0.16 0.24	\$	0.10 0.10

The market price for the Company's common stock is highly volatile and fluctuates in response to a wide variety of factors.

Holders of Record

As of December 31, 2011, there were approximately 437 shareholders of record of the Company's common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to finance our operations, and to expand our business. Subject to the rights of holders of preferred stock, any future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will be dependent upon our financial condition, operating results, capital requirements, limitations under Delaware law and other factors that our board of directors considers appropriate.

The holders of the Company's Series A-1, A-2, and A-4 Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends of 8% per annum payable in arrears, as declared by the Company's board of directors, on January 1 of each year, commencing on January 1, 2008. The board of directors has not declared any dividends on the Series A-1, A-2, or A-4 Preferred Stock.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the three months ended December 31, 2011, we sold and issued to 13 accredited investors 7,207,678 shares of common stock and warrants to issue 2,612,309 shares of the Company's common stock at exercise prices ranging from \$0.07 to \$0.11 per share, or 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing. The net proceeds of \$510,500 were used for general working capital purposes. The securities were sold by the Company's officers and directors and no commissions or other remuneration were paid in connection with these transactions.

Between January 1, 2012 and March 15, 2012, We shi had its Real O25 accretions My 1915 s 9,409,804 shares of common stock and warrants to issue 2,822,950 shares of the Company's common stock at exercise prices ranging from \$0.09 to \$0.23 per share, or 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing. The net proceeds of \$975,200 were used for general working capital purposes.

The foregoing transactions were exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Rule 506 of Regulation D thereunder.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

Not applicable to smaller reporting companies

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following discussion of the Company's financial condition and results of operations should be read together with the Company's consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This discussion contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1996. Such statements consist of any statement other than a recitation of historical fact and can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as "may", "expect", "anticipate", "intend", "estimate" or "continue" or the negative thereof or other variations thereof or comparable terminology. The reader is cautioned that all forward-looking statements are speculative, and there are certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual events or results to differ from those referred to in such forward-looking statements (see Item 1A, "Risk Factors").

OVERVIEW

Our Business

We are an international telecommunications carrier delivering value-added communications solutions to corporations and carriers in the United States and throughout the world. We offer services that include voice and data communications using Voice over Internet Protocol ("VoIP"), private network services, broadband Internet access, and other advanced services. The Company's Corporate Services business segment focuses on small, medium, and large corporations headquartered in the United States, but with the ability to serve their global communications needs and to provide service virtually anywhere in the world. The Company's Carrier Services business segment focuses on carriers across the globe, with a particular focus on providing services to and from emerging markets in Asia, the Middle East, Africa, Latin America, and the Caribbean. Historically, we have generated the majority of our revenues from voice traffic sold to other carriers, with a strong focus in recent years on VoIP termination to emerging markets. We have focused on growing our existing customer base, which was primarily U.S.-based, through the addition of new international customers. We have also focused on expanding the Company's vendor base through the addition of direct VoIP terminating arrangements to new countries and emerging markets.

Although we believe that the Carrier Services business segment continues to be of significant value to our long term strategy, ongoing competitive and pricing pressures have caused us to increase our focus on the higher margin Corporate Services business segment and to expand our efforts to market to small and mid-sized corporations, as well as larger enterprises, using both our direct and partner distribution channels. While our Corporate Services business segment is still a relatively small portion of our revenue base, we continue to increase our emphasis on this segment in order to increase the percentage of the Company's total revenues contributed by the Corporate Services business segment. We believe that this will complement the Company's carrier business segment by providing higher margins and a more stable customer base.

On January 30, 2012, we entered into purchas depreciately at the sequence of approximately \$2012, we entered into purchas depreciately and Interconnect Systems Group II LLC (collectively, "NBS"). NBS currently provides voice (including VoIP) and data telecommunications services, as well as a wide variety of managed and cloud-based telecommunications services, to small and medium sized companies. For the year ended December 31, 2011, NBS had unaudited revenues of approximately \$26.8 million and unaudited net income of approximately \$3.0 million. NBS has approximately 5,000 customers.

The aggregate purchase price for the NBS acquisition transaction is \$20 million, consisting of \$17.75 million in cash, \$1.0 million to be evidenced by a 24-month promissory note payable to the sellers and \$1.25 million in shares of restricted common stock of the Company. Consummation of the transaction contemplated by the purchase agreements is subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, satisfactory completion of our due diligence on the business being acquired, completion of an audit of the financial books and records of NBS, receipt of certain regulatory approvals, our receipt of sufficient funding to pay the cash portion of the purchase price and provide for reasonable post-acquisition working capital requirements, negotiation and execution of mutually acceptable executive employment and non-compete agreements with Jon Kaufman, the principal operating officer of NBS, and other customary conditions of closing. While the purchase agreements contemplate that closing of the acquisition of NBS would take place during the second quarter of 2012, the conditions precedent to closing are such that there can be no assurance that the acquisition will be completed in that time or at all.

We manage our revenues by business segment and customer. We manage our costs by service provider/vendor. We track revenues by business segment, as the Company's segments have different customer billing and payment terms and utilize different billing systems. We track total revenue at the customer level because our sales force manages revenue generation at the customer level, and because invoice charges are billed and collected at the customer level.

We manage our business segments based on gross profit and margin, which represents net revenue less the cost of revenue, and on net profitability. Although our infrastructure is largely built to support all business segments and products, many of the infrastructure costs, selling, general and administrative expenses ("SG&A") and capital expenditures can be specifically associated with one of our two business segments. The majority of our operations, engineering, information systems and support personnel are assigned to either the corporate services or carrier services business segment for segment reporting purposes, while a relatively small number of personnel are allocated to the segments as appropriate.

Cost of revenues mainly includes the purchase of voice termination, as well as the cost of Internet access, private line, and other services from telecommunications carriers and Internet service providers. We continue to work to lower the variable component of cost of revenues through the use of least cost routing, and through on-going negotiation of usage-based costs with our many domestic and international service providers.

Our operating expenses are categorized as depreciation and amortization, SG&A and advertising and marketing. Depreciation and amortization includes the depreciation of our communications network equipment, leasehold improvements and office equipment and fixtures, as well as the amortization of our intangible assets. SG&A includes salaries and benefits, sales commissions, the costs of occupancy related to our leased network facilities and administrative offices, legal and professional fees and other administrative expenses. Advertising and marketing expense includes costs for promotional materials for the marketing of our corporate products and services.

Our Performance

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011 were \$42.4 million, an increase of \$0.6 million, or 1.4%, compared to the year ended December 31, 2010. Our operating loss for 2011 was \$4.3 million, compared to \$5.8 million in 2010. The improvement was mainly due to a \$1.2 million reduction in operating expenses in 2011. Net loss attributable to common stockholders was \$4.9 million in 2011, compared to \$6.4 million in 2010.

Our Outlook

Our ability to grow our business, fully implement our business plan and achieve profitability is dependent upon our ability to raise significant amounts of additional capital. In addition to the cash portion of the purchase price of the pending NBS transaction, we require additional capital to support our Carrier Services business, specifically for capital expenditures required to expand our voice termination capacity, to implement a new automated system for the administration of routing and rates and for the working capital necessary to optimize the terms under which we buy from our vendors and sell to our customers. We believe that if we are able to

	26	

2011 ANNIA ITS SPORTERN TORM 10-K

The following table summarizes our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

	2011		2010	
Revenues	\$ 42,350,640	100.0%	\$ 41,763,002	100.0%
Cost of revenues, exclusive of depreciation and amortization	38,067,888	89.9%	37,830,121	90.6%
Gross profit	\$ 4,282,752	10.1%	\$ 3,932,881	9.4%
Operating expenses:				
Depreciation and amortization	516,892	1.2%	847,881	2.0%
Loss on impairment of intangibles	163,126	0.4%	19,018	0.0%
Selling general and administrative	7,897,339	18.6%	8,847,474	21.2%
Advertising and marketing	14,959	0.0%	38,973	0.1%
Total operating expenses	8,592,316	20.3%	9,753,346	23.4%
Operating loss	(4,309,564)	-10.2%	(5,820,465)	-13.9%
Interest expense, net of interest income	(201,183)	-0.5%	(180,714)	-0.4%
Other (expenses) income	46,319	0.1%	213,956	0.5%
Total other (expenses) income	(154,864)	-0.4%	33,242	0.1%
Loss from continuing operations	\$ (4,464,428)	-10.5%	\$ (5,787,223)	-13.9%

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues

Consolidated revenues were \$42.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$41.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2010, an increase of \$0.6 million, or 1.4%. Carrier Services revenue of \$40.1 million increased by \$0.1 million, or 0.3%, over the same period of a year ago, as a 26% increase in the number of minutes transmitted over our network was mostly offset by the decrease in the blended rate per minute of traffic terminated.

Revenues for the Corporate Services segment increased \$0.5 million, or 27.5%, to \$2.2 million in 2011 compared to 2010 due to the continued growth in the customer base for this segment.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Margin

Consolidated cost of revenues was \$38.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$37.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2010. Consolidated gross margin was 10.1% in 2011, compared to 9.4% in the same period of a year ago. The increase is mainly due to the higher Carrier Services margin and, to a lesser extent, the increased relative contribution of the higher margin Corporate Services business. Gross margin for the Carrier Services business was 8.7% in 2011 compared to 8.1% in 2010. The higher margin was due to a reduction of approximately \$0.2 million in fixed costs in 2011, primarily for TDM circuits and internet bandwidth. We believe there are opportunities to further improve our Carrier Services margin if we can obtain the necessary funding for capital expenditures and working capital.

During 2011, the Corporate Services business segment accounted for 19.0% of our consolidated gross profit, compared to 17.6% of consolidated gross profit in 2010. Continuing to increase the relative contribution of our Corporate Services business segment is an essential component of our business strategy, and we believe that the NBS acquisition, if it takes place, will result in a substantial increase to our consolidated gross margins and significantly improve our overall operating results. Gross margin for the Corporate Services business was 36.5% in 2011, compared with 39.7% in 2010. The decrease in gross margin during the year was mainly due to price discounts granted to certain customers in 2011 in order to secure long-term business and expand our customer base, and to increased competitive pressures as 2011 progressed. We expect these trends to continue in 2012, and we believe that we need to achieve greater economies of scale and enhance our product offerings in order to compete effectively in this business.

Depreciation and Amortization

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by \$0.3 million, from \$0.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2010 to \$0.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2011, as more existing assets became fully depreciated during 2011 than there were new assets placed into service during the year. Although our liquidity constraints in 2011 did not significantly impact our ability to incur capital expenditures that were required to support our current network operations, if we are able to obtain funding to enhance our network capacity and capabilities in 2012 and beyond, we expect that this will result in future increases to depreciation expense.

Loss on Impairment

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we recorded an impairment charge in the amount of \$0.2 million related to the Company's trademark intangible assets, as compared to an impairment charge of approximately \$19,000 in the same period of a year ago. The impairment charges are based on the difference between the asset's carrying value at the time of the impairment test and our estimate of fair market value.

SG&A

SG&A decreased to \$7.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to \$8.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2010. During 2011, we reduced our accruals for certain state franchise taxes and other state and local taxes based on changes in estimates, resulting in a decrease in expense of \$0.4 million. Excluding this adjustment, SG&A decreased by \$0.6 million, or 6.6%. This decrease resulted from reduced employee compensation costs of \$0.5 million, a \$0.2 million reduction in rent and other occupancy costs, which was mainly due to the restructuring of the lease at our switch facility in late 2010, and \$0.1 million of lower insurance expense, partly offset by a \$0.2 million increase in bad debt expense and a \$0.1 million increase in agent commissions associated with the growth of the Corporate Services business segment.

Advertising and Marketing

Advertising and marketing expenses was approximately \$15,000 in the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to approximately \$39,000 in the year ended December 31, 2010. Although our use of advertising continues to be minimal, our pursuit of certain large scale opportunities for our Corporate Services business may result in increased marketing expenses in 2012 and beyond.

Operating Loss

Our operating loss decreased by \$1.5 million, or 26.0%, from \$5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 to \$4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. The decrease in operating loss was primarily attributable to a \$1.2 million reduction in operating expenses, primarily SG&A, and a \$0.3 million increase in gross profit, which was mainly the result of the improved margins in the Carrier Services segment.

Other (Expense) Income

For the year ended December 31, 2011, total other (expense) income was a net expense of approximately \$155,000, compared to net income of approximately \$33,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010. The change is due to approximately \$160,000 of gains on vendor settlements in 2010 compared to \$75,000 in 2011, as well as a loss on the sale of our accounts receivable of approximately \$52,000 in 2011 with no comparable amount in 2010. In addition, interest expense increased by approximately \$25,000 in 2011 due to the issuance of additional notes payable, and we recorded a loss on the disposal of certain of our property and equipment of approximately \$25,000 in 2011, with no comparable amount in 2010.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued Operations pertains to our former consumer segment that we discontinued in 2009. During the year ended December 31, 2011 we recorded a gain from discontinued operations of approximately \$10,000, compared with a loss from discontinued operations of approximately \$12,000 in 2010. The change was largely the result of cash received for certain customer receivables pertaining to this segment that had previously been written off.

Net Loss

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Net loss decreased \$1.3 million, or 23.2% to \$4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, from \$5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, mainly due to the decrease in operating expenses and increase in gross profit.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to raise additional capital to support our day to day operations and implement our business plan. Since our inception, we have incurred significant operating and net losses. In addition, we have yet to generate positive cash flow from operations. As of December 31, 2011, we had a stockholders' deficit of \$10.6 million, as compared to \$8.1 million at December 31, 2010, and a working capital deficit of \$12.0 million, as compared to \$9.7 million at December 31, 2010. We currently do not have sufficient cash or other financial resources to fund our operations and meet our obligations for the next twelve months

We have historically relied upon the sale of our equity securities and loans from non-related and related parties, including Marvin Rosen, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, to fund our operations. For the year ended December 31, 2011, we raised approximately \$1.1 million from the sale of our securities through private placement financings and received \$2.9 million in new loans from Mr. Rosen. From January 1, 2012 through the date of this report, we raised an additional \$0.9 million from additional private sales of our securities. We expect to continue to rely on additional sales of our securities and additional borrowings to support our operations and meet the Company's financial obligations for the remainder of 2012. There are no current commitments for such funds and there can be no assurances that such funds will be available to the Company as needed. In addition, a substantial portion of our outstanding indebtedness is payable upon ten days notice from the lender. Although we have yet to receive any demand notices for this indebtedness, there are no assurances that we will not receive any such notices in the future, and we currently do not have the financial resources to repay these loans should we receive a demand for payment.

On September 12, 2011, we entered into a purchase and sale agreement with Prestige Capital Corporation ("Prestige"), whereby we may sell certain of our accounts receivable to Prestige, at a discount in order to improve our liquidity and cash flow. Since the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 through the date of this report, we have been utilizing this agreement to assist us with our short term liquidity needs and we expect to continue to do so until such time as we can complete a significant equity raise. Under the terms of the purchase and sale agreement, Prestige pays a percentage of the face amount of the receivables at the time of sale, and the remainder, net of the discount, is paid to us within three business days after Prestige receives payment on the receivables, which generally have 30 day terms.

Prestige also provided the Company with a one-time advance of \$208,000 at the time we entered into this agreement. This advance is secured by a priority lien on the Company's accounts receivable. The proceeds from the advance were used to pay down other third party indebtedness and for general corporate purposes. The advance is payable in 25 equal weekly installments beginning in October of 2011 and an advance fee of approximately \$15,000 is payable 180 days after the closing date. The outstanding balance on this advance was approximately \$103,000 at December 31, 2011, and this balance was paid in full as of March 30, 2012. The Prestige agreement expires in June of 2012, but contains automatic renewals unless either party provides a written notice of cancellation within 60 days prior to expiration.

On January 30, 2012 we entered into agreements to acquire NBS. The cash portion of the purchase price is \$17.75 million. In conjunction with our efforts to obtain debt financing for a substantial portion of this amount, we are seeking to consummate a significant sale of our equity securities which will (i) finance the remaining amount of the cash portion of the purchase price; (ii) provide for necessary post-acquisition working capital requirements for the acquired business; and (iii) provide the necessary funds for capital expenditures and working capital requirements of our existing business, including the implementation of our long term business plan. There are currently no commitments for any such financings and no assurances can be given that funds will be available on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all.

On October 27, 2011, the landlord over premi**291 lcase by the PSRPATY Oxer ESRAMs Hight** under the lease to draw down the full amount of a letter of credit in the amount of \$428,391 that we had posted as security under the terms of the lease. The letter of credit was issued for our benefit by a third party lending institution and we had partially collateralized the letter of credit in the approximate amount of \$240,000 by depositing this amount in a money market account with the lending institution. As a result of the drawdown of the letter of credit, we were required to pay the issuer of the letter of credit the difference between the full amount of the letter of credit and the amount of the collateral, which difference is approximately \$188,000. While our failure to make this payment constitutes an event of default under the terms of the letter of credit, we did not receive a default notice from the lending institution. The Company and the lender have agreed in principle on the terms of a forbearance and settlement agreement which, among other things, sets forth payment terms for the outstanding amount. Under the terms of the proposed forbearance and settlement agreement, which provides for interest on the outstanding amount at the rate of 5.25% per annum, we will be required to make principal payments in the amount of \$5,000 per month from March 27, 2012 through August 27, 2012, \$50,000 on each of September 27, 2012, December 27, 2012 and March 27, 2013 and approximately \$8,000 June 27, 2013. Although there can be no assurances, we expect that the forbearance and settlement agreement will be fully executed in the second quarter of 2012.

In the event that we are unable to secure the necessary funding to meet our working capital requirements and payment obligations, either through the sale of our securities or through other financing arrangements, we may be required to downsize, reduce our workforce, sell assets or possibly curtail or even cease operations.

A summary of the Company's cash flows for years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

	2011	2010
Cash from continuing operations:		
Cash used in operating activities	\$ (3,461,117)	\$ (4,791,026)
Cash used in investing activities	(146,528)	(508,617)
Cash provided by financing activities	3,654,862	5,386,503
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations	47,217	86,860
Cash from discontinued operations	(64,540)	(165,509)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	(17,323)	(78,649)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	20,370	99,019
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$ 3,047	\$ 20,370

Cash used in operating activities was \$3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease is mainly due to a lower operating loss. As we continue to implement our business strategy with our Carrier Services and Corporate Services business segments we expect that our net cash flows from operating activities will continue to improve.

Cash used in investing activities was \$0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$0.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease is due to increases in restricted cash in 2010 in order to collateralize letters of credit required under our leasing arrangements, and lower capital expenditures in 2011. We expect our cash capital expenditures to be approximately \$0.4 million in 2012, mainly to implement improvements to our network for our Carrier Services business segment.

Cash provided by financing activities was \$3.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to \$5.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2010. During 2011, we raised \$1.1 million from the sale of our common stock, compared to \$3.6 million in 2010. We also raised \$2.6 million from new borrowings, net of repayments, in 2011, compared with \$1.8 million in 2010.

Sources of Liquidity

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

As of December 31, 2011, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately \$3,000 and accounts receivable of approximately \$2.4 million. Our long-term liquidity is dependent on our ability to develop profitable operations that will generate positive cash flow. We cannot predict if and when we will be able to achieve profitability.

Uses of Liquidity

Our short-term and long-term liquidity needs arise primarily from working capital requirements to support the growth and day-to-day operations of our business, principal and interest payments related to our financing obligations, capital expenditures and any additional funds that may be required for business expansion opportunities. In some situations, we may be required to guarantee payment or performance under agreements, and in these circumstances we may be required to secure letters of credit or bonds to do so. These instruments may further limit unrestricted cash and cash equivalents, and may place a further strain on our liquidity.

Debt Service Requirements

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we repaid \$0.5 million of promissory notes and other indebtedness held by unrelated parties. For 2012, we expect to make debt service payments aggregating to \$0.3 million related to the letter of credit drawdown and the Prestige advance. At December 31, 2011, we had \$4.9 million of debt payable to Mr. Rosen, which is payable on demand and is collateralized by a subordinated security interest in our accounts receivable. As of the date of this report we have not received any demand for payment.

Capital Instruments

Over the course of 2011 we entered into subscription agreements with 27 accredited investors, under which we issued an aggregate of 13,291,167 shares of common stock and five-year warrants to purchase 3,482,785 shares of the Company's common stock for aggregate consideration of \$1.1 million. The warrants are exercisable at 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing. Two of these investors, accounting for 1,037,038 shares, 272,224 warrants and proceeds of \$85,000, were directors of the Company. Also during 2011, two of our directors and two unrelated note holders converted an aggregate of \$0.7 million of promissory notes and accrued interest that were payable on demand into an aggregate of 8,409,685 shares of the Company's common stock and warrants to purchase 1,961,304 shares of the Company's common stock.

Between January 1, 2012 and March 15, 2012, we sold and issued to 20 accredited investors 8,594,988 shares of common stock and warrants to issue 2,578,503 shares of the Company's common stock at exercise prices ranging from \$0.09 to \$0.23 per share, or 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing. The net proceeds of \$0.9 million were used for general working capital purposes. In addition, three of our officers and/or directors converted an aggregate of \$85,000 of indebtedness from the Company into 814,816 shares of common stock and warrants to issue 244,447 shares of the Company's common stock at exercise prices ranging from \$0.09 to \$0.17 per share, or 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing.

<u>CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES</u>

We have identified the policies and significant estimation processes discussed below as critical to our business operations and to the understanding of our results of operations. In many cases, the accounting treatment of a particular transaction is dictated by specific accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, with no need for management's judgment in their application. In other cases, management is required to exercise judgment in the application of accounting principles with respect to particular transactions. For a detailed discussion on the application of these and other accounting policies, see note 3 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from those estimates and such differences could be significant.

Revenue Recognition

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Our revenue is primarily derived from usage fees charged to carriers and corporations that terminate voice traffic over our network, and from the monthly recurring fees charged to customers that purchase our corporate products and services.

Variable revenue is earned based on the length (number of minutes duration) of a call. It is recognized upon completion of the call, and is adjusted to reflect customer billing adjustments. Revenue for each customer is calculated from information received through our network switches. Customized software has been designed to track the information from the switch and analyze the call detail records against stored detailed information about revenue rates. This software provides us with the ability to complete a timely and accurate analysis of revenue earned in a period. We believe that the nature of this process is such that recorded revenues are unlikely to be revised in the future.

Revenue earned from monthly services provided to our corporate services customers are fixed and recurring in nature, and are contracted for over a specified period of time. Revenue recognition commences after the provisioning, testing and acceptance of the service by the customer. The recurring customer charges continue until the expiration of the contract, or until cancellation of the service by the customer. To the extent that payments received from a customer are related to a future period, the payment is recorded as deferred revenue until the service is provided or the usage occurs.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable is recorded net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, we evaluate our accounts receivable and adjust the allowance for doubtful accounts based on our history of past write-offs and collections and current credit conditions. Specific customer accounts are written off as uncollectible if the probability of a future loss has been established, collection efforts have been exhausted and payment is not expected to be received.

Cost of Revenues and Cost of Revenues Accrual

Cost of revenues is comprised primarily of costs incurred from other domestic and international communications carriers to originate, transport, and terminate voice calls for the Company's carrier and corporate customers. The majority of the Company's cost of revenues is thus variable, based upon the number of minutes actually used by the Company's customers and the destinations they are calling. Cost of revenues also includes the monthly recurring cost of certain platform services purchased from other service providers, as well as the monthly recurring costs of broadband Internet access and/or private line services purchased from other carriers to meet the needs of the Company's customers. Call activity is tracked and analyzed with customized software that analyzes the traffic flowing through the Company's network switches. During each period, the call activity is analyzed and an accrual is recorded for the revenues associated with minutes not yet invoiced. This cost accrual is calculated using minutes from the system and the variable cost of revenue based upon predetermined contractual rates.

Fixed expenses reflect the costs associated with connectivity between the Company's network infrastructure, including its New York switching facility, and certain large carrier customers and vendors. They also include the cost of fiber optic transmission facilities used to connect the Company's switching facility to certain international destinations. In addition, fixed expenses include the monthly recurring charges associated with certain platform services purchased from other service providers, the monthly recurring costs associated with private line services for certain corporate customers and the cost of broadband Internet access used to provide service to both carrier and corporate customers.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We periodically review long-lived assets, including intangible assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable. If an impairment indicator is present, we evaluate recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the projected undiscounted cash flows, we are required to estimate the fair value of the asset and recognize an impairment charge to the extent that the carrying value of the asset exceeds its estimated fair value. We recorded impairment charges related to our Efonica trademarks of approximately \$163,000 and \$19,000 in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. In addition, we wrote off certain of our property and equipment that we determined was no longer in use, and recorded a loss on disposal of approximately \$25,000 for the net book value of these assets during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Income Taxes

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

We account for income taxes in accordance with U.S. GAAP, which requires the recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future income tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our financial statements. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed for temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities that will result in future taxable or deductible amounts, based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established to reduce deferred income tax assets when we determine that it is more like than not that we will fail to generate sufficient taxable income to be able to utilize the deferred tax assets.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no new accounting pronouncements adopted by the Company that had a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. Our management does not believe that there are any recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting pronouncements, if currently adopted, which would have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

OTHER MATTERS

Inflation

We do not believe inflation has a significant effect on the Company's operations at this time.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Under SEC regulations, we are required to disclose the Company's off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that are material to investors. Off-balance sheet arrangements consist of transactions, agreements or contractual arrangements to which any entity that is not consolidated with us is a party, under which we have:

- Any obligation under certain guarantee contracts.
- Any retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity or similar arrangement that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support to that entity for such assets.
- Any obligation under a contract that would be accounted for as a derivative instrument, except that it is both indexed to the Company's stock and classified in stockholder's equity in the Company's statement of financial position.
- Any obligation arising out of a material variable interest held by us in an unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to us, or engages in leasing, hedging or research and development services with us.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that is material to investors.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Not applicable for smaller reporting companies.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

The Company's consolidated financial statements required by this Item are included after Item 15 of this report.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including as appropriate our Chief Executive Officer and our President, who also serves as our Principal Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and President, has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2011. Based upon that evaluation and subject to the foregoing, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and President concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective to accomplish their objectives. Our Chief Executive Officer and President do not expect that our disclosure controls or our internal controls will prevent all error and all fraud. The design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and the benefit of controls must be considered relative to their cost. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that we have detected all of our control issues and all instances of fraud, if any. The design of any system of controls also is based partly on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving the Company's stated goals under all potential future conditions.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Fusion's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO") in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on the assessment using those criteria, management concluded that the internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting AL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

There was no change in the internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the year ended December 31, 2011 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.

2011 ANNUAL BERORTION FORM 10-K

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The members of the Company's Board of Directors and the Company's executive officers, together with their respective ages and certain biographical information are set forth below, along with, in the case of directors, a description of the qualifications that led the Board to conclude that the individual should serve as a director:

Name	Age	Position
Marvin S. Rosen	71	Chairman of the Board
Philip D. Turits	78	Secretary, Treasurer and Director
Matthew D. Rosen	39	Chief Executive Officer and Director
E. Alan Brumberger	71	Director
Julius Erving	61	Director
William Rubin	58	Director
Paul C. O'Brien	71	Director
Michael J. Del Giudice	68	Director
Larry Blum	68	Director
Gordon Hutchins, Jr.	62	President, Chief Operating Officer, and Acting Chief Financial Officer
Jan Sarro	57	Executive Vice President - Corporate Services

Board of Directors and Executive Officers

Marvin S. Rosen, Chairman of the Board

Mr. Rosen co-founded the Company in 1997. He has served as the Chairman of our Board of Directors since November 2004, Chairman of our Executive Committee since September 1999, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors from December 1998 to November 2004 and has been a member of our Board since March 1998. He served as our Chief Executive Officer from April 2000 until March 2006. In 1983 he joined the international law firm of Greenberg Traurig as a Partner specializing as a Corporate Securities Lawyer active in many Public Offerings and Private Placements. He remained an active practicing lawyer until 2000. At that point he became inactive and remained of Counsel until early 2009. Mr. Rosen was Finance Chairman for the Democratic National Committee from September 1995 until January 1997. Currently, he serves on the Board of Directors of the Robert F. Kennedy Memorial and previously was Budget and Finance Chairman for the Summit of the Americas, Chairman of the Florida Housing Finance Agency. Mr. Rosen served on the Board of Directors Terremark Worldwide, Inc from 2000 until 2011. Mr. Rosen is also a Principal with Emerald Point Capital Partners, LLC Mr. Rosen's son, Matthew, is our current Chief Executive Officer, and serves on our Board of Directors. The Board believes that Mr. Rosen's background as the co-founder and former CEO of the Company, a Principal with a financial services firm, a securities lawyer and a director of a public company provides him with the industry, financial, legal, and leadership experience to advise the Board on valuable strategic and tactical matters.

Philip D. Turits, Secretary, Treasurer, and Director

Mr. Turits co-founded the Company in 1997 and has served as a Director since September 1997, Secretary since October 1997, Treasurer since March 1998, and Vice Chairman from March 1998 to December 1998. From September 1991 to February 1996, Mr. Turits served as Treasurer and Chief Operating Officer for Larry Stuart, Ltd., a consumer products company and prior to 1991 he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Continental Chemical Company. The Board believes that Mr. Turits background as the cofounder and Secretary/Treasurer of the Company and an experienced corporate executive provides him with the operational, financial, and leadership qualifications to provide valuable guidance to management and the other directors, particularly in the financial aspects of the telecommunications business.

Matthew D. Rosen, Chief Executive Officer 2911 DNOUGAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Mr. Rosen has served as a Director since May 2005 and has been our Chief Executive Officer since March of 2006. He served as President from March 2006 until March 2008, as Chief Operating Officer from August 2003 to March 2006, as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer between February 2002 and August 2003, as Executive Vice President and President of Global Operations between November 2000 and January 2002 and as President of US Operations between March 2000 and November 2000. From 1998 to 2000, he held various management positions, including President of the Northwest and New England Operations for Expanets, a \$1.3 billion integrated network communications service provider. From 1996 to 1998 he was Corporate Director of Operations for Oxford Health Plans, a \$4 billion health care company, where he worked on developing and executing turnaround strategies. Prior to his role as Corporate Director of Operations, Mr. Rosen held an executive position in a start-up healthcare technology subsidiary of Oxford where he played an integral part in developing strategy and building its sales, finance and operations departments. Prior to Oxford, Mr. Rosen was an investment banker in Merrill Lynch's corporate finance department. The Board believes that Mr. Rosen's background as the current Chief Executive Officer and former Chief Operating Officer of the Company, a senior executive in the telecommunications industry, an experienced operations executive and an investment banker provides him with the industry, operational, financial, and leadership experience to advise on all aspects of the Company's business. Mr. Rosen is the son of our Chairman of the Board, Marvin Rosen.

E. Alan Brumberger, Director

Mr. Brumberger has served as a Director since March 1998. Currently, Mr. Brumberger is the Chief Executive Officer of Emerald Point Capital Partners, LLC He formerly was a partner in Andersen & Co. and its predecessor firms, from 1997 to 2004. From 1995 through 1997, he was a Managing Director of the Taylor Companies and from 1994 through 1995 he was a Managing Director of Brenner Securities, Inc. From 1983 through 1990, Mr. Brumberger was a Managing Director of Drexel Burnham Lambert and a member of the Underwriting and Commitment Committees. Prior to that, he was a Managing Director of Shearson American Express and a partner at Loeb, Rhoades & Co., a predecessor of Shearson American Express. Mr. Brumberger served for three years as President and Chief Executive Officer of Shearson American Express International Limited, the firm's international investment banking business in London. The Board believes that Mr. Brumberger's background as the current Chief Executive Officer of a financial services firm, an experienced leader in the finance and securities industry, a partner in a public accounting firm and an investment banker provides him with the financial and leadership experience to provide important input and direction to management and the Board, particularly on financial matters.

Julius Erving, Director

Mr. Erving has served as a director since June 2003. He is the President of the Erving Group, and has served in that role since 1979. Mr. Erving was also employed by the National Broadcasting Company between December 1994 and June 1997, and by the National Basketball Association between 1987 and September 1997. He is a former director of Saks, Incorporated, Darden Restaurants, and The Sports Authority. Mr. Erving is also a Trustee of the Basketball Hall of Fame. The Board believes that Mr. Erving's unique background as a leader in broadcasting, sports management, and professional sports, as well as his prior service as a corporate director provides him with the qualifications to provide valuable direction and guidance to executive management and the Board.

William Rubin, Director

Mr. Rubin has been President of the Rubin Group, a consulting firm representing clients before governmental entities, since 1992. From 1983 through 1984, he was Assistant Insurance Commissioner and Treasurer of the State of Florida, where he was directly responsible for all activities related to the Florida State Board of Administration, the agency that manages the investments for Florida's pension funds. Mr. Rubin also serves as an advisor to many large companies, primarily advising health care companies doing business in Florida. The Board believes that Mr. Rubin's background as a senior governmental official and a lobbyist provides him with the financial and leadership experience to be a valuable advisor to executive management and the Board.

Paul C. O'Brien, Director

Mr. O'Brien has served as a director since August 1998. Since January 1995, Mr. O'Brien has served as the President of the O'Brien Group, Inc., a consulting and investment firm. From February 1988 until December 1994, he was the President and Chairman of New England Telephone, (a subsidiary of NYNEX), a telecommunications company. Mr. O'Brien serves as Chairman of the Board of Astrobotic Technology, Inc. and he is also on the advisory board of Sovereign Bank. The Board believes that Mr. O'Brien's background as President of a consulting and investment firm, as Chairman of a major telecommunications enterprise, and as an experienced

aspects of the Company's business.		
	37	

Michael J. Del Giudice, Director

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Mr. Del Giudice has served as a Director since November 2004. He is a Senior Managing Director of Millennium Credit Markets LLC and Senior Managing Director of MCM Securities LLC, both of which he co-founded in 1996. Mr. Del Giudice also serves as Chairman of Rockland Capital Energy Investments LLC, founded in April 2003. Mr. Del Giudice has been a Member of the Board of Directors of Consolidated Edison Company of New York, Inc. since 1999, and is currently a member of its Audit Committee and Chairman of its Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee. Mr. Del Giudice has served as a director of Reis, Inc. since 2007 and was a director of Barnes and Noble, Inc. through September 2010. He is also Vice Chairman of the New York Racing Association and serves as Chairman of the Governor's Committee on Scholastic Achievement. Mr. Del Giudice was a General Partner and Managing Director at Lazard Freres & Co. LLC from 1985 to 1995. From 1983 to 1985, Mr. Del Giudice was Chief of Staff to New York Governor Mario M. Cuomo. He served from 1979 to 1981 as Deputy Chief of Staff to Governor Hugh L. Carey and from 1975 to 1979 as Chief of Staff to the Speaker of the Assembly. The Board believes that Mr. Del Giudice's background as a Senior Managing Director in securities and investment firms, an investment banker, Chief of Staff to the Governor and an active corporate director provides Mr. Del Guidice with the financial and leadership experience to be a valuable advisor to executive management and the Board.

Larry Blum, Director

Mr. Blum was the Senior Partner of the Florida Region of Marcum LLP (formerly known as Marcum Rachlin) from 2009 until December 31, 2011. For more than 18 years, Mr. Blum served as the Managing Partner of Rachlin LLP, directing the firm's growth to its position as Florida's largest independent accounting and business advisory firm up until its merger with Marcum LLP in 2009. Mr. Blum has also served as a litigation advisor and is a member of the Florida Bar. The Board believes that Mr. Blum's background as a managing partner of a public accounting firm and his expertise in the areas of strategic planning, mergers and acquisitions and domestic and international taxation provides him with the financial and leadership experience to be a valuable advisor to executive management and the Board

Gordon Hutchins, Jr., President, Chief Operating Officer, and Acting Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Hutchins has served as our President and Chief Operating Officer since March 2008 and as Acting Chief Financial Officer since January 15, 2010. Mr. Hutchins served as our Executive Vice President from December 2005 to March 2008. Prior to his employment with Fusion, Mr. Hutchins served as President and Chief Executive Officer of SwissFone, Inc., a \$100 million telecommunications carrier. Prior to SwissFone, Mr. Hutchins was President and Chief Executive Officer of STAR Telecommunications, Inc., an \$800 million international telecommunications carrier, where he was hired to lead the company's restructuring following the filing of its bankruptcy petition. Mr. Hutchins has also served since 1989 as President and CEO of GH Associates, Inc., a management-consulting firm that he founded. In this capacity, he has consulted to over 100 small and large telecommunications companies throughout the world, and has held ten interim CEO/COO roles with client companies. As an entrepreneur, Mr. Hutchins also founded Telecom One, Inc., a nationwide long distance carrier that he sold to Broadwing Communications Inc., and TCO Network Services, Inc., a local wireless services carrier purchased by Winstar Communications, Inc. During his early career, Mr. Hutchins served as President and CEO of LDX NET, Inc., a fiber optic network company, and held positions with MCI, McDonnell Douglas Corporation, and AT&T.

Jan Sarro, Executive Vice President - Corporate Services

Ms. Sarro has served as our Executive Vice President – Corporate Services since March 2008. Ms. Sarro served as our Executive Vice President of Carrier Services from April 2005 to March 2008, and as Vice President of Sales and Marketing since March 2002. Prior to joining us, Ms. Sarro was the President of the Americas for Viatel, Inc., a global, facilities-based communications carrier, and has over 20 years of experience in developing telecommunications solutions for international businesses and carriers worldwide. At Viatel, Ms. Sarro grew annual carrier revenues from \$20 million to \$160 million in under two years, and built a \$140 million sales organization to market Internet access, corporate networks, and international voice services to multinational corporations in the United States and Latin America. Ms. Sarro has also held senior executive marketing and sales management positions at Argo Communications, the international record carriers, FTC Communications, TRT Communications and WorldCom.

Board of Directors

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

The Board of Directors oversees our business affairs and monitors the performance of management. In accordance with our corporate governance principles, the Board of Directors does not involve itself in day-to-day operations. The directors keep themselves informed through discussions with the Chief Executive Officer and our other executive officers and by reading the reports and other materials that we send them and by participating in Board of Directors and committee meetings. If any director resigns, dies or is otherwise unable to serve out his or her term, or if the Board increases the number of directors, the Board may fill any vacancy by a vote of a majority of the directors then in office. A director elected to fill a vacancy shall serve for the unexpired term of his or her predecessor. Vacancies occurring by reason of the removal of directors without cause may only be filled by vote of the stockholders.

The Company's bylaws provide that the number of members of the Company's Board shall be not be less than seven nor more than seventeen and that a director's term extends from the date of his or her election at each Annual Meeting of Stockholders until the Company's next Annual Meeting of Stockholders. There are currently nine directors on the Board. Evelyn Langlieb Greer chose not to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors and two new directors, Larry Blum and William Rubin, were elected to the Board at the Company's 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The Board held 6 meetings in 2011. With the exception of Julius Erving, all incumbent directors attended at least 75% of the meetings that were held

Committees of the Board

The board has established a Compensation and Nominating Committee, a Strategic and Investment Banking Committee, and an Audit Committee (collectively the "Committees") to devote attention to specific subjects and to assist the board in the discharge of its responsibilities. The functions of the Committees and their current members are set forth below:

Compensation and Nominating Committee

Our Compensation and Nominating Committee's (the "Compensation Committee") main functions are (i) to review and recommend to our Board of Directors compensation and equity plans, policies and programs and approve Executive Officer compensation, and (ii) to review and recommend to our Board of Directors the nominees for election as Directors of the Company and to review related Board of Directors development issues including succession planning and evaluation. The members of our Compensation Committee are Michael J. Del Giudice—Chairman, Paul C. O'Brien and Julius Erving, each of whom is a non-employee member of our Board. Our Board has determined that each of the Directors serving on our Compensation Committee is independent within the existing standards of the NYSE Amex LLC Company Guide. The charter of our Compensation Committee is posted on our website (www.fusiontel.com), and a copy of the charter can be obtained by contacting our Corporate Secretary at the address previously provided for Communications with Directors. The information on our website is neither incorporated by reference nor a part of this report.

The Compensation Committee has not established any procedures for the recommendation or selection of director nominees by our stockholders. The Company intends during the coming year to consider a procedure for stockholders to propose director nominees for the Company's Board. The Compensation Committee held two meetings during 2011.

Strategic and Investment Banking Committed 1 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

The members of our Strategic and Investment Banking Committee (the "Strategic Committee") are Marvin S. Rosen – Chairman, E. Alan Brumberger, Michael Del Giudice, and Philip D. Turits. Our Strategic Committee evaluates and recommends investment strategies with investment banks and brokerage houses and assists in the evaluation of potential mergers and acquisitions. There is no written charter for the Strategic Committee. The Strategic Committee acts at the direction of the Board of Directors. The Strategic Committee did not meet in 2011.

Audit Committee

Our Audit Committee's primary function is to oversee our accounting and financial reporting processes, internal control systems, independent accountant relationships, the audits of our financial statements and our compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. This Committee's responsibilities include, among other things:

- Reviewing our quarterly financial statements and annual audited financial statements with our management and our independent accountants and determining the adequacy of our internal accounting controls.
- Reviewing analyses prepared by our management and independent accountants concerning significant financial reporting issues and judgments made in connection with the preparation of our financial statements.
- Reviewing the independence of the independent accountants.
- Reviewing our accounting principles and practices with the independent accountants and reviewing major changes to our accounting principles and practices as suggested by the independent accountants or our management.
- Selecting and recommending the appointment of the independent accountants to the Board of Directors, which firm is ultimately accountable to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors; and
- Approving professional services provided by the independent accountants, including the range of audit and non-audit fees.
- Ensuring that management has established a system to monitor and enforce our Code of Ethics and reviewing and monitoring the Company's corporate governance practices.

The members of our Audit Committee in 2011 were Paul C. O'Brien – Chairman, Michael Del Giudice and Julius Erving, each of whom is a non-employee member of our Board. Michael Del Giudice is our Audit Committee Financial Expert as currently defined under SEC Rules. Our Board has also determined that each of the directors serving on our Audit Committee is independent within the meaning of the Rules of the SEC and within the existing standards of the NYSE Amex LLC Company Guide. The charter of our Audit Committee is posted on our website (www.fusiontel.com), and a copy of the charter can also be obtained by contacting our Corporate Secretary. The information on our website is neither incorporated by reference nor a part of this report. The Audit Committee held four meetings in 2011.

With respect to the year ended December 31, 2011, in addition to its other work, the Audit Committee:

- Reviewed and discussed with management and Rothstein Kass, our independent registered public accounting firm, our audited consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2011 and the year then ended.
- Discussed with Rothstein Kass the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, "Communication with Audit Committees," as amended, with respect to its review of the findings of the independent registered public accounting firm during its examination of our financial statements; and
 - Received from Rothstein Kass written affirmation of its independence as required by the Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, "Independence Discussions with Audit Committees." In addition, the Audit Committee discussed with
- Rothstein Kass its independence and determined that the provision of non-audit services was compatible with maintaining auditor independence.

Based on the review and discussion summarized above, the Audit Committee recommended that the Board of Directors include the audited consolidated financial statements in the 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K for filing with the SEC.

Shareholder Communications with Directo 2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

The Board recommends that communications with the Board be initiated, in writing, addressed to:

Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc.

Attention: Corporate Secretary- Shareholder Communications
420 Lexington Avenue, Suite 1718

New York, New York 10170

This centralized process will assist the Board in reviewing and responding to Stockholder communications in an appropriate manner. The name of any specific intended Board recipient should be noted in the communication. The Board has instructed our Secretary to forward such correspondence only to the intended recipients; however, the Board has also instructed our Secretary, prior to forwarding any correspondence, to review such correspondence and, in his or her discretion, not to forward certain items if they are deemed of a commercial or frivolous nature or otherwise inappropriate for the Board's consideration. In such cases, some of that correspondence may be forwarded elsewhere within the Company for review and possible response.

Code of Ethics

On November 1, 2004, we adopted a Code of Ethics applicable to all members of our board, executive officers, and senior financial officers. A copy of our Code of Ethics is posted on our website (www.fusiontel.com) and a copy of the Code of Ethics can be obtained by contacting our Corporate Secretary at the address previously provided for Communications with Directors. Disclosure of amendments to or waivers from the provisions of the Code of Ethics will be publicly disclosed in accordance with applicable rules and regulations, and will be posted on the Company's website. The information on our website is neither incorporated by reference nor a part of this report.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act requires disclosure from every person who is directly or indirectly the beneficial owner of more than 10% of any class of any equity security (other than an exempted security) which is registered pursuant to Section 12, or is a director or an officer of the issuer of such security, by filing the statements required by Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

Based solely upon the Company's review of Forms 3 and 4 and amendments thereto furnished to us during or with respect to our most recent fiscal year, and Forms 5 and amendments thereto furnished to us with respect to our most recent fiscal year and any written representation from a reporting person (as defined in Item 405 of Regulation S-K) that no Form 5 is required, no reporting person failed to timely file reports required by Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act during the most recent fiscal year or prior fiscal years.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Executive Officers Summary Compensation Table

The following table summarizes all compensation recorded by us in each of the last two completed fiscal years for (i) our Principal Executive Officer, (ii) our two most highly compensated executive officers (other than our Principal Executive Officer), who were serving as such on December 31, 2011, and whose annual compensation exceeded \$100,000 and (iii) up to two additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been required but for the fact that the individual was not serving as an executive officer at December 31, 2011. The value attributable to any option awards is computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718.

	2011 AN	NUA	L REPOR	T ON	FORM 1	0-K		1	All Other		
						Opt	ion Awards	Co	mpensation		
		S	Salary (1)	В	onus (1)		(2)		(3)		Total
Name and Principal Position	Year		(\$)		(\$)		(\$)		(\$)	(\$)	
Matthew D. Rosen	2011	\$	350,000	\$	-	\$	26,336	\$	1,805	\$	378,141
CEO	2010	\$	350,000	\$	-	\$	43,832	\$	3,121	\$	396,953
Gordon Hutchins, Jr.	2011	\$	220,000	\$	-	\$	15,337	\$	405	\$	235,742
President, COO, and Acting CFO	2010	\$	220,000	\$	-	\$	24,185	\$	351	\$	244,536
Jan Sarro	2011	\$	155,000	\$	-	\$	8,487	\$	405	\$	163,892
Executive VP - Corporate Solutions	2010	\$	155,000	\$	-	\$	11,738	\$	351	\$	167,089

⁽¹⁾ Included in these columns are amounts earned, though not necessarily received, during the corresponding fiscal year.

(2) This column reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, for option awards pursuant to the Company's 1998 and 2009 Stock Option Plans, and may include amounts from awards granted both in and prior to 2011. The value attributable to option awards is computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, and the assumptions made in the valuations of the option awards are included in Note 3 (Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Stock Based Compensation) of the notes to our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions.

(3) Represents life insurance premiums paid by the Company.

Employment Agreements, Termination of Employment and Change-In-Control Arrangement

We currently have a written employment agreement with Mr. Matthew Rosen, our Chief Executive Officer. The term of Mr. Rosen's employment agreement commenced on November 11, 2004 and, following the expiration of the initial term of the agreement on January 31, 2007, has been periodically renewed thereafter by mutual agreement of the parties, with the current term due to expire on September 30, 2013. The agreement provides for an annual salary of not less than \$350,000, with a minimum annual bonus equal to 25% of his annual salary. Mr. Rosen has voluntarily waived his bonus opportunity since December of 2006, pending improvement in the Company's financial position. In the event that we achieve a positive EBITDA for two successive quarters, he will be paid a one-time bonus equal to 50% of his annual salary then in effect. In the event that Mr. Rosen's employment is terminated without cause, including as a result of a change of control, the agreement provides that Mr. Rosen will receive unpaid base salary accrued through the effective date of the termination plus any pro-rata bonus earned and a lump sum payment equal to 200% of his base salary plus 200% of his highest annual bonus for the three years preceding his termination. Had such an event had occurred on December 31, 2011, the amount due to Mr. Rosen would have been \$700,000. The agreement also includes a one-year non-compete provision. In the event of a sale of the Company for an amount in excess of \$100 million, Mr. Rosen would receive a bonus equal to 2% of proceeds of sale between \$100 million and \$200 million, 3% of proceeds of sale between \$200 million and \$300 million, 4% of proceeds of sale between \$300 million and \$400 million, and 5% of proceeds of sale over \$400 million.

Mr. Gordon Hutchins Jr. serves as President, Chief Operating Officer, and Acting Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. Hutchins does not have a written employment agreement with the Company. His promotion to President and Chief Operating Officer on March 26, 2008 included an increase in his annual salary from \$220,000 to \$250,000, and he retains a targeted bonus opportunity equal to 25% of annual salary, based on achievement of corporate performance metrics. Mr. Hutchins voluntarily waived the increase in his annual salary from March 2008 through December 31, 2011, and effective January 1, 2012, his annual salary was increased to \$250,000. No bonuses have been awarded as the corporate performance metrics have not been achieved.

Ms. Jan Sarro serves as Executive Vice President – Corporate Solutions. Ms. Sarro does not have a written employment agreement with the Company. Effective February 15, 2012, Ms. Sarro's annual salary was increased to \$175,000. Ms. Sarro is entitled to a targeted bonus opportunity equal to 25% of annual salary, based on achievement of corporate performance metrics. No bonuses have been awarded as the corporate performance metrics have not been achieved.

The Compensation of each executive officer is determined by negotiations between the Compensation Committee and those executive officers, which are then subject to approval by the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Our directors do not receive cash compensation for their services on the Company's board or board committees. However, we reimburse our directors for out-of-pocket expenses associated with their attendance at board meetings and we grant directors options under our stock option plans as compensation for their services.

Change in

The following table provides information relating to compensation paid to the Company's directors for the 2011 fiscal year.

							Pe	and		All Other		
Fees Earned Or			Op	tion Awards	N	lon-Equity		Deferred	C	ompensation		
Paid In Cash	Sto	ck Awards		(1)	In	centive Plan	Co	mpensation		(2)		Total
(S)		(\$)		(\$)	Co	mpensation		Earnings		(\$)		(\$)
\$ -	\$	-	\$	774	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	774
\$ -	\$	-	\$	774	\$	-	\$	-	\$	_	\$	774
\$ -	\$	-	\$	774	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	774
\$ -	\$	-	\$	774	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	774
\$ -	\$	-	\$	774	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	774
\$ -	\$	=	\$	774	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	774
\$ -	\$	-	\$	774	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	774
\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
	Paid In Cash (S) \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -	Paid In Cash (S) \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$	Paid In Cash (S) Stock Awards (S) \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -	Paid In Cash (S) Stock Awards (S) \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$ \$ - \$	Paid In Cash (S) Stock Awards (S) (1) (S) \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774	Paid In Cash (S) Stock Awards (S) (1) (S) Indicate (S) \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Paid In Cash (S) Stock Awards (S) (1) (S) Incentive Plan Compensation \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ 774 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -	Pees Earned Or Paid In Cash (S)	Pension Value and Nonqualified Paid In Cash (S)	Fees Earned Or Paid In Cash (S) (S) (S) Compensation (S) S S S S S S S S S	Pension Value and Nonqualified All Other	Pension Value and Nonqualified All Other

⁽¹⁾ This column reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, for option awards pursuant to the Company's 1998 and 2009 Stock Option Plans and may include amounts from awards granted both in and prior to 2011. The value attributable to option awards is computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, and the assumptions made in the valuations of the option awards are included in Note 3 (Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Stock Based Compensation) of the notes to our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

- (2) The table does not include reimbursement for out of pocket expenses associated with attendance at board meetings.
- (3) Ms. Greer chose not to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
- (4) Elected to the Board of Directors at the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders on February 27, 2012.

Stock Option Plans

On December 17, 2009, the stockholders approved and adopted the Company's 2009 Stock Option Plan (the "2009 Plan"), which had been approved by the board of directors on March 26, 2009. This plan replaced the 1998 Stock Option Plan, which had expired. The 2009 Plan provides a long-term, equity-based incentive designed to assist in the retention of key personnel, align the interests of directors, executive officers and employees with those of the stockholders and focus all of these individuals on the achievement of those long-term business objectives that will increase share value.

Under the 2009 Plan, the Company has reserved 7,000,000 common shares for the award from time to time of stock options. Stock options awarded under the 2009 Plan may either be options that qualify as incentive stock options under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("Incentive Stock Options"), or, alternatively, as options that do not so qualify ("Non Qualified Options"). Any Incentive Stock Options granted under the 2009 Plan must provide for an exercise price of not less than 100% of the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of grant.

43

conditions of the stock options.

The 2009 Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. The Compensation Committee, subject to the approval of the full Board of Directors, will determine, from time to-time, those of our officers, directors and employees to whom stock options will be granted, as well as the actual number of options granted to each individual, the vesting schedule and the other terms and

As of December 31, 2011, there were outstanding of NNI to pare last 1, 2019, the pare last 2, 2019, and options to purchase 3, 159, 500 shares were available for future award. In addition, options to purchase 2, 793, 261 shares of common stock remain outstanding under the now expired 1998 Stock Option Plan, with such options expiring at various dates through 2019.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Year End

The following table provides information concerning unexercised options and stock awards that have not vested for each named executive officer as of December 31, 2011.

Repair Full Part Full Pa			OPTION .	AWARDS			STOCK AWARDS						
Matthew D. Rosen	Name	securities underlying unexercised options, (#)	securities underlying unexercised options, (#)	incentive plan awards; Number of securities underlying unexercised unearned	•	exercise	expiration	shares or units of stock that have not	value of shares or units of stock that have not	incentive plan awards; Number of unearned shares, units or other rights that have not	incentive plan awards; Number of unearned shares, units or other rights that have not		
Continue	Matthew D.				Ť	(1)			(1)				
218,572	Rosen	62,143	0	0	\$	3.15	7/13/2014	0	0	0	0		
218,572						4.38	7/13/2014						
107,142			0					0					
132,858				0									
350,000			0	0	\$	2.46	3/6/2016	0	0	0	0		
350,000		160,000	0	0	\$	2.28	6/15/2016	0	0	0	0		
233,334		350,000	0	0	\$	0.69	3/28/2017	0	0	0	0		
145,834 291,666 0 \$ 0.12 4/14/2020 0 0 0 0 0 0		350,000	0	0	\$	0.31	3/25/2018	0	0	0	0		
Total Matthew D. Rosen 1,822,026 845,832 Gordon Hutchins, Jr. 107,142 0 0 \$ \$ 2.80 3/6/2016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 175,000 0 0 \$ \$ 2.65 3/6/2016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 175,000 0 0 \$ \$ 0.69 3/28/2017 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		233,334	116,666	0	\$	0.11	3/25/2019	0	0	0	0		
Total Matthew D. Rosen 1,822,026 845,832 Gordon Hutchins, Jr. 107,142 0 0 0 \$ 2.80 3/6/2016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17,858 0 0 \$ 2.65 3/6/2016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		145,834	291,666	0	\$	0.12	4/14/2020	0	0	0	0		
Matthew D. Rosen 1,822,026 845,832 Gordon Hutchins, Jr. 107,142 0 0 \$ 2.80 3/6/2016 0 0 0 0 0 175,000 0 0 \$ 2.65 3/6/2016 0<			437,500	0	\$	0.09	10/19/2021	0	0	0	0		
Hutchins, Jr. 107,142 0 0 \$ 2.80 3/6/2016 0	Matthew D.	1,822,026	845,832										
Hutchins, Jr. 107,142 0 0 \$ 2.80 3/6/2016 0	Condon												
17,858		107 142	0	0	¢	2.90	2/6/2016	0	0	0	0		
175,000	nutchins, Jr.												
200,000													
133,334 66,666 0 \$ 0.11 3/25/2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 83,334 166,666 0 \$ 0.12 4/14/2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0													
83,334 166,666 0 \$ 0.12 4/14/2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0													
Total Gordon Hutchins, Jr. 716,668 558,332 Jan Sarro 4,993 0 0 \$ 4.38 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 0 12,865 0 0 \$ 4.38 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 28,572 0 0 \$ 4.38 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 17,858 0 0 \$ 3.15 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 20,000 0 0 \$ 6.45 2/9/2015 0 0 0													
Total Gordon Hutchins, Jr. 716,668 558,332 Jan Sarro 4,993 0 0 \$ 4.38 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 0 12,865 0 0 \$ 4.38 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 28,572 0 0 \$ 4.38 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 17,858 0 0 \$ 3.15 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 20,000 0 0 \$ 6.45 2/9/2015 0 0 0													
12,865 0 0 \$4.38 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 0 28,572 0 0 \$4.38 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 0 17,858 0 0 \$3.15 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 0 20,000 0 0 \$6.45 2/9/2015 0 0 0 0	Gordon		,	Ü	Þ	0.03	10/19/2021	Ü	Ū	Ü	Ü		
12,865 0 0 \$4.38 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 0 28,572 0 0 \$4.38 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 0 17,858 0 0 \$3.15 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 0 20,000 0 0 \$6.45 2/9/2015 0 0 0 0	Jan Sarro	4 993	0	n	\$	4 38	7/14/2014	0	0	0	0		
28,572 0 0 \$4.38 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 0 17,858 0 0 \$3.15 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000 0 0 \$6.45 2/9/2015 0 0 0 0 0	Jan Dailt												
17,858 0 0 \$ 3.15 7/14/2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000 0 0 \$ 6.45 2/9/2015 0 0 0 0													
20,000 0 0 \$ 6.45 2/9/2015 0 0 0 0													

	60,000	0	0	\$ 0.69	3/29/2017	0	0	0	0
	100,000	0	0	\$ 0.31	3/26/2018	0	0	0	0
	66,667	33,333	0	\$ 0.11	3/26/2019	0	0	0	0
	50,000	100,000	0	\$ 0.12	4/14/2020	0	0	0	0
	0	175,000	0	\$ 0.09	10/19/2021	0	0	0	0
Total Jan Sarro	380,955	308,333							

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CENTAIN BENEFICORT OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table presents information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of February 29, 2012 by:

- Each person who beneficially owns more than 5% of our common stock
- Each of our Directors and Named Executive Officers (within the meaning of Item 402(a)(3) of Regulation S-K) individually; and
- All Executive Officers and Directors as a group.

Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner in the table set forth below is c/o Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc. 420 Lexington Avenue, Suite 1718, New York, NY 10170. We believe that all persons, unless otherwise noted, named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock shown as being owned by them. Under securities laws, a person is considered to be the beneficial owner of securities owned by him (or certain persons whose ownership is attributed to him) and that can be acquired by him within 60 days from that date, including upon the exercise of options, warrants or convertible securities. We determine a beneficial owner's percentage ownership by assuming that options, warrants or convertible securities that are held by him, but not those held by any other person, and which are exercisable within 60 days of the that date, have been exercised or converted.

		Number of	
		Shares	
		Beneficially	Percentage of
Name and Address of Beneficial Owners		Owned	Common Stock
Larry Blum	(1)	847,013	*0/0
E. Alan Brumberger	(2)	2,321,207	1.4%
Julius Erving	(3)	134,911	*%
Michael J. Del Giudice	(4)	2,124,171	1.3%
Gordon Hutchins, Jr.	(5)	1,681,294	1.0%
Paul C. O'Brien	(6)	253,537	*0/0
Marvin S. Rosen	(7)	25,447,157	15.1%
Matthew D. Rosen	(8)	3,002,547	1.8%
William Rubin	(9)	2,837,438	1.7%
Jan Sarro	(10)	707,362	*0/0
Philip D. Turits	(11)	10,221,242	6.2%
All Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (11 persons)		49,577,879	27.9%
West End Special Opportunity Fund II, LP	(12)	19,887,286	12.2%

^{*} Less than 1% of outstanding shares.

- (1) Includes (i) 636,907 shares of common stock held by trusts for which his wife serves as trustee, and (ii) 179,963 shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of Common Stock Purchase Warrants held by trusts for which his wife serves as trustee.
- (2) Includes (i) 10,715 shares of common stock held by trusts for which his wife serves as trustee, (ii) 18,037 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of Convertible Preferred Stock Series A-1 and A-2, (iii) 90,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options, and (iv) 461,211 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of Common Stock Purchase Warrants.
- (3) Includes (i) 90,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options, (ii) 29,940 shares of common stock issuable upon the conversion of Convertible Preferred Stock Series A-1, and (iii) 14,971 Common Stock Purchase Warrants.
- (4) Includes (i) 90,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options, (ii) 492,802 Common Stock Purchase Warrants, of which 59,881 are held in the name of Catskill Investor Group, LLC, and (iii) 119,760 shares of common stock issuable upon the conversion of Convertible Preferred Stock Series A-1 held in the name of Catskill Investor Group, LLC.
- (5) Includes (i) 1,275,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options, (ii) 30,121 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of Preferred Stock Series A-2, and (iii) 98,395 Common Stock Purchase Warrants.

- (6) Includes (i) 90,000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of Preferred Stock Series A-1, and (iii) 31,275 Common Stock Purchase Warrants.
- (7) Includes (i) 5,974,958 Common Stock Purchase Warrants, (ii) 90,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options, and (iii) 60,061 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of Convertible Stock Series A-1 and A-2, and (iv) 80,500 shares of common stock held by a Delaware Trust Custodian IRA of Mr. Rosen.
- (8) Includes (i) 2,667,858 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options, (ii) 35,965 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of Convertible Preferred Stock Series A-1 and A-2, and (iii) 67,985 Common Stock Purchase Warrants.
- (9) Includes 630,756 Common Stock Purchase Warrants.
- (10) Includes (i) 689,288 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options, (ii) 12,049 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of Convertible Preferred Stock A-2, held by her husband, and (iii) 6,025 Common Stock Purchase Warrants, held by her husband.
- (11) Includes (i) 4,286 shares of common stock held by his wife, (ii) 1,995,600 Common Stock Purchase Warrants; and (iii) 90,000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of options; and (iv) 51,117 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of Convertible Preferred Stock A-1 and A-2.
- (12) Includes (i) 18,689,966 shares of common stock and (ii) 1,197,320 Common Stock Purchase Warrants. The address provided by the named Stockholder is 77 East 55th Street, New York, NY 10022.

Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2011.

	Number Of		
	Securities To	Weighted	
	Be Issued Upon	Average	Number of
	Exercise of	Exercise Price	Securities
	Outstanding	Of Outstanding	Remaining
	Options,	Options,	Available For
	Warrants and	Warrants and	Future
Plan Category	Rights	Rights	Issuance
1998 Stock Option Plan, equity compensation plans approved by security holders	2,793,261	\$ 1.63	
2009 Stock Option Plan, equity compensation plans approved by security holders	3,841,000	\$ 0.11	3,159,000
Total	6,634,261	\$ 0.75	3,159,000

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATIONSHIPS, RELATIONSHIPS, REPORT ON PROPERTY OF THE PERSON OF TH

Officer and Director Loans to Company

During 2011, the Company borrowed approximately \$3,200,000 from its Chairman of the Board, Marvin Rosen, \$347,000 of which was repaid during the year. These loans were evidenced by a series of short-term promissory notes, each of which is payable in full upon ten days notice from the lender and bear interest at the rate of 3.25% per annum. Each note also grants Mr. Rosen a collateralized security interest, pari passu with other lenders, if any, in the Company's accounts receivable. During 2011, Mr. Rosen converted \$351,000 of previously issued promissory notes into 4,981,151 shares of the Company's common stock and warrants to purchase 1,275,996 shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable for a period of five years from the respective dates of debt conversion at exercise prices ranging from 112.5% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to the date of the conversion. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had an aggregate principal amount of outstanding demand notes payable to Mr. Rosen and his affiliates in the amount of \$4,922,000 and, to date, the Company has not received a demand for payment. In connection with an accounts receivable financing arrangement entered into by the Company during 2011, Mr. Rosen has agreed to subordinate his security interest in the Company's accounts receivable.

During 2010, the Company borrowed an aggregate of \$1,750,000 from Marvin Rosen. These loans were evidenced by a series of promissory notes, each bearing interest at the rate of 3.25% per annum with maturities extending through January 2011, at which point the notes automatically converted to demand notes, and the principal sum and all accrued interest under each note is now payable in full upon ten days notice from Mr. Rosen. Each note also grants the Mr. Rosen a collateralized security interest, pari passu with other lenders, if any, in the Company's accounts receivable. At various times during 2010, Mr. Rosen converted a total of \$725,000 of indebtedness evidenced by such promissory notes into an aggregate of 5,320,002 shares of the Company's common stock and warrants to purchase a total of 2,360,004 shares of the Company's common stock. The warrants are generally exercisable for a period of five years from the respective dates of debt conversion at exercise prices ranging from 120% to 150% of the closing price of the Company's common stock on the date of the conversion.

Director Independence

The Company applies the standards of NYSE Amex LLC (the "Exchange"), for determining the independence of the members of its Board of Directors and board committees. Based upon its application of those standards, the Board of Directors has determined that the following members of the Company's Board of Directors (and committee members, as applicable) are independent:

Larry Blum
E. Alan Brumberger
Julius Erving
William Rubin
Paul C. O'Brien
Michael J. Del Giudice

HTEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEELS AND STATUFE FORT ON FORM 10-K.

The aggregate fees billed to the Company for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 by the Company's principal accounting firm, Rothstein Kass ("RK"), are as follows:

Audit and Audit-Related Fees

The fees billed for professional services rendered by RK for the years ended December 31, 2011, and 2010 were approximately \$142,500 and \$147,000, respectively. These professional services included fees associated with the audit of the Company's annual financial statements and reviews of the Company's quarterly financial statements.

Tax Related Fees

There were no fees incurred for tax-related services for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

All Other Fees

There were no fees for other services that were not included in the categories above during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services Of Independent Accountants

Consistent with SEC policies regarding auditor independence, the Audit Committee has the responsibility for appointing, setting compensation, and overseeing the work of the independent accountants. In recognition of this responsibility, the Audit Committee has established a policy to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent accountant.

Prior to engagement of the independent accounting ANN IOA In Part 10 Por 12 Por 12 Consolidated financial statements, management will submit to the Audit Committee for approval an aggregate of services expected to be rendered during that year for each of the three categories of services.

Audit services include audit work performed in the preparation of financial statements, as well as work that generally only the independent accountants can reasonably be expected to provide, including comfort letters, statutory audits and attest services and consultation regarding financial accounting and/or reporting standards.

Audit-Related services are for assurance and related services that are traditionally performed by the independent accountants, including due diligence related to mergers and acquisitions, employee benefit plan audits, and special procedures required to meet certain regulatory requirements. Other Fees are those fees associated with services not captured in the other categories. The Company generally does not request such services from the independent accountants.

Prior to engagement, the Audit Committee pre-approves these services by category of service. During the year, circumstances may arise when it may become necessary to engage the independent accounting firm for additional services not contemplated in the original pre-approval. In those instances, the Audit Committee requires specific pre-approval before engaging the independent accountant.

The Audit Committee may delegate pre-approval authority to one or more of its members. The member to whom such authority is delegated must report, for informational purposes only, any pre-approval decisions to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting.

2011 ANNUAL BEFORTION FORM 10-K

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

(a) (1) Financial Statements.

The consolidated financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, are identified in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a) (2) Exhibits.

The following exhibits are filed herewith or are incorporated by reference to exhibits previously filed with the SEC.

Exhibit No.	Description
3.1	Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (*)
3.1(a)	Certificate of Designation of Series C Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock (*)
3.1(a) 3.1(b)	Certificate of Designation of Series & Convertible Redeemable Frederical Stock (7) Certificate of Designation of the Rights and Preferences of the Series A-2 Preferred Stock (6)
3.1(c)	Certificate of Designation of the Rights and Preferences of the Series A-4 Preferred Stock (9)
3.1(d)	Form of Subscription Agreement (7)
3.1(d)	Certificate of Designation of the Rights and Preferences of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock (5)
3.1(c)	Bylaws (*)
10.1	1998 Stock Option Plan (*)
10.1	Employment Agreement between registrant and Matthew Rosen (*)
10.2.1	Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between registrant and Matthew Rosen (3)
10.2.1	Master Service Agreement between registrant and Terremark Worldwide, Inc., dated May 29, 2003 (*)
10.5	Joint Venture Agreement between registrant and Karamco, Inc., dated December 12, 2002 (*)
10.3	Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (*)
10.7	Lease Agreement between registrant and SLG Graybar Sublease, LLC for the 420 Lexington Avenue, New York, NY
	office (*)
10.8.1	Lease Modification Agreement dated November 1, 2005, between registrant and SLG Graybar Sublease, LLC for the 420
	Lexington Avenue, New York, NY office (8)
10.8.2	Lease Modification Agreement dated November 1, 2005, between registrant and SLG Graybar Sublease, LLC for the 420
	Lexington Avenue, New York, NY office (8)
10.8.3	Lease Agreement dated November 1, 2005, between registrant and SLG Graybar Sublease, LLC for the 420 Lexington Avenue, New York, NY office (8)
10.9	Lease Agreement between registrant and 67 Broad Street LLC for the 75 Broad Street, New York, NY office (*)
10.10	Lease Agreement between registrant and Fort Lauderdale Crown Center, Inc. for the Fort Lauderdale, Florida office, as amended (*)
10.10.1	Amendment dated February 10, 2006, to Lease Agreement between registrant and Fort Lauderdale Crown Center, Inc., for the Fort Lauderdale, Florida office, as amended (8)
10.11	Lease Agreement between Efonica FZ- LLC and Dubai Internet City for Dubai offices (8)
10.13	Shareholders Joint Venture Agreement between registrant and Communications Ventures Index Pvt. Ltd., dated March 11, 2000 (*)
10.19	Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by registrant to Marvin Rosen, dated July 31, 2002 (*)
10.20	Form of Promissory Note and Security Agreement (2)
10.21	Agreement with MCI Communications Services, Inc., dated September 20, 2006 (2)
10.22	Agreement with VCG dated June 10, 2004 (2)
10.23	Agreement with Qwest Communications Corporation dated April 22, 2002 (2)
10.24	Agreement with AT&T dated April 13, 2006 (2)
10.25	Agreement with T-Systems, Inc., dated October 24, 2002 (2)
10.28	Non-Competition Agreement between registrant and Marvin Rosen (*)

Attached thereto, dated December 16, 2004, as amended and restated, dated January 11, 2005 (*) Stock Purchase Agreement between registrant, Efonica FZ-LLC and Karamco, Inc., dated January 11, 2005 and the amendment thereto (*) Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement between registrant, Efonica FZ-LLC and Karamco, Inc., dated March 2 2006 (8) Carrier Service Agreement for International Terminating Traffic between the registrant and Qwest Communication Corporation, dated May 17, 2000 (*) Carrier Service Agreement between registrant and Telco Group, Inc. dated April 3, 2001, as amended (*) Colocation License Agreement between the registrant and Telco Group, dated January 28, 2002 (*) International VolP Agreement, dated April 25, 2002, as amended (*) Lease Agreement dated April 28, 2005, between Convergent Technologies Limited and Oceanic Digital Jamaica Limited (**) Promissory Note issued by iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited; iFreedom Communication Corporation; iFreedom Communications (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.; iFreedom Communications, Inc.; iFreedom Communications Hong Kong Limited and iFreedom UK, Ltd., jointly and severally, to Registrant. (8) Form of Subscription Agreement (5) Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billi Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust (1) Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust (1) Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) Certification of President Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-O		TOSION TELECOMMONICATIONS INTERCATIONAL, INC.
10.31.1 Stock Purchase Agreement between registrant, Efonica FZ-LLC and Karamco, Inc., dated January 11, 2005 and the amendment thereto (*) 10.31.2 Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement between registrant, Efonica FZ-LLC and Karamco, Inc., dated March 2 2006 (8) 10.32 Carrier Service Agreement for International Terminating Traffic between the registrant and Qwest Communication Corporation, dated May 17, 2000 (*) 10.33 Carrier Service Agreement between registrant and Telco Group, Inc. dated April 3, 2001, as amended (*) 10.34 Colocation License Agreement between the registrant and Telco Group, dated January 28, 2002 (*) 10.35 International VolP Agreement, dated April 25, 2002, as amended (*) 10.36 Lease Agreement dated April 28, 2005, between Convergent Technologies Limited and Oceanic Digital Jamaica Limited (**) 10.38 Promissory Note issued by iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited; iFreedom Communication Corporation; iFreedom Communications (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.; iFreedom Communications, Inc.; iFreedom Communications Hong Kong Limited and iFreedom UK, Ltd., jointly and severally, to Registrant. (8) 10.39 Form of Subscription Agreement (5) 10.40 Form of Warrant (5) 10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billi Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust of Subsidiaries (8) 11.1 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 12.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (2) 10.1.INS*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum	10.29	Stock Purchase Agreement be Welen To Strant, RESPORTED NET MEMBERS, Ltd. and the stockholders listed on Schedule 1
amendment thereto (*) Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement between registrant, Efonica FZ-LLC and Karamco, Inc., dated March 2 2006 (8) 10.32 Carrier Service Agreement for International Terminating Traffic between the registrant and Qwest Communication Corporation, dated May 17, 2000 (*) 10.33 Carrier Service Agreement between registrant and Telco Group, Inc. dated April 3, 2001, as amended (*) 10.34 Colocation License Agreement between the registrant and Telco Group, dated January 28, 2002 (*) 10.35 International VoIP Agreement, dated April 25, 2002, as amended (*) 10.37 Lease Agreement dated April 28, 2005, between Convergent Technologies Limited and Oceanic Digital Jamaica Limited (**) 10.38 Promissory Note issued by iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited; iFreedom Communications (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.; iFreedom Communications, Inc.; iFreedom Communications Hong Kong Limited and iFreedom UK, Ltd., jointly and severally, to Registrant (8) 10.39 Form of Subscription Agreement (5) 10.40 Form of Warrant (5) 10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billi Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Ti 14 Code of Ethics of Registrant (8) 21.1 List of Subsidiaries (8) 31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Se		Attached thereto, dated December 16, 2004, as amended and restated, dated January 11, 2005 (*)
2006 (8) 10.32 Carrier Service Agreement for International Terminating Traffic between the registrant and Qwest Communication Corporation, dated May 17, 2000 (*) 10.33 Carrier Service Agreement between registrant and Telco Group, Inc. dated April 3, 2001, as amended (*) 10.34 Colocation License Agreement between the registrant and Telco Group, dated January 28, 2002 (*) 10.35 International VoIP Agreement, dated April 25, 2002, as amended (*) 10.37 Lease Agreement dated April 28, 2005, between Convergent Technologies Limited and Oceanic Digital Jamaica Limited (**) 10.38 Promissory Note issued by iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited; iFreedom Communication Corporation; iFreedom Communications (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.; iFreedom Communications, Inc.; iFreedom Communications Hong Kong Limited and iFreedom UK, Ltd., jointly and severally, to Registrant. (8) 10.39 Form of Subscription Agreement (5) 10.40 Form of Warrant (5) 10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billi Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billi Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Tr	10.31.1	Stock Purchase Agreement between registrant, Efonica FZ-LLC and Karamco, Inc., dated January 11, 2005 and the amendment thereto (*)
Corporation, dated May 17, 2000 (*) 10.33 Carrier Service Agreement between registrant and Telco Group, Inc. dated April 3, 2001, as amended (*) 10.34 Colocation License Agreement between the registrant and Telco Group, dated January 28, 2002 (*) 10.35 International VoIP Agreement, dated April 25, 2002, as amended (*) 10.37 Lease Agreement dated April 28, 2005, between Convergent Technologies Limited and Oceanic Digital Jamaica Limited (**) 10.38 Promissory Note issued by iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited; iFreedom Communication Corporation; iFreedom Communications (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.; iFreedom Communications, Inc.; iFreedom Communications Hong Kong Limited and iFreedom UK, Ltd., jointly and severally, to Registrant. (8) 10.39 Form of Subscription Agreement (5) 10.40 Form of Warrant (5) 10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30 th , 2012 between the registrant, Network Billi Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30 th , 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Ka		
10.34 Colocation License Agreement between the registrant and Teleo Group, dated January 28, 2002 (*) 10.35 International VoIP Agreement, dated April 25, 2002, as amended (*) 10.37 Lease Agreement dated April 28, 2005, between Convergent Technologies Limited and Oceanic Digital Jamaica Limited (**) 10.38 Promissory Note issued by iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited; iFreedom Communication Corporation; iFreedom Communications (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.; iFreedom Communications, Inc.; iFreedom Communications Hong Kong Limited and iFreedom UK, Ltd., jointly and severally, to Registrant. (8) 10.39 Form of Subscription Agreement (5) 10.40 Form of Warrant (5) 10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billi Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust (1) 10.43 Code of Ethics of Registrant (8) 11.1 List of Subsidiaries (8) 11.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 11.2 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 12.1 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document 101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	10.32	Carrier Service Agreement for International Terminating Traffic between the registrant and Qwest Communications Corporation, dated May 17, 2000 (*)
International VoIP Agreement, dated April 25, 2002, as amended (*) 10.37 Lease Agreement dated April 28, 2005, between Convergent Technologies Limited and Oceanic Digital Jamaica Limited (**) 10.38 Promissory Note issued by iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited; iFreedom Communication Corporation; iFreedom Communications (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.; iFreedom Communications, Inc.; iFreedom Communications Hong Kong Limited and iFreedom UK, Ltd., jointly and severally, to Registrant. (8) 10.39 Form of Subscription Agreement (5) 10.40 Form of Warrant (5) 10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billi Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust (1) 10.43 Code of Ethics of Registrant (8) 21.1 List of Subsidiaries (8) 31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 31.1. XBRL Instance Document 31.1. XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 32.1. XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 33.2. XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	10.33	Carrier Service Agreement between registrant and Telco Group, Inc. dated April 3, 2001, as amended (*)
Lease Agreement dated April 28, 2005, between Convergent Technologies Limited and Oceanic Digital Jamaica Limited (**) 10.38 Promissory Note issued by iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited; iFreedom Communication Corporation; iFreedom Communications (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.; iFreedom Communications, Inc.; iFreedom Communications Hong Kong Limited and iFreedom UK, Ltd., jointly and severally, to Registrant. (8) 10.39 Form of Subscription Agreement (5) 10.40 Form of Warrant (5) 10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billis Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust of Subsidiaries (8) 11.1 List of Subsidiaries (8) 12.1 List of Subsidiaries (8) 13.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 13.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 22.1 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 23.2 Section 1350 Certification of Schema Document 101.SCH*** XBRL Instance Document 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	10.34	Colocation License Agreement between the registrant and Telco Group, dated January 28, 2002 (*)
Limited (**) 10.38 Promissory Note issued by iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited; iFreedom Communication Corporation; iFreedom Communications (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.; iFreedom Communications, Inc.; iFreedom Communications Hong Kong Limited and iFreedom UK, Ltd., jointly and severally, to Registrant. (8) 10.39 Form of Subscription Agreement (5) 10.40 Form of Warrant (5) 10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billis Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust (1) 14 Code of Ethics of Registrant (8) 21.1 List of Subsidiaries (8) 31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (2) 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document 101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	10.35	International VoIP Agreement, dated April 25, 2002, as amended (*)
Corporation; iFreedom Communications (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.; iFreedom Communications, Inc.; iFreedom Communications Hong Kong Limited and iFreedom UK, Ltd., jointly and severally, to Registrant. (8) 10.39 Form of Subscription Agreement (5) 10.40 Form of Warrant (5) 10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billis Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the L	10.37	
10.39 Form of Subscription Agreement (5) 10.40 Form of Warrant (5) 10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30 th , 2012 between the registrant, Network Billis Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30 th , 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust (1) 14 Code of Ethics of Registrant (8) 21.1 List of Subsidiaries (8) 31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 31.2 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	10.38	
10.40 Form of Warrant (5) 10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billis Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust of Subsidiaries (8) 11.1 List of Subsidiaries (8) 11.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 12.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 12.2 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	10.39	
10.41 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 12, 2011 between registrant and Prestige Capital Corporation (10) 10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billi Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.41 10.42 10.43 10.45 10.		1 0 , ,
10.42 Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billingstems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust (1) 10.43 Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust of Subsidiaries (8) 11.1 List of Subsidiaries (8) 11.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 11.2 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 12.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document 101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document		
Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trustand Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the JK II Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust and Jonathan	10.42	Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30th, 2012 between the registrant, Network Billing
21.1 List of Subsidiaries (8) 31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 31.2 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document 101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document		Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30 th , 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group II LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust (1)
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 31.2 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 101.INS*** 101.SCH*** 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	14	Code of Ethics of Registrant (8)
31.2 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document 101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	21.1	List of Subsidiaries (8)
32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document 101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	<u>31.1</u>	Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1)
32.2 Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1) 101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document 101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	<u>31.2</u>	Certification of President Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1)
101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document 101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	<u>32.1</u>	Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1)
101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	<u>32.2</u>	Section 1350 Certification of President Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (1)
101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	101.INS***	XBRL Instance Document
101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document	101.SCH***	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	101.CAL***	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	101.DEF***	
101.PRE*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document		·

^{*} Originally filed with the Company's Registration Statement no. 33-120412 and incorporated herein by reference.

- (1) Filed herewith.
- (2) Filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed April 13, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference.
- (3) Filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 17, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference.

^{**} Originally filed with the Company's Registration Statement no. 33-120206 and incorporated herein by reference.

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or

*** prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, except as expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections.

- (4) Filed as an Exhibit to the Company's 2011 and NELDAL OR FBORTO CONTROL March 25, 2010, and incorporated herein by reference.
- (5) Filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference.
 - (6) Filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 9, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference.
- (7) Filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 23, 2007 and 8K/A on November 27, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference.
- (8) Filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 31, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference.
 - (9) Identical to Certificate of Rights and Preferences of Series A-2 Preferred Stock filed as an exhibit to Form 8-K on May 9, 2007.
- (10) Filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2011 filed on November 15, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

2011 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FUSION TELECOMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Date: March 30, 2012 By: /s/MATTHEW D. ROSEN

Matthew D. Rosen Chief Executive Officer and Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 30, 2012 By: /s/ GORDON HUTCHINS, JR.

Gordon Hutchins, Jr.
President, Chief Operating Officer, Principal
Accounting Officer
and Acting Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has also been signed below by a majority of our board of directors on the dates indicated.

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ MARVIN S. ROSEN Marvin S. Rosen	Chairman of the Board	March 30, 2012
/s/ PHILIP D. TURITS Philip D. Turits	Director	March 30, 2012
/s/ MATTHEW D. ROSEN Matthew D. Rosen	Director	March 30, 2012
/s/ E. ALAN BRUMBERGER E. Alan Brumberger	Director	March 30, 2012
/s/ JULIUS ERVING Julius Erving	Director	March 30, 2012
/s/ WILLIAM RUBIN William Rubin	Director	March 30, 2012
/s/ LARRY BLUM Larry Blum	Director	March 30, 2012
/s/ PAUL C. O'BRIEN Paul C. O'Brien	Director	March 30, 2012
/s/ MICHAEL J. DEL GIUDICE	Director	

FUSION TELECOMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL, INC. 2011 ANNIA REPORTIONIES RM 10-K

Exhibit No.	Description
10.42	Membership Interest Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30 th , 2012 between the registrant, Network Billing Systems, LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, and Christiana Trust as trustee of the LK Trust
10.43	Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 30 th , 2012 between the registrant, Interconnect Systems Group II LLC, Jonathan Kaufman, Lisa Kaufman as trustee of the JK Trust and Jonathan Kaufman as trustee of the LKII Trust
31.1	Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).
31.2	Certification of the President pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Rule 13a–14(a)/15d–14(a).
<u>32.1</u>	Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
<u>32.2</u>	Section 1350 Certification of the President pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, CFO
	54

FUSION TELECOMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL, INC. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Andre Dearmher 311 3911 canch 2010			
- "Index to Consondated Financial Statements" - "			
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	F- 1		
Consolidated Balance Sheets	F- 2		
Consolidated Statements of Operations	F- 3		
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)			
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows			
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	F- 6		
55			

REPORT OF FOREHEXIBER FIREL DESERBER 34 BY BY LAND 2010 NTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc. and Subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' deficit, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2011. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has had negative working capital balances, incurred negative cash flows from operations and net losses since inception, and has limited capital to fund future operations that raises a substantial doubt about their ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to this matter are also described in Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustment that might result from this uncertainty.

/s/ Rothstein Kass

Roseland, New Jersey March 29, 2012

For the Kison Enderliberander 21 2011 Earts 2010

	December 31, 2011	December 31, 2010		
ASSETS				
Current assets:				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 3,047	\$ 20,370		
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of				
approximately \$245,000 and \$370,000, respectively	2,400,427	2,721,585		
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	388,343	104,098		
Current assets from discontinued operations	<u> </u>	12,449		
Total current assets	2,791,817	2,858,502		
Property and equipment, net	831,402	1,124,398		
Other assets:				
Security deposits	437,141	13,330		
Restricted cash	299,536	533,437		
Intangible assets, net	165,578	409,000		
Other assets	31,494	39,486		
Total other assets	933,749	995,253		
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 4,556,968			
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT				
Current liabilities:				
Promissory notes payable - non-related parties	\$ 103,073	\$ 683,870		
Promissory notes payable - related parties	4,922,364	2,420,625		
Capital lease/equipment financing obligations, current portion	-	4,550		
Escrow payable	-	155,000		
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	9,637,947	9,178,674		
Current liabilities from discontinued operations	97,835	165,274		
Total current liabilities	14,761,219	12,607,993		
Long-term liabilities:				
Other long-term liabilities	380,243	428,646		
Commitments and contingencies				
Stockholders' deficit:				
Preferred stock, \$0.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, 5,045				
and 7,295 shares issued and outstanding	50	73		
Common stock, \$0.01 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized,				
153,711,350 and 132,010,498 shares issued and outstanding	1,537,113	1,320,105		
Capital in excess of par value	137,325,467	135,613,755		
Accumulated deficit	(149,447,124)	(144,992,419		
Total stockholders' deficit	(10,584,494)	(8,058,486		
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT	\$ 4,556,968	\$ 4,978,153		

CONSCIENCE TENENTA PENINNETS DE COPERA 10 UNS

	For the Year Ended December 31,		
	2011	2010	
Revenues	\$ 42,350,640	\$ 41,763,002	
Cost of revenues, exclusive of depreciation and amortization shown separately below	38,067,888	37,830,121	
Gross profit	4,282,752	3,932,881	
Operating expenses:			
Depreciation and amortization	516,892	847,881	
Loss on impairment of long-lived assets	163,126	19,018	
Selling general and administrative expenses (including approximately			
\$97,000 and \$254,000 of stock-based compensation for			
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010)	7,897,339	8,847,474	
Advertising and marketing	14,959	38,973	
Total operating expenses	8,592,316	9,753,346	
Operating loss	(4,309,564)	(5,820,465)	
Other income (expenses):			
Interest income	5,107	491	
Interest expense	(206,290)	(181,205)	
Other	46,319	213,956	
Total other income (expenses)	(154,864)	33,242	
Loss from continuing operations	(4,464,428)	(5,787,223)	
Discontinued operations:			
Income (loss) from discontinued operations	9,723	(12,257)	
Net loss	\$ (4,454,705)	\$ (5,799,480)	
Loss applicable to common stockholders:			
Loss from continuing operations	\$ (4,464,428)	\$ (5,787,223)	
Preferred stock dividends in arrears	(470,175)	(583,600)	
Net loss from continuing operations applicable			
to common stockholders:	(4,934,603)	(6,370,823)	
Income (loss) from discontinued operations	9,723	(12,257)	
Net loss applicable to common stockholders:	\$ (4,924,880)	\$ (6,383,080)	
Basic and diluted loss per common share:			
Loss from continuing operations	\$ (0.03)	\$ (0.05)	
Loss from discontinued operations	\$ 0.00	\$ (0.01)	
Loss per common share	\$ (0.03)	\$ (0.06)	
Weighted average common shares outstanding:			
Basic and diluted	141,688,704	115,848,332	

CONSOLIDATEIF STAITEN PARTIES OF PRINTEES IN SHOCK HOLDERS' DEFICIT

	Preferre	ed Stock	Common	Stock	Capital in	Accumulated	Stockholders'
	Shares	\$	Shares	\$	Excess of Par	Deficit	Deficit
Balance at December 31,							
2009	7,995	\$ 80	92,543,932	\$ 925,440	\$130,984,766	\$(139,192,939)	\$ (7,282,653)
Proceeds from the sale of							
common stock, net of							
expenses	-	-	29,821,607	298,216	3,279,285	-	3,577,501
Stock-based compensation	-	-	-	-	254,947	-	254,947
Conversion of preferred							
stock into							
common stock	(700)	(7)	843,373	8,434	(8,427)	-	-
Conversion of notes payable							
and							
accrued interest into							
common stock	-	-	6,970,036	69,700	875,082	-	944,782
Transfer to equity from							
escrow payable	-	-	2,248,217	22,482	298,935	-	321,417
Transfer to escrow payable							
from equity							
for shares not yet							
issued	-	-	(416,667)	(4,167)	(70,833)	-	(75,000)
Net loss						(5,799,480)	(5,799,480)
Balance at December 31,							
2010	7,295	73	132,010,498	1,320,105	135,613,755	(144,992,419)	(8,058,486)
Proceeds from the sale of							
common stock							
and warrants, net of							
expenses			13,291,167	132,912	932,595		1,065,507
Conversion of notes payable a							
interest into common stock an	d warrants		8,409,685	84,096	604,713		688,809
Conversion of preferred							
stock into							
common stock	(2,250)	(23)	1,801,819	18,018	(17,995)		-
Abandonment of common							
stock			(1,801,819)	(18,018)	18,018		-
Stock-based compensation					94,381		94,381
Transfer to equity from							
escrow payable					80,000		80,000
Net loss						(4,454,705)	(4,454,705)
Balance at December 31,							
2011	5,045	\$ 50	153,711,350	\$1,537,113	\$137,325,467	<u>\$(149,447,124</u>)	<u>\$(10,584,494</u>)

Colos cher l'extre Engra Deminer 3 di 2014 su de 2000 s

Cash flows from operating activities: Net loss \$ (4,454,705) \$ (5,799,480) (Income) loss from discontinued operations (9,723) \$ (5,799,480) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities: Depreciation and amortization \$ 516,892 847,881 Impairment charge - long-lived assets 163,126 19,018 Loss on disposal of property and equipment 24,615 - Loss on sale of accounts receivable 51,654 - Bad debt expense (recovery) 202,062 (4,556) Stock-based compensation 97,065 253,496 Settlement of vendor liabilities (75,000) (159,500) Increase (decrease) in cash attributable to changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Net loss \$ (4,454,705) \$ (5,799,480) (Income) loss from discontinued operations (9,723) 12,257 Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities: Depreciation and amortization 516,892 847,881 Impairment charge - long-lived assets 163,126 19,018 Loss on disposal of property and equipment 24,615 - Loss on sale of accounts receivable 51,654 - Bad debt expense (recovery) 202,062 (4,556) Stock-based compensation 97,065 253,496 Settlement of vendor liabilities (75,000) (159,500)
(Income) loss from discontinued operations (9,723) 12,257 Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities: Depreciation and amortization 516,892 847,881 Impairment charge - long-lived assets 163,126 19,018 Loss on disposal of property and equipment 24,615 - Loss on sale of accounts receivable 51,654 - Bad debt expense (recovery) 202,062 (4,556) Stock-based compensation 97,065 253,496 Settlement of vendor liabilities (75,000) (159,500)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:Depreciation and amortization516,892847,881Impairment charge - long-lived assets163,12619,018Loss on disposal of property and equipment24,615-Loss on sale of accounts receivable51,654-Bad debt expense (recovery)202,062(4,556)Stock-based compensation97,065253,496Settlement of vendor liabilities(75,000)(159,500)
Depreciation and amortization 516,892 847,881 Impairment charge - long-lived assets 163,126 19,018 Loss on disposal of property and equipment 24,615 - Loss on sale of accounts receivable 51,654 - Bad debt expense (recovery) 202,062 (4,556) Stock-based compensation 97,065 253,496 Settlement of vendor liabilities (75,000) (159,500)
Impairment charge - long-lived assets163,12619,018Loss on disposal of property and equipment24,615-Loss on sale of accounts receivable51,654-Bad debt expense (recovery)202,062(4,556)Stock-based compensation97,065253,496Settlement of vendor liabilities(75,000)(159,500)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment24,615-Loss on sale of accounts receivable51,654-Bad debt expense (recovery)202,062(4,556)Stock-based compensation97,065253,496Settlement of vendor liabilities(75,000)(159,500)
Loss on sale of accounts receivable 51,654 - Bad debt expense (recovery) 202,062 (4,556) Stock-based compensation 97,065 253,496 Settlement of vendor liabilities (75,000) (159,500)
Bad debt expense (recovery) 202,062 (4,556) Stock-based compensation 97,065 253,496 Settlement of vendor liabilities (75,000) (159,500)
Stock-based compensation97,065253,496Settlement of vendor liabilities(75,000)(159,500)
Settlement of vendor liabilities (75,000) (159,500)
Increase (decrease) in cash attributable to changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (193,995) (209,093)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (23,897) 27,638
Other assets 9,082 22,633
Security deposits 4,581 9,677
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 275,530 97,172
Other long-term liabilities $ (48,404) \qquad 91,831 $
Net cash used in operating activities (3,461,117) (4,791,026)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (139,934) (223,571)
Increase in restricted cash $(6,594)$ $(285,046)$
Net cash used in investing activities (146,528) (508,617)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from the sale of common stock, net 1,065,507 3,577,501
Proceeds from notes payable - related parties 3,219,739 1,708,000
Proceeds from notes payable - non-related parties 208,382 350,000
Proceeds from the sale of common stock, not yet issued - 50,000
Payments on capital lease/equipment financing obligations (2,587) (12,868)
Repayments of notes payable - related parties (347,000)
Repayments of notes payable - non-related parties (489,179) (41,130)
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,654,862 5,386,503
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations 47,217 86,860
Cash flows from discontinued operations:
Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations (64,540) (165,509)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents: (17,323) (78,649)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 20,370 99,019
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year \$\\ 3,047 \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\

See note 14 for supplemental disclosure of cash flow information.

NOTES OF the Commission deal Depember 3 to 2011 small 2010 ents

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc., and Subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") is a Delaware corporation incorporated in September 1997. The Company is a provider of Internet Protocol ("IP")-based digital voice and data communications services to carriers and corporations worldwide. The Company's services include local, long distance, and international Voice over Internet Protocol ("VoIP") services; broadband Internet access; private line circuits; audio and web conference calling; fax services; and a variety of other communications services.

2. GOING CONCERN AND LIQUIDITY

At December 31, 2011, the Company had a working capital deficit of \$12.0 million and an accumulated deficit of \$149.4 million. The Company has continued to sustain losses from operations. In addition, the Company has not generated positive cash flow from operations since inception, and its current cash resources are not adequate to fund the Company's operations for the next twelve months. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company received \$2.9 million through the issuance of new notes to related parties and raised \$1.1 million from the sale of its securities. The Company cannot provide any assurances as to if and when it will achieve profitability or generate positive cash flows from operations. These conditions, among others, raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue operations as a going concern. No adjustment has been made in the consolidated financial statements to the amounts and classification of assets and liabilities which could result should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S GAAP") and in accordance with Regulation S-X of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). All material inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation, and certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of a sale arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed and determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. The Company records provisions against revenue for billing adjustments, which are based upon estimates derived from factors that include, but are not limited to, historical results, analysis of credits issued and current economic trends. The provisions for revenue adjustments are recorded as a reduction of revenue when incurred.

The Company's revenue is primarily derived from usage fees charged to carriers and corporations that terminate voice or data traffic over the Company's network, and from the monthly recurring fees charged to customers that purchase the Company's corporate products and services.

Variable revenue is earned based on the length of a call, as measured by the number of minutes of duration. It is recognized upon completion of the call, and is adjusted to reflect the Company's allowance for billing adjustments. Revenue for each customer is calculated from information received through the Company's network switches. The Company's customized software tracks the information from the switch and analyzes the call detail records against stored detailed information about revenue rates. This software provides the Company with the ability to complete a timely and accurate analysis of revenue earned in a period. The Company believes that the nature of this process is such that recorded revenues are unlikely to be revised in future periods.

Fixed revenue is earned from monthly recurring services provided to the customer, for which the charges are contracted for over a specified period of time. Revenue recognition commences after the provisioning, testing and acceptance of the service by the customer. The recurring customer charges continue until the expiration of the contract, or until cancellation of the service by the customer. To the extent that payments received from a customer are related to a future period, the payment is recorded as deferred revenue until the service is provided or the usage occurs.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Poutber Verage Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, the Company evaluates accounts receivable and records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the Company's history of past write-offs, collections experience and current credit conditions. Specific customer accounts are written off as uncollectible when collection efforts have been exhausted and payments are not expected to be received.

The Company has an agreement to sell certain of its accounts receivable under an arrangement with a third party (see note 4). These transactions qualify as sales of financial assets under the criteria outlined Accounting Standards Codification Topic ("ASC") 860, *Transfers and Servicing*, in that the rights, title and interest to the receivables are transferred. As a result, the Company accounts for the sales of its accounts receivable by derecognizing them from its consolidated balance sheet as of the date of sale and recording a loss on sale for the difference between the book value of the receivables sold and their respective purchase price.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues is comprised primarily of costs incurred from other domestic and international communications carriers to originate, transport, and terminate voice calls for the Company's carrier and corporate customers. The majority of the Company's cost of revenues is thus variable, based upon the number of minutes actually used by the Company's customers and the destinations they are calling. Call activity is tracked and analyzed with customized software that analyzes the traffic flowing through the Company's network switches. During each period, the call activity is analyzed and an accrual is recorded for the revenues associated with minutes not yet invoiced. This cost accrual is calculated using minutes from the system and the variable cost of revenue based upon predetermined contractual rates.

Fixed expenses reflect the costs associated with connectivity between the Company's network infrastructure, including its New York switching facility, and certain large carrier customers and vendors. They also include the cost of fiber optic transmission facilities used to connect the Company's switching facility to certain international destinations. In addition, fixed expenses include the monthly recurring charges associated with certain platform services purchased from other service providers, the monthly recurring costs associated with private line services for certain corporate customers and the cost of broadband Internet access used to provide service to both carrier and corporate customers.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets and liabilities approximate their fair value presented in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, due to their short maturities.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill Impairment Testing

Intangible assets represent trade names and trademarks. In determining fair value, the Company uses standard analytical approaches to business enterprise valuation ("BEV"), such as the market comparable approach and the income approach. The market comparable approach is based on comparisons of the subject company to similar companies engaged in an actual merger or acquisition or to public companies whose stocks are actively traded. The income approach involves estimating the present value of the subject asset's future cash flows by using projections of the cash flows that the asset is expected to generate, and discounting these cash flows at a given rate of return. Each of these BEV methodologies requires the use of management estimates and assumptions. Intangible assets consist primarily of the trade name and trademarks related to Efonica FZ, LLC ("Efonica"), which are being amortized using the straight-line method over their useful lives.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

The Company reviews long-lived assets, including intangible assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable. If an impairment indicator is present, the Company evaluates recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the projected undiscounted cash flows, the Company is required to estimate the fair value of the asset and recognize an impairment charge to the extent that the carrying value of the asset exceeds its estimated fair value. The Company recorded impairment charges related to its Efonica trademarks of approximately \$163,000 and \$19,000 in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Asset	Estimated Useful Lives
Network equipment	5 – 7 Years
Furniture and fixtures	3 – 7 Years
Computer equipment and software	3 – 5 Years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the term of the associated lease. Maintenance and repairs are recorded as a period expense, while betterments and improvements are capitalized.

Advertising and Marketing

Advertising and marketing expense includes cost for promotional materials for the marketing of the Company's corporate products and services, as well as for public relations.

Income Taxes

The Company complies with accounting and reporting requirements with respect to accounting for income taxes, which require an asset and liability approach to financial accounting and reporting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed for temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities that will result in future taxable or deductible amounts, based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established to reduce deferred income tax assets when the Company determines it is more like than not that it will fail to generate sufficient taxable income to be able to utilize the deferred tax assets.

U.S. GAAP requires the Company to determine whether a tax position of the Company is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit to be recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. De-recognition of a tax benefit previously recognized could result in the Company recording a tax liability that would reduce net assets. During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized no adjustments for uncertain tax positions.

The Company is subject to income tax examinations by major taxing authorities for all tax years since 2008 and may be subject to review and adjustment at a later date based on factors including, but not limited to, on-going analyses of and changes to tax laws, regulations and interpretations thereof.

Foreign Currency Transaction

The Company's subsidiaries have in the past and may in the future enter into foreign currency transactions. Any conversion gains or losses resulting from these foreign currency transactions are included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Earnings (Loss) per Share For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

The Company complies with the accounting and disclosure requirements regarding earnings per share. Basic loss per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the income of the Company. The following securities were excluded in the calculation of diluted loss per share because their inclusion would be antidilutive:

	2011	2010
Warrants	47,615,186	42,171,097
Stock options	6,634,261	5,722,375
Convertible preferred stock	7,021,512	8,395,108
	61,270,959	56,288,580

The net loss per common share calculation includes a provision for preferred stock dividends in the amount of \$470,175 and \$583,600 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. However, no cash dividend had been declared by the board of directors for any of the years presented.

Discontinued Operations

The Company classifies a business component that either has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale as a discontinued operation if the cash flow of the component has been or will be eliminated from ongoing operations and the Company will no longer have any significant continuing involvement in the component. The results of operations of the discontinued component through the date of disposition, including any gains or losses on disposition, are aggregated and presented in the consolidated statement of operations as gain (loss) on discontinued operations. See note 9 for additional information regarding discontinued operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation by recognizing the fair value of compensation cost for all stock and stock-based awards over the service period (generally equal to the vesting period). Compensation cost is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of the awards at the grant date. An offsetting increase to stockholders' equity is recorded equal to the amount of the compensation expense charge.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of approximately \$97,000 and \$254,000, respectively. These amounts, which are included in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, have been reduced for estimated forfeitures. When estimating forfeitures, the Company considered historical forfeiture rates as well as ongoing trends for actual option forfeiture.

The Company calculated the fair value of each common stock option grant on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model method with the following assumptions:

	2011	2010
Dividend yield	0.00%	0.00%
Stock volatility	150.98%	136.75%
Average Risk-free interest rate	1.83%	2.26%
Average option term (years)	3-4	3-4

Recently Adopted and Issued Accounting Pronouncements

During the years ended 2011 and 2010, there were no new accounting pronouncements adopted by the Company that had a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. Management does not believe there are any recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting pronouncements, if current adopted, that would have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

	F-9		

4. SALE OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABIFor the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

On September 12, 2011 the Company entered into a purchase and sale agreement with Prestige Capital Corporation ("Prestige"), whereby the Company sells certain of its accounts receivable to Prestige at a discount in order to improve the Company's liquidity and cash flow. Under the terms of the purchase and sale agreement, Prestige pays the Company a percentage of the face amount of the receivables at the time of sale with the remainder, net of the discount, paid to the Company within three business days after Prestige receives payment on the receivables, which generally have 30 day terms. At December 31, 2011 \$1.0 million of outstanding accounts receivable had been sold to Prestige, and in the year ended December 31, 2011 the Company recognized a loss on the sale of accounts receivables of approximately \$52,000 (see note 15) in connection with the sale of accounts receivable to Prestige. The transfer of accounts receivable to Prestige under this agreement meet the criteria for a sale of financial assets. As a result, such receivables have been derecognized from the Company's consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011.

Prestige also provided the Company with a one-time advance of \$208,382 on the closing date (see note 11). This advance is secured by a priority lien on the Company's accounts receivable; however it is not attributable to a transfer of specific accounts receivable and is therefore reflected as a note payable to non-related parties in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011. The proceeds from the advance were used to pay down other unrelated party indebtedness and for general corporate purposes. The advance is payable in 25 equal weekly installments beginning in October 2011 and an advance fee of approximately \$15,000 is payable 180 days after the closing date. The advance fee is being recognized under the interest method over the term of the advance. At December 31, 2011, \$103,073 of this advance remained outstanding.

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Identifiable intangible assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are comprised of:

	2011								2010			
	Gross Carrying		oss Carrying Accumulated G		Gross Carrying Accumulat			ccumulated	l			
		Amount	Aı	mortization		Total		Amount	A	mortization		Total
Trademarks	\$	315,745	\$	(211,879)	\$	103,866	\$	478,871	\$	(143,926)	\$	334,945
Intellectual Property		86,397		(24,685)	\$	61,712		86,397		(12,342)	\$	74,055
Total	\$	402,142	\$	(236,564)	\$	165,578	\$	565,268	\$	(156,268)	\$	409,000

The Company recorded impairment charges of \$163,126 and \$19,018 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, to write its trademark intangible assets down to their fair value. Aggregate amortization expense for each of the next five years subsequent to December 31, 2011 is expected to be as follows:

For the year ended December 31,		
2012		\$ 64,275
2013		64,275
2014		12,343
2015		12,343
2016		12,342
	F-10	

6. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER FOUTHER Extra Explicit December 31, 2011 and 2010

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of the following at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

	 2011	 2010
Prepaid insurance	\$ 47,562	\$ 59,805
Inventory	-	4,243
Due from Prestige (see note 4)	261,437	-
Other prepaid expenses	 79,344	 40,050
Total	\$ 388,343	\$ 104,098

7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, property and equipment is comprised of the following:

	2011	2010
Network equipment	\$ 3,371,296	\$ 5,148,119
Furniture and fixtures	323,979	434,132
Computer equipment and software	1,219,897	1,389,273
Leasehold improvements	905,333	3,409,915
Assets in progress	22,491	3,345
Total	5,842,996	10,384,784
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization	(5,011,594)	(9,260,386)
Total	\$ 831,402	\$ 1,124,398

Depreciation expense was approximately \$437,000 and \$768,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

8. RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash represents cash held by banks as certificates of deposit collateralizing letters of credit. These letters of credit are required as security for certain of the Company's non-cancelable operating leases for office facilities. On October 27, 2011, the landlord over premises leased by the Company exercised its right under the lease to draw down the full amount of a letter of credit in the amount of \$428,391 that the Company had posted as security under the terms of the lease. The lessor subsequently acknowledged its receipt of the entire amount of the letter of credit and the Company reflected that amount as a security deposit on its consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011. The letter of credit was issued for the benefit of the Company by a third party lending institution and the Company had partially collateralized the letter of credit in the approximate amount of \$240,000 by depositing this amount in a money market account with the lending institution, which was reflected as restricted cash on the Company's balance sheet at December 31, 2010.

As a result of the drawdown of the letter of credit, the Company derecognized approximately \$240,000 of restricted cash from its consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2011 and is required to pay the issuer of the letter of credit the difference between the full amount of the letter of credit and the amount of the collateral, which difference is approximately \$188,000 and is reflected in Accounts payable and accrued expenses as of December 31, 2011. While the Company's failure to make this payment constitutes an event of default under the terms of the letter of credit, the Company did not receive a default notice from the lending institution. The Company and the lender have agreed in principle on the terms of a forbearance and settlement agreement which, among other things, sets forth payment terms for the outstanding amount at various dates through July of 2013. Although there can be no assurances, the Company expects the forbearance and settlement agreement will be fully executed during the second quarter of 2012.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had approximately \$300,000 and \$533,000, respectively, of cash restricted from withdrawal.

9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

In an effort to streamline operations, reduce expenses and focus on the development of the Company's corporate services and carrier services segments, the Company eliminated the consumer services segment and restructured its overall operations in 2009, and the Company classifies the operating results of its consumer services segment as a discontinued operation in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The Company's remaining assets related to the discontinued consumer segment consist of certain property and equipment with remaining balances of nil and approximately \$12,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010 respectively. The Company had liabilities of discontinued operations related to the discontinued consumer segment of approximately \$98,000 and \$165,000 as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, consisting mainly of capital lease obligations and accounts payable and accrued expenses.

The following is a summary of the operating results of the discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

	 2011	2010
Revenues	\$ -	\$ 7,617
Cost of revenues	-	(780)
Depreciation and amortization	12,449	19,834
Selling, general and administrative (including a credit of approximately \$3,000 to stock-based		
compensation expense in 2011)	(17,107)	820
Other income	 5,065	 <u>-</u>
Income (loss) from discontinued operations	\$ 9,723	\$ (12,257)

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

	 2011	2010
Trade accounts payable	\$ 8,061,024	\$ 7,773,241
Accrued expenses	468,214	551,266
Accrued payroll and vacation	110,829	140,341
Cost accrual	2,815	2,752
Interest payable	376,506	291,782
Deferred revenue	10,044	149,545
Other	 608,515	 269,747
	\$ 9,637,947	\$ 9,178,674

11. NOTES PAYABLE AND CAPITAL FOR ASSENCE OF FUNDENCE IN A PROPERTY ASSENCE OF THE PAYABLE AND CAPITAL FOR ASSENCE OF THE PAYABLE OF THE PAYABLE AND CAPITAL FOR ASSENCE OF THE PAYABLE OF THE PAYABLE

At December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, components of long-term debt and capital lease/equipment financing obligations of the Company are comprised of the following:

	 2011	2010
Promissory notes payable - related parties	\$ 4,922,364	\$ 2,420,625
Promissory notes payable - non-related parties	103,073	683,870
Capital lease/equipment financing obligations	<u>-</u>	4,550
Total promissory notes payable and capital lease/equipment financing obligations	5,025,437	3,109,045
Less:		
Current portion of capital lease/equipment financing obligations	-	(4,550)
Current portion of notes payable - related parties	(4,922,364)	(2,420,625)
Current portion of notes payable - non-related parties	(103,073)	(683,870)
Non-current portion of promissory notes payable and capital lease/		
equipment financing obligations	\$ _	\$ _

Promissory notes payable – related parties

From 2007 through 2010, the Company borrowed an aggregate of \$3,415,268 from Marvin Rosen, the Company's Chairman of the Board of Directors. These loans were evidenced by promissory notes bearing interest at rates ranging from 3% to 10% per annum. Principal payments on the indebtedness related to these promissory notes through December 31, 2010 totaled \$394,843. In addition, at various times during 2010, Mr. Rosen converted a total of \$724,800 of indebtedness evidenced by such promissory notes into an aggregate of 5,320,002 shares of the Company's common stock and warrants to purchase a total of 2,360,004 shares of the Company's common stock. The warrants are generally exercisable for a period of five years from the respective dates of debt conversion at exercise prices ranging from 120% to 150% of the closing price of the Company's common stock on the date of the conversion. All of the promissory notes grant the lender a collateralized security interest, pari passu with other lenders, in the Company's accounts receivable and are payable in full upon ten days notice from the lender. To date, the Company has not received a demand for payment. On May 21, 2009, the Company borrowed \$125,000 from Marose, LLC, of which Mr. Rosen is a member. This loan is evidenced by a promissory note, which initially matured on July 20, 2009, and bears an interest rate of 8% per annum. The note also grants the lender a collateralized security interest, pari passu with other lenders, in the Company's accounts receivable. On the July 20, 2009 initial maturity date of the note, the note became a demand note pursuant to its terms, and the entire amount of this note remained outstanding at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010. To date the Company has not received a demand for payment.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company borrowed an additional \$3,199,739 from Mr. Rosen, \$347,000 of which was repaid during the period. These loans were evidenced by a series of short-term promissory notes, each of which is payable in full upon ten days notice from the lender and bear interest at the rate of 3.25% per annum. Each note also grants the lender a collateralized security interest, pari passu with other lenders, in the Company's accounts receivable. The proceeds were used for general working capital purposes. At various times during 2011, Mr. Rosen converted an aggregate of \$351,000 of previously issued promissory notes into 4,981,151 shares of common stock and received five-year warrants to purchase 1,275,596 shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable at 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to the date of the conversion. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had an aggregate principal amount of outstanding demand notes payable to Mr. Rosen and his affiliates in the amount of \$4,922,364 and, to date, the Company has not received a demand for payment.

In connection with the Company's arrangement with Prestige for the sale of certain of its accounts receivable (see note 4), the Company's related party lenders agreed to subordinate their security interest in the Company's accounts receivable to that of Prestige.

On January 21, 2011, the Company borrowed \$20,000 from a Director of the Company. The note was payable in full upon ten days notice of demand from the lender, with accrued interest at the rate of 3.25% per annum, and granted the lender a collateralized security interest, pari passu with other lenders, in the Company's accounts receivable. On April 27, 2011, the principal balance of this note, along with the accrued interest, was converted into 252,160 shares of the Company's common stock and five-year warrants to purchase 50,432 shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable at 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing.

Promissory notes payable - non-related parthes Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

During 2008, the Company borrowed an aggregate of \$375,000 from two unrelated parties, of which \$333,870 remained outstanding as of December 31, 2010. The loans were evidenced by promissory notes which matured on various dates during the year ended December 31, 2010 bearing interest at the rate of 10% per annum. These notes automatically converted to demand notes on their respective maturity dates whereupon the outstanding principal and all accrued interest on the notes became payable in full upon ten days notice from the lender. These notes, along with all accrued interest thereon, were repaid in their entirety during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Also during 2008, the Company borrowed \$200,000 under a promissory note issued to an unrelated party. During 2010 the lender converted \$100,000 of this note into 769,231 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 153,847 shares of common stock and agreed to extend the maturity date of the \$100,000 balance of the loan to February 8, 2011 while increasing the interest rate to 12% per annum. The note was not repaid by the maturity date. On August 5, 2011, \$50,000 of the outstanding principal on this note and approximately \$15,000 of accrued interest was converted into 644,987 shares of the Company's common stock and 5-year warrants to purchase 128,998 shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable at 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to conversion. On September 19, 2011 the remaining principal balance on the note in the amount of \$50,000 was repaid.

On December 22, 2010, the Company borrowed \$250,000 from an unrelated party, evidenced by a promissory note bearing interest at the rate of 3.25% per annum and which was payable in full upon ten days notice from the lender. On May 11, 2011 the entire principal balance of this note, along with \$3,139 of accrued interest, was converted into 2,531,387 shares of the Company's common stock and 5-year warrants to purchase 506,278 shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable at 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to conversion.

As more fully described in note 4, the Company received an advance of \$208,382 from Prestige in connection with its entering into an arrangement for the sale of certain of the Company's accounts receivable. The advance is secured by a first priority lien on the Company's accounts receivable. To date, the Company has made all required payments related to this advance, for which the outstanding balance is \$103,073 as of December 31, 2011.

12. EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

Preferred Stock

On September 10, 2010, an accredited investor exercised his rights to convert 700 shares of Series A-3 Preferred Stock with an aggregate liquidation preference of \$700,000 into 843,373 shares of common stock.

On May 16, 2011, another accredited investor converted 1,500 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock with an aggregate liquidation preference of \$1.5 million into 898,204 shares of the Company's common stock and 750 shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stock with an aggregate liquidation preference of \$750,000 into 903,615 shares of common stock. On September 2, 2011, this investor returned the certificates evidencing this common stock to the Company and notified the Company that he was abandoning any and all rights associated with such shares, including but not limited to any future distributions or dividends that may be paid by the Company and voting rights on any matters on which the Company's shareholders are entitled to vote.

All of the foregoing conversions were made in accordance with the respective terms of the preferred stock. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized and 5,045 and 7,295 shares of Preferred Stock (Series A-1, A-2 and A-4) were outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The holders of the Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends at the rate of 8% per annum payable in arrears, when declared by the Company's board of directors, on January 1 of each year.

Common Stock For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

On February 25, 2011, following authorization by the Board of Directors and stockholders, the Company filed a Certificate of Amendment to its Certificate of Incorporation increasing the total number of shares of common stock the Company is authorized to issue from 225,000,000 shares to 300,000,000 shares, par value \$0.01 per share.

During 2010, the Company entered into various subscription agreements with accredited investors and certain directors of the Company. The Company received gross proceeds of \$4,156,200 under these agreements and issued 29,821,608 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 15,891,238 shares of common stock as consideration therefor. In connection with these transactions, the Company paid \$578,699 of fees to a placement agent, which included \$528,000 of cash and warrants to purchase 3,142,862 shares of common stock. Also during 2010, holders converted approximately \$945,000 of related party promissory notes and accrued interest into 6,970,036 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 1,645,725 shares of common stock, and the Company issued 2,248,217 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 449,645 shares of common stock in connection with its receipt of \$321,417 in proceeds released from escrow.

In September 2008, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with a vendor providing, in part, that the Company issue common stock in the amount of \$75,000 to the vendor in settlement of a debt. However, due to a failure by the vendor to perform its obligations under the settlement agreement the Company never issued the shares, resulting in a transfer from equity to escrow payable in the amount of \$75,000 in 2010 (see note 15), and a correction to the number of shares previously disclosed as issued and outstanding in the amount of 416,667 shares.

During the year ended 2011, the Company entered into subscription agreements with 27 accredited investors, under which the Company issued an aggregate of 13,291,167 shares of common stock and five-year warrants to purchase 3,482,785 shares of the Company's common stock for aggregate consideration of \$1.1 million. The warrants are exercisable at 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing. Two of these investors, accounting for 1,037,038 shares, 272,224 warrants and proceeds of \$85,000, were directors of the Company.

As previously discussed in note 11, two of the Company's directors and two unrelated note holders converted an aggregate of \$0.7 million of promissory notes and accrued interest that were payable on demand into an aggregate of 8,409,685 shares of the Company's common stock and warrants to purchase 1,961,304 shares of the Company's common stock.

During 2011, the Company transferred \$80,000 from escrow payable to equity for proceeds received prior to 2011. The shares were issued in March of 2012.

As of December 31, 2011 the Company is authorized to issue 300,000,000 shares of common stock and there were 153,711,350 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.

Stock Options and Warrants

In accordance with the Company's 2009 Stock Option Plan, the Company has reserved 7,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance to employees at exercise prices determined by the board of directors. Options under the plan typically vest in annual increments over a three or four year period, expire ten years from the date of grant and are issued at exercise prices no less than 100% of the fair market value at the time of grant. The Company has also reserved 2,793,261 shares for issuance in the event of exercise of outstanding options granted under the now expired 1998 Stock Option Plan.

The following summary presents information regardings of the standing of the s

		Weig	hted	
	Number of	Aver	age	
	Options	Exercis	e Price	Weighted Average Remaining Contract Term
Outstanding at December 31, 2009	4,642,524	\$	1.19	6.28 years
Granted in 2010	1,458,500		0.12	
Cancelled or expired in 2010	(378,649)		0.48	
Outstanding at December 31, 2010	5,722,375		0.96	6.59 years
Granted in 2011	1,532,000		0.09	
Cancelled or expired in 2011	(620,114)		1.12	
Outstanding at December 31, 2011	6,634,261	\$	0.75	6.86 years
Exercisable at December 31, 2011	3,886,350	\$	1.20	5.42 years

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2011:

Ra	inge of Exercise		Weighted Average	Wei	ghted Average		Weig	hted Average
	Prices	Options Outstanding	Life (Years)		Price	Options Exercisable		Price
\$	0.06 - \$0.08	63,000	7.85	\$	0.08	-	\$	-
\$	0.09 - \$0.09	1,408,500	9.76		0.09	2,500		0.09
\$	0.10 - \$0.10	36,000	9.22		0.10	250		0.10
\$	0.11 - \$0.11	999,000	6.77		0.11	694,378		0.11
\$	0.12 - \$0.12	1,271,000	8.29		0.12	409,211		0.12
\$	0.13 - \$0.25	84,500	7.69		0.16	33,375		0.17
\$	0.31 - \$0.31	982,000	5.68		0.31	956,500		0.31
\$	0.35 - \$0.69	669,000	5.26		0.68	668,875		0.68
\$	0.75 - \$3.15	699,435	4.04		2.59	699,435		2.59
\$	4.38 - \$6.45	421,826	2.62		4.66	421,826		4.66
		6,634,261	6.86	\$	0.75	3,886,350	\$	1.20

The weighted-average estimated fair value of stock options granted was \$.09 and \$0.12 during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. No stock options were exercised during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. As of December 31, 2011, there was approximately \$86,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to stock options granted under the Company's stock incentive plan which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.62 years.

The Company, as part of various debt and other agreements, has issued warrants to purchase the Company's common stock. The following summarizes the information relating to warrants issued and the activity during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

CONSCENDING THANK COME STATEMENTS				
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010				
	Number of	Per Share	Average	
	Warrants	Exercise Price	Exercise Price	
Shares under warrants at December 31, 2009	28,830,132	\$ 0.12-8.58	\$ 2.58	
Issued in 2010	21,129,470	0.14-0.21		
Exercised in 2010	-	-	-	
Expired in 2010	(7,788,505)	2.97-8.58	0	
Outstanding at December 31, 2010	42,171,097	0.11-1.67	0.27	
Granted in 2011	5,444,089	0.08014	0.10	
Exercised in 2011	-	-		
Expired in 2011	<u>-</u>	-		
Outstanding at December 31, 2011	47,615,186	\$ 0.08-1.67	\$ 0.25	

All warrants are fully exercisable upon issuance.

13. INCOME TAXES

Due to the operating losses incurred, the Company has no current income tax provision for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

	2011	2010
Deferred		
Federal	\$ (1,416,000)	\$ (1,820,000)
State	_ _	(2,000)
	(1,416,000)	(1,822,000)
Change in valuation allowance	1,416,000	1,822,000
	\$ -	\$ -

The following reconciles the Federal statutory tax rate to the effective income tax rate:

	2011	2010
	%	%
Federal statutory rate	(34.0)	(34.0)
State net of federal tax	=	(0.4)
Other	2.2	-
Change in valuation allowance	31.8	34.4
Effective income tax rate		

The components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liability consist of approximately the following at December 31, 2011 and 2010 respectively:

	For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010	2011	2010
Deferred tax assets			
Net operating losses		\$ 37,554,000	\$ 36,112,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts		81,000	118,000
Accrued liabilities and other		959,000	959,000
Property and equipment		4,737,000	4,726,000
		43,331,000	41,915,000
Deferred tax liability			
Property and equipment		-	-
Deferred tax asset, net		43,331,000	41,915,000
Less valuation allowance		(43,331,000)	(41,915,000)
		\$ -	\$ -

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company has net operating loss carry forwards of approximately \$111.4 million and \$107.2 million, respectively, that may be applied against future taxable income, and which expire in various years from 2013 to 2031. Under the Tax Reform act of 1986, the amounts of and benefits from net operating loss carry forwards and credits may be impaired or limited in certain circumstances. Events which cause limitations in the amount of net operating losses that the Company may utilize in any one year include, but are not limited to, a cumulative ownership change of more than 50%, as defined, over a three year period. The amount of such limitation, if any has not been determined.

The Company maintains a full valuation allowance for its net deferred tax assets, as the Company's management has determined that it is more likely than not that the Company will not generate sufficient future taxable income to be able to utilize these deferred tax assets.

14. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental cash flow information for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

	 2011		2010
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:	 	-	
Cash paid for interest	\$ 121,566	\$	41,250
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:			
Conversion of notes payable - related parties to common stock	\$ 371,000	\$	724,800
Conversion of notes payable - non related parties to common stock	\$ 300,000	\$	200,000
Transfer of restricted cash for satisfaction of security deposit	\$ 240,391		
Non-cash financing of security deposit	\$ 188,000		
Conversion of interest payable to common stock	\$ 17,809	\$	19,982
Transfer from escrow payable to common stock	\$ 80,000	\$	321,417
Transfer from equity to escrow payable - shares to vendor, not yet issued	\$ -	\$	75,000
Transfer of vendor debt to escrow payable - shares to vendor not yet issued	\$ _	\$	30,000
Preferred stock converted into common stock	\$ 2,500,000	\$	700,000

15. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSEFor the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Other income (expenses) for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 consists of the following:

	2011	2010
Settlement or extinguishment of vendor liabilities	\$ 75,000	\$ 159,500
Loss on sale of accounts receivable	(51,654)	-
Loss on disposal of property and equipment	(24,615)	-
Other	47,588	54,456
Total other income	46,319	213,956

As discussed in note 12, in September 2008 the Company entered into a settlement agreement with a vendor providing, in part, that the Company issue common stock in the amount of \$75,000 to the vendor in settlement of a debt. However, due to a failure by the vendor to perform its obligations under the settlement agreement the Company never issued the shares, resulting in a transfer from equity to escrow payable in 2010 in the amount of \$75,000 and an adjustment to the number of shares issued and outstanding. On February 10, 2011, the Company executed a settlement agreement with the vendor which released the Company of all liability with respect to this matter. As a result, the Company reduced its escrow payable amount and recorded other income of \$75,000 in year ended December 31, 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, in connection with its normal periodic review of property and equipment, the Company disposed of several assets which are no longer in use and recorded a loss of \$24,615 for the net book value those assets.

In February 2004 the Company entered into a settlement agreement with a carrier vendor in a foreign country providing for, among other things, payment by the Company of \$600,000, of which \$450,000 was promptly paid, and the Company's agreement to make 12 monthly payments for the remaining \$150,000. In return, the vendor agreed to restore the Company's ability to terminate telecommunications traffic to that country at a fixed rate. The vendor never complied with its obligations under the agreement, and therefore the Company did not make its remaining payments. Under the laws of that country, the vendor's ability to pursue payment of the remaining amount has expired under the statute of limitations for contractual claims and the remaining balance was extinguished from the Company's balance sheet during the year ended December 31, 2010. Also during 2010, the Company settled two billing disputes with vendors resulting in a net gain of \$9,500.

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases

The Company has various non-cancelable operating lease agreements for office facilities (see note 21). A summary of the lease commitments under non-cancelable leases for years ending subsequent to December 31, 2011, are approximately as follows:

Year Ending December 31:

2012	1,070,533
2013	1,128,063
2014	1,099,338
2015	891,097
Thereafter	
	\$ 4,189,031

Rent expense for all operating leases was \$1.0 million and \$1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Certain of the Company's leases include fixed rent escalation schedules or rent escalations based upon a fixed percentage. The Company recognizes rent expense (including escalations) on a straight-line basis over the lease term. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has no material outstanding purchase commitments with any equipment vendors.

Legal Matters For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

On July 30, 2008, a vendor that provides management consulting and software systems services filed a complaint in the Supreme Court for the State of New York (Software Synergy, Inc., v Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc., Index No. 602223/08) seeking damages in the amount of \$624,594 plus \$155,787 in Prejudgment interest and costs, allegedly due to the plaintiff under terms of a Professional Services Letter Agreement (the "PSLA") and a Master Software License Agreement (the "MSLA"). This complaint asserted claims for relief against the Company for breach of contract, failure to pay to plaintiff moneys allegedly due under the terms of the PSLA, violation of the terms of the MSLA, and prejudgment interest and costs. On September 17, 2008, the Company filed its Answer and Counterclaim against the vendor alleging the plaintiff materially breached its obligations to the Company under the PSLA and MSLA and is liable to the Company for damages, including full repayment of the amounts which the Company paid to the plaintiff for its failed development effort. On June 25, 2010, the parties entered into a Confidential Settlement Agreement resolving the litigation, providing for the mutual release of all claims, and agreeing to the dismissal of the case. As of December 31, 2011, the Company's obligations under this agreement have been paid in full.

The Company is from time to time involved in claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. Management does not expect that the outcome of any such claims or actions will have a material effect on the Company's operations or financial condition. In addition, due to the regulatory nature of the telecommunications industry, the Company periodically receives and responds to various inquiries from state and federal regulatory agencies. Management does not expect the outcome of any such regulatory inquiries to have a material impact on the Company's liquidity, cash flows, financial condition or results of operations.

17. PROFIT SHARING PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution profit sharing plan, which covers all employees who meet certain eligibility requirements. Contributions to the plan are made at the discretion of the board of directors. No contributions to the profit sharing plan were made for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

18. CONCENTRATIONS

Major Customers

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, five customers of the Company accounted for 47% and 53%, respectively, of the Company's consolidated revenues. These five customers each contributed more than 5% of the Company's consolidated revenues. These customers were all in the carrier services segment. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the amounts owed to the Company by these customers were approximately \$1,237,000 and \$1,543,000, or 51.5% and 56.7% of total accounts receivable, respectively.

Geographic Concentrations

The Company's operations are significantly influenced by economic factors and risks inherent in conducting business in foreign countries, including government regulations, currency restrictions and other factors that may significantly affect management's estimates and the Company's performance.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company generated approximate revenues from customers in the following countries:

	2011	2010
United States	\$ 34,510,000	\$ 36,203,000
Other	7,841,000	5,560,000
	\$ 42,351,000	\$ 41,763,000

Revenues by geographic area are based upon the location of the customers.

Credit Risk For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

The Company maintains its cash balances in high credit quality financial institutions. These balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to \$250,000 per institution. These balances may at times, exceed federally insured limits.

19. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company complies with the accounting and reporting requirements on Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information. The guidance requires disclosures of segment information on the basis that is used internally for evaluating segment performance and for determining the allocation of resources to the operating segments.

The Company has two reportable segments that it operates and manages – corporate services and carrier services. These segments are organized by the products and services that are sold and the customers that are served. The Company measures and evaluates its reportable segments based on revenues and gross profit margins. The Company's executive, administrative and support costs are allocated to the Company's operating segments and are included in segment income. The Company's segments and their principal activities consist of the following:

Carrier Services

Carrier Services includes the termination of carrier traffic utilizing VoIP technology as well as traditional TDM (circuit switched) technology. VoIP permits a less costly and more rapid interconnection between the Company and international telecommunications carriers, and generally provides better profit margins for the Company than does TDM technology. The Company currently interconnects with over 270 carrier customers and vendors, and is working to expand its interconnection relationships, particularly with carriers in emerging markets.

Corporate Services

The Company provides a wide variety of communications services to small and medium-sized businesses, as well as enterprise customers, including basic voice and data communications services, broadband Internet access, private line services, audio and web conferencing services, e-fax services and a variety of other value-added services. These customers are sold through both the Company's direct sales force and its partner sales program, which utilizes the efforts of independent third-party distributors to sell the Company's products and services.

Operating segment information for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is summarized as follows:

2011					
	Corporate Carrier Services and Services Other		Corporate and Unallocated	Consolidated	
Revenues	\$ 40,126,511	\$ 2,224,129	\$ -	\$ 42,350,640	
Cost of revenues (exclusive of	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	+ -, :,>	·	, i = , c c c , c r c	
depreciation and amortization)	36,655,722	1,412,166	-	38,067,888	
Depreciation and amortization	493,809	23,083	-	516,892	
Loss on impairment of long-lived assets	109,294	53,832		163,126	
Selling, general and administrative expenses	4,521,924	3,375,415	-	7,897,339	
Advertising and marketing	57	14,902	-	14,959	
Other (income) expenses	118,169	36,695	<u> </u>	154,864	
Loss from continuing operations	\$ (1,772,464)	\$ (2,691,964)	\$ -	\$ (4,464,428)	
Total assets	\$ 2,694,738	\$ 1,418,399	\$ 443,831	\$ 4,556,968	
Capital expenditures	\$ 124,345	\$ 4,841	\$ 10,748	\$ 139,934	

FUSION TELECOMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL, INC. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

		Corporate			
	Carrier	Carrier Services and			
	Services	Other	Unallocated	Consolidated	
Revenues	\$ 40,018,573	\$ 1,744,429	\$ -	\$ 41,763,002	
Cost of revenues (exclusive of					
depreciation and amortization)	36,778,722	1,051,399	-	37,830,121	
Depreciation and amortization	833,339	14,542	-	847,881	
Loss on impairment of long-lived assets	12,742	6,276		19,018	
Selling, general and administrative expenses	5,426,205	3,421,269	-	8,847,474	
Advertising and marketing	-	38,973	-	38,973	
Other (income) expenses	(69,360)	36,118	-	(33,242)	
Loss from continuing operations	\$ (2,963,075)	\$ (2,824,148)	\$ -	\$ (5,787,223)	

\$ 3.181.281

116,337

\$ 1.739.946

56,926

107,234

4.978.153

The Company employs engineering, operations, information services and finance resources that service both the carrier and corporate services business segments and across multiple products and services. Depreciation and indirect operating expenses were allocated to each segment based upon its respective percent utilization of the personnel resources. The amounts reflected as Corporate & Unallocated represent those assets and capital expenditures that were not appropriate to allocate to a business segment or product line.

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the financing transactions discussed in notes 11 and 12, on March 29, 2011 the Company entered into a Desk Space Use and Occupancy Agreement with an entity affiliated with Mr. Rosen and another of the Company's directors. Under the terms of the agreement, this affiliate utilizes a portion of the Company's leased office space in New York City for a fee of \$9,000 per month. The initial term of the agreement ran from April 15, 2011 to October 14, 2011, and the agreement continues to be in effect on a month to month basis. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had received \$45,000 of advance payments in connection with this agreement, which is reflected in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the Company's consolidated balance sheet. The Company believes that the fee it receives under this agreement is comparable to what it would receive had the agreement been entered into with an unrelated third party.

21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Total assets

Capital expenditures

Between January 1, 2012 and March 15, 2012, the Company sold and issued to 20 accredited investors an aggregate of 8,594,988 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 2,578,503 shares of the Company's common stock at exercise prices ranging from \$0.09 to \$0.23 per share, or 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing. The net proceeds of \$0.9 million were used for general working capital purposes. In addition, three of the Company's officers and/or directors converted an aggregate of \$85,000 of indebtedness from the Company into 814,816 shares of common stock and warrants to issue 244,447 shares of the Company's common stock at exercise prices ranging from \$0.09 to \$0.17 per share, or 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing.

On February 16, 2012, a landlord over prefitted the landlord of New York (Index No. 56186/12), in which the landlord sought to recover against the Company certain unpaid rent and related charges due under a lease agreement between the landlord and the Company, and to evict the Company from the premises. The Company intends to contest and dispute the claims set forth in the foregoing Petition. However, due to the uncertainties of litigation and other unknown factors, there can be no assurances that the Company will be able to reach a favorable resolution to this proceeding.

On January 30, 2012, the Company entered into purchase agreements to acquire the business currently operated by Network Billing Systems, LLC and Interconnect Systems Group II LLC (collectively, "NBS"). NBS currently provides voice (including VOIP) and data telecommunications services, as well as a wide variety of managed and cloud-based telecommunications services, to small and medium sized companies.

The aggregate purchase price for the NBS acquisition transaction is \$20 million, consisting of \$17.75 million in cash, \$1.0 million to be evidenced by a 24-month promissory note payable to the sellers and \$1.25 million in shares of restricted common stock of the Company. Consummation of the transaction contemplated by the purchase agreements is subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, satisfactory completion of the Company's due diligence on the business being acquired, completion of an audit of the financial books and records of NBS, receipt of certain regulatory approvals, the Company's receipt of sufficient funding to pay the cash portion of the purchase price and provide for reasonable post-acquisition working capital requirements, negotiation and execution of mutually acceptable executive employment and non-compete agreements with the principal operating officer of NBS and other customary conditions of closing. While the purchase agreements contemplate that closing of the acquisition of NBS would take place during the second quarter of 2012, the conditions precedent to closing are such that there can be no assurance that the acquisition will be completed in that time or at all.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

- I, Matthew D. Rosen, certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011 of Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures [as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)] and internal control over financial reporting [as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15-d-15(f)] for the registrant and have:
 - a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under the Company's supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared:
 - b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under the Company's supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report the Company's conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on the Company's most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

January 10, 2013

By: /s/ MATTHEW D. ROSEN

Matthew D. Rosen Chief Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

- I, Gordon Hutchins, Jr., certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011 of Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures [as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)] and internal control over financial reporting [as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15-d-15(f)] for the registrant and have:
 - a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under the Company's supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under the Company's supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report the Company's conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on the Company's most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

January 10, 2013

By: /s/ GORDON HUTCHINS, JR.

Gordon Hutchins, Jr.
President, Chief Operating Officer, and Acting
Chief Financial Officer

Section 1350 Certification

In connection with the annual report of Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Report"), I, Matthew D. Rosen, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SS. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- 1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- 2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

January 10, 2013

By: /s/ MATTHEW D. ROSEN

Matthew D. Rosen Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Section 1350 Certification

In connection with the annual report of Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Report"), I, Gordon Hutchins, Jr., President, Chief Operating Officer, and Acting Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SS. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- 1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- 2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

January 10, 2013

By: /s/ GORDON HUTCHINS, JR.

Gordon Hutchins, Jr.
President, Chief Operating Officer, and Acting
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

CONCENTRATIONS

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 18.
CONCENTRATIONS

Major Customers

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, five customers of the Company accounted for 47% and 53%, respectively, of the Company's consolidated revenues. These five customers each contributed more than 5% of the Company's consolidated revenues. These customers were all in the carrier services segment. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the amounts owed to the Company by these customers were approximately \$1,237,000 and \$1,543,000, or 51.5% and 56.7% of total accounts receivable, respectively.

Geographic Concentrations

The Company's operations are significantly influenced by economic factors and risks inherent in conducting business in foreign countries, including government regulations, currency restrictions and other factors that may significantly affect management's estimates and the Company's performance.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company generated approximate revenues from customers in the following countries:

	2011	2010
United States	\$34,510,000	\$36,203,000
Other	7,841,000	5,560,000
	\$42,351,000	\$41,763,000

Revenues by geographic area are based upon the location of the customers.

Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash balances in high credit quality financial institutions. These balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to \$250,000 per institution. These balances may at times, exceed federally insured limits.

GOING CONCERN AND LIQUIDITY

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 2. GOING CONCERN
AND LIQUIDITY

At December 31, 2011, the Company had a working capital deficit of \$12.0 million and an accumulated deficit of \$149.4 million. The Company has continued to sustain losses from operations. In addition, the Company has not generated positive cash flow from operations since inception, and its current cash resources are not adequate to fund the Company's operations for the next twelve months. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company received \$2.9 million through the issuance of new notes to related parties and raised \$1.1 million from the sale of its securities. The Company cannot provide any assurances as to if and when it will achieve profitability or generate positive cash flows from operations. These conditions, among others, raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue operations as a going concern. No adjustment has been made in the consolidated financial statements to the amounts and classification of assets and liabilities which could result should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 21. SUBSEQUENT
EVENTS

Between January 1, 2012 and March 15, 2012, the Company sold and issued to 20 accredited investors an aggregate of 8,594,988 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 2,578,503 shares of the Company's common stock at exercise prices ranging from \$0.09 to \$0.23 per share, or 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing. The net proceeds of \$0.9 million were used for general working capital purposes. In addition, three of the Company's officers and/or directors converted an aggregate of \$85,000 of indebtedness from the Company into 814,816 shares of common stock and warrants to issue 244,447 shares of the Company's common stock at exercise prices ranging from \$0.09 to \$0.17 per share, or 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing.

On February 16, 2012, a landlord over premises leased by the Company commenced a proceeding in the New York City Civil Court, County of New York (Index No. 56186/12), in which the landlord sought to recover against the Company certain unpaid rent and related charges due under a lease agreement between the landlord and the Company, and to evict the Company from the premises. The Company intends to contest and dispute the claims set forth in the foregoing Petition. However, due to the uncertainties of litigation and other unknown factors, there can be no assurances that the Company will be able to reach a favorable resolution to this proceeding.

On January 30, 2012, the Company entered into purchase agreements to acquire the business currently operated by Network Billing Systems, LLC and Interconnect Systems Group II LLC (collectively, "NBS"). NBS currently provides voice (including VOIP) and data telecommunications services, as well as a wide variety of managed and cloud-based telecommunications services, to small and medium sized companies.

The aggregate purchase price for the NBS acquisition transaction is \$20 million, consisting of \$17.75 million in cash, \$1.0 million to be evidenced by a 24-month promissory note payable to the sellers and \$1.25 million in shares of restricted common stock of the Company. Consummation of the transaction contemplated by the purchase agreements is subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions precedent, including, but not limited to, satisfactory completion of the Company's due diligence on the business being acquired, completion of an audit of the financial books and records of NBS, receipt of certain regulatory approvals, the Company's receipt of sufficient funding to pay the cash portion of the purchase price and provide for reasonable post-acquisition working capital requirements, negotiation and execution of mutually acceptable executive employment and noncompete agreements with the principal operating officer of NBS and other customary conditions of closing. While the purchase agreements contemplate that closing of the acquisition of NBS would take place during the second quarter of 2012, the conditions precedent to closing are such that there can be no assurance that the acquisition will be completed in that time or at all.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 1. NATURE OF
OPERATIONS

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc., and Subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") is a Delaware corporation incorporated in September 1997. The Company is a provider of Internet Protocol ("IP")-based digital voice and data communications services to carriers and corporations worldwide. The Company's services include local, long distance, and international Voice over Internet Protocol ("VoIP") services; broadband Internet access; private line circuits; audio and web conference calling; fax services; and a variety of other communications services.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (USD \$)	Dec. 31, 2011	1 Dec. 31, 2010
<u>Current assets:</u>		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 3,047	\$ 20,370
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately \$245,000 and \$370,000, respectively	2,400,427	2,721,585
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	388,343	104,098
<u>Current assets from discontinued operations</u>		12,449
<u>Total current assets</u>	2,791,817	2,858,502
Property and equipment, net	831,402	1,124,398
Other assets:		
Security deposits	437,141	13,330
Restricted cash	299,536	533,437
<u>Intangible assets, net</u>	165,578	409,000
Other assets	31,494	39,486
<u>Total other assets</u>	933,749	995,253
TOTAL ASSETS	4,556,968	4,978,153
Current liabilities:		
<u>Promissory notes payable - non-related parties</u>	103,073	683,870
<u>Promissory notes payable - related parties</u>	4,922,364	2,420,625
Capital lease/equipment financing obligations, current portion		4,550
Escrow payable		155,000
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	9,637,947	9,178,674
Current liabilities from discontinued operations	97,835	165,274
Total current liabilities	14,761,219	12,607,993
Long-term liabilities:		
Other long-term liabilities	380,243	428,646
Stockholders' deficit:		
Preferred stock, \$0.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, 5,045 and 7,295 shares issued and outstanding	50	73
Common stock, \$0.01 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized, 153,711,350 and	1,537,113	1,320,105
132,010,498 shares issued and outstanding	1,337,113	1,320,103
Capital in excess of par value	137,325,467	135,613,755
Accumulated deficit	(149,447,124)(144,992,419)
Total stockholders' deficit	(10,584,494)	
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT	\$ 4,556,968	\$ 4,978,153

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT (USD \$)	Preferred Stock	l Common Stock	Capital in Retained Earning Excess of / Accumulated Par Deficit	gs Total
Begining Balance, Amount at Dec. 31,	\$ 80	\$ 925 440	\$ 130,984,766 ^{\$ (139,192,939)}	\$ (7,282,653)
2009			130,984,766 (137,172,737)	(7,282,653)
Begining Balance, Shares at Dec. 31, 2009	7,995	92,543,932		
Proceeds from the sale of common stock,		29,821,607		
net of expenses, Shares		, ,		
Proceeds from the sale of common stock, net of expenses, Amount		298,216	3,279,285	3,577,501
Stock-based compensation			254,947	254,947
Conversion of preferred stock into			234,347	234,947
common stock, Shares	(700)	843,373		
Conversion of preferred stock into common stock, Amount	(7)	8,434	(8,427)	
Conversion of notes payable and accrued interest into common stock, Shares		6,970,036		
Conversion of notes payable and accrued interest into common stock, Amount		69,700	875,082	944,782
<u>Transfer to equity from escrow payable,</u> <u>Shares</u>		2,248,217		
<u>Transfer to equity from escrow payable,</u> <u>Amount</u>		22,482	298,935	321,417
Transfer to escrow payable from equity for shares not yet issued, Shares	<u>r</u>	(416,667)		
Transfer to escrow payable from equity for shares not yet issued, Amount	<u>r</u>	(4,167)	(70,833)	(75,000)
Net loss			(5,799,480)	(5,799,480)
Ending Balance, Amount at Dec. 31, 2010			135,613,755 (144,992,419)	(8,058,486)
Ending Balance, Shares at Dec. 31, 2010	7,295	132,010,498		0.4.204
Stock-based compensation			94,381	94,381
Conversion of preferred stock into common stock, Shares	(2,250)	1,801,819		
Conversion of preferred stock into common stock, Amount	(23)	18,018	(17,995)	
Transfer to equity from escrow payable,				
Shares				
Transfer to equity from escrow payable,			80,000	80,000
Amount Proceeds from the sale of common stock				
and warrants, net of expenses, Shares		13,291,167		
Proceeds from the sale of common stock and warrants, net of expenses, Amount		132,912	932,595	1,065,507

Conversion of notes payable and accrued interest into common stock and warrants, Shares	8,409,685			
Conversion of notes payable and accrued	94 006	604 712		600 000
interest into common stock and warrants, Amount	84,096	604,713		688,809
Abandonment of common stock, Shares	(1,801,819))		
Abandonment of common stock, Amount	(18,018)	18,018		
Net loss			(4,454,705)	(4,454,705)
Ending Balance, Amount at Dec. 31, 2011 \$ 50	\$ 1,537,113	\$ 137,325,46°	7 ^{\$ (149,447,124)}	\$ (10,584,494)
Ending Balance, Shares at Dec. 31, 2011 5,045	153,711,35			

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 15. OTHER INCOME
AND EXPENSE

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Other income (expenses) for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 consists of the following:

	2011	2010
Settlement or extinguishment of vendor liabilities	\$ 75,000	\$ 159,500
Loss on sale of accounts receivable	(51,654)	-
Loss on disposal of property and equipment	(24,615)	-
Other	47,588	54,456
Total other income	46,319	213,956

As discussed in note 12, in September 2008 the Company entered into a settlement agreement with a vendor providing, in part, that the Company issue common stock in the amount of \$75,000 to the vendor in settlement of a debt. However, due to a failure by the vendor to perform its obligations under the settlement agreement the Company never issued the shares, resulting in a transfer from equity to escrow payable in 2010 in the amount of \$75,000 and an adjustment to the number of shares issued and outstanding. On February 10, 2011, the Company executed a settlement agreement with the vendor which released the Company of all liability with respect to this matter. As a result, the Company reduced its escrow payable amount and recorded other income of \$75,000 in year ended December 31, 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, in connection with its normal periodic review of property and equipment, the Company disposed of several assets which are no longer in use and recorded a loss of \$24,615 for the net book value those assets.

In February 2004 the Company entered into a settlement agreement with a carrier vendor in a foreign country providing for, among other things, payment by the Company of \$600,000, of which \$450,000 was promptly paid, and the Company's agreement to make 12 monthly payments for the remaining \$150,000. In return, the vendor agreed to restore the Company's ability to terminate telecommunications traffic to that country at a fixed rate. The vendor never complied with its obligations under the agreement, and therefore the Company did not make its remaining payments. Under the laws of that country, the vendor's ability to pursue payment of the remaining amount has expired under the statute of limitations for contractual claims and the remaining balance was extinguished from the Company's balance sheet during the year ended December 31, 2010. Also during 2010, the Company settled two billing disputes with vendors resulting in a net gain of \$9,500.

PROFIT SHARING PLAN

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 17. PROFIT SHARING
PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution profit sharing plan, which covers all employees who meet certain eligibility requirements. Contributions to the plan are made at the discretion of the board of directors. No contributions to the profit sharing plan were made for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (USD \$) Cash flows from operating activities:	12 Mon Dec. 31, 2011	ths Ended Dec. 31, 2010
	\$	\$
Net loss	·	\$ (5,799,480)
Discontinued operations	(9,723)	
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:	(2,723)	12,237
Depreciation and amortization	516,892	847,881
Impairment charge - long-lived assets	163,126	19,018
Loss on disposal of property and equipment	24,615	19,010
Loss on Sale of Accounts Receivable	51,654	
Bad debt expense (recovery)	202,062	(4,556)
Stock-based compensation	97,065	253,496
Settlement of vendor liability	(75,000)	(159,500)
Increase (decrease) in cash attributable to changes in operating assets and	(,,,,,,,,	(103,000)
liabilities:		
Accounts receivable	(193,995)	(209,093)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	(23,897)	27,638
Other assets	9,082	22,633
Security deposits	4,581	9,677
Accounts payable and accrued expenses		97,172
Other long-term liabilities	(48,404)	91,831
Net cash used in operating activities	(3,461,117)	(4,791,026)
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Purchase of property and equipment	(139,934)	(223,571)
<u>Increase in restricted cash</u>	(6,594)	(285,046)
Net cash used in investing activities	(146,528)	(508,617)
Cash flows from financing activities:		
Proceeds from the sale of common stock, net	1,065,507	3,577,501
<u>Proceeds from notes payable - related parties</u>	3,219,739	1,708,000
<u>Proceeds from notes payable - non-related parties</u>	208,382	350,000
Proceeds from the sale of common stock, not yet issued		50,000
Payments on capital lease/equipment financing obligations	(2,587)	(12,868)
Repayments of notes payable - related parties	(347,000)	(245,000)
Repayments of notes payable - non-related parties	(489,179)	(41,130)
Net cash provided by financing activities	3,654,862	5,386,503
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations	47,217	86,860
Cash flows from discontinued operations:		
Cash used in provided by operating activities of discontinued operations	(64,540)	(165,509)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents	(17,323)	(78,649)
Cash and cash equivalents - start of period	20,370	99,019
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period	\$ 3,047	\$ 20,370

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Parenthetical) (USD \$)

Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010

Statement of Financial Position [Abstract]

Accounts receivable	\$ 245,000	\$ 370,000
Preferred Stock, Par Value	\$ 0.01	\$ 0.01
Preferred Stock, Shares Authorized	10,000,000	10,000,000
Preferred Stock, Shares Issued	5,045	7,295
Preferred Stock, Shares Outstanding	5,045	7,295
Common Stock, Par Value	\$ 0.01	\$ 0.01
Common Stock, Shares Authorized	300,000,000	300,000,000
Common Stock, Shares Issued	153,711,350	132,010,498
Common Stock, Shares Outstanding	153,711,350	132,010,498

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

	2011	2010
Trade accounts payable	\$8,061,024	\$7,773,241
Accrued expenses	468,214	551,266
Accrued payroll and vacation	110,829	140,341
Cost accrual	2,815	2,752
Interest payable	376,506	291,782
Deferred revenue	10,044	149,545
Other	608,515	269,747
	\$9,637,947	\$9,178,674

12 Months Ended

Document and Entity
Information (USD \$)

Dec. 31, 2011

Mar. 23, 2012

Document And Entity Information

Entity Registrant Name FUSION TELECOMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL

INC.

Entity Central Index Key 0001071411

Document Type 10-K

Document Period End Date Dec. 31, 2011

Amendment Flag true

<u>Amendment Description</u> This amendment is being filed to comply with regulations.

Current Fiscal Year End Date --12-31

Is Entity a Well-known Seasoned

Issuer?

No

<u>Is Entity a Voluntary Filer?</u> No Is Entity's Reporting Status Current? Yes

Entity Filer Category Smaller Reporting Company

Entity Public Float \$ 9,728,582

Entity Common Stock, Shares
Outstanding
163,121,154

Document Fiscal Period Focus FY

Document Fiscal Year Focus 2011

NOTES PAYABLE AND CAPITAL LEASE/ EQUIPMENT FINANCING OBLIGATIONS

12 Months Ended

Dec. 31, 2011

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 11. NOTES PAYABI

Note 11. NOTES PAYABLE AND CAPITAL LEASE/ EQUIPMENT FINANCING OBLIGATIONS At December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, components of long-term debt and capital lease/equipment financing obligations of the Company are comprised of the following:

	2011	2010
Promissory notes payable - related parties	\$ 4,922,364	\$ 2,420,625
Promissory notes payable - non-related parties	103,073	683,870
Capital lease/equipment financing obligations		4,550
Total promissory notes payable and capital lease/equipment financing obligations Less:	5,025,437	3,109,045
Current portion of capital lease/equipment financing obligations	-	(4,550)
Current portion of notes payable - related parties	(4,922,364)	(2,420,625)
Current portion of notes payable - non-related parties	(103,073)	(683,870)
Non-current portion of promissory notes payable and capital lease/		
equipment financing obligations	<u>\$</u>	\$ -

Promissory notes payable - related parties

From 2007 through 2010, the Company borrowed an aggregate of \$3,415,268 from Marvin Rosen, the Company's Chairman of the Board of Directors. These loans were evidenced by promissory notes bearing interest at rates ranging from 3% to 10% per annum. Principal payments on the indebtedness related to these promissory notes through December 31, 2010 totaled \$394,843. In addition, at various times during 2010, Mr. Rosen converted a total of \$724,800 of indebtedness evidenced by such promissory notes into an aggregate of 5,320,002 shares of the Company's common stock and warrants to purchase a total of 2,360,004 shares of the Company's common stock. The warrants are generally exercisable for a period of five years from the respective dates of debt conversion at exercise prices ranging from 120% to 150% of the closing price of the Company's common stock on the date of the conversion. All of the promissory notes grant the lender a collateralized security interest, pari passu with other lenders, in the Company's accounts receivable and are payable in full upon ten days notice from the lender. To date, the Company has not received a demand for payment. On May 21, 2009, the Company borrowed \$125,000 from Marose, LLC, of which Mr. Rosen is a member. This loan is evidenced by a promissory note, which initially matured on July 20, 2009, and bears an interest rate of 8% per annum. The note also grants the lender a collateralized security interest, pari passu with other lenders, in the Company's accounts receivable. On the July 20, 2009 initial maturity date of the note, the note became a demand note pursuant to its terms, and the entire amount of this note remained outstanding at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010. To date the Company has not received a demand for payment.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company borrowed an additional \$3,199,739 from Mr. Rosen, \$347,000 of which was repaid during the period. These loans were evidenced by a series of short-term promissory notes, each of which is payable in full upon ten days notice from the lender and bear interest at the rate of 3.25% per annum. Each note also grants the lender a collateralized security interest, pari passu with other lenders, in the Company's accounts receivable. The proceeds were used for general working capital purposes. At various times during 2011, Mr. Rosen converted an aggregate of \$351,000 of previously issued promissory notes into 4,981,151 shares of common stock and received five-year warrants to purchase 1,275,596 shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable at 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to the date of the conversion. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had an aggregate principal amount of outstanding demand notes

payable to Mr. Rosen and his affiliates in the amount of \$4,922,364 and, to date, the Company has not received a demand for payment.

In connection with the Company's arrangement with Prestige for the sale of certain of its accounts receivable (see note 4), the Company's related party lenders agreed to subordinate their security interest in the Company's accounts receivable to that of Prestige.

On January 21, 2011, the Company borrowed \$20,000 from a Director of the Company. The note was payable in full upon ten days notice of demand from the lender, with accrued interest at the rate of 3.25% per annum, and granted the lender a collateralized security interest, pari passu with other lenders, in the Company's accounts receivable. On April 27, 2011, the principal balance of this note, along with the accrued interest, was converted into 252,160 shares of the Company's common stock and five-year warrants to purchase 50,432 shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable at 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to closing.

Promissory notes payable - non-related parties

During 2008, the Company borrowed an aggregate of \$375,000 from two unrelated parties, of which \$333,870 remained outstanding as of December 31, 2010. The loans were evidenced by promissory notes which matured on various dates during the year ended December 31, 2010 bearing interest at the rate of 10% per annum. These notes automatically converted to demand notes on their respective maturity dates whereupon the outstanding principal and all accrued interest on the notes became payable in full upon ten days notice from the lender. These notes, along with all accrued interest thereon, were repaid in their entirety during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Also during 2008, the Company borrowed \$200,000 under a promissory note issued to an unrelated party. During 2010 the lender converted \$100,000 of this note into 769,231 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 153,847 shares of common stock and agreed to extend the maturity date of the \$100,000 balance of the loan to February 8, 2011 while increasing the interest rate to 12% per annum. The note was not repaid by the maturity date. On August 5, 2011, \$50,000 of the outstanding principal on this note and approximately \$15,000 of accrued interest was converted into 644,987 shares of the Company's common stock and 5-year warrants to purchase 128,998 shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable at 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to conversion. On September 19, 2011 the remaining principal balance on the note in the amount of \$50,000 was repaid.

On December 22, 2010, the Company borrowed \$250,000 from an unrelated party, evidenced by a promissory note bearing interest at the rate of 3.25% per annum and which was payable in full upon ten days notice from the lender. On May 11, 2011 the entire principal balance of this note, along with \$3,139 of accrued interest, was converted into 2,531,387 shares of the Company's common stock and 5-year warrants to purchase 506,278 shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable at 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to conversion.

As more fully described in note 4, the Company received an advance of \$208,382 from Prestige in connection with its entering into an arrangement for the sale of certain of the Company's accounts receivable. The advance is secured by a first priority lien on the Company's accounts receivable. To date, the Company has made all required payments related to this advance, for which the outstanding balance is \$103,073 as of December 31, 2011.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (USD \$)	Dec. 31,	ths Ended Dec. 31, 2010
Income Statement [Abstract]		
Revenue	\$	\$
		41,763,002
Cost of revenues exclusive of depreciation and amortization, shown separately below	38,067,888	
Gross profit	4,282,752	3,932,881
<u>OperatingExpenses</u>	-1.500-	
Depreciation and amortization	,	•
Loss on impairment of long-lived assets	163,126	19,018
Selling general and administrative expenses (including approximately \$97,000 and	7.007.220	0.047.474
\$254,000 of stock-based compensation for the years ended December 31, 2011 and	7,897,339	8,847,474
2010)	14.050	29.072
Advertising and marketing Total energting synapses	14,959	*
Total operating expenses Operating loss	8,592,316	(5,820,465)
	(4,309,304)	(3,820,403)
Other income (expenses): Interest income	5,107	401
	(206,290)	
Interest expense Other	46,319	
Total other income (expenses)	(154,864)	
Loss from continuing operations		(5,787,223)
Discontinued operations:	(4,404,426)	(3,787,223)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations	9,723	(12.257)
Net loss	•	(5,799,480)
Loss applicable to common stockholders:	(4,434,703)	(3,799,400)
Loss from continuing operations	(4 464 428)	(5,787,223)
Preferred stock dividends in arrears	(470,175)	, , ,
Net loss from continuing operations applicable to common stockholders:		(6,370,823)
Discontinued operations	9,723	
Net loss applicable to common stockholders:	\$ \$	\$
ivet loss applicable to common stockholders.	+	(6,383,080)
Basic and diluted loss per common share:	(1,521,000)	(0,505,000)
Loss from continuing operations	\$ (0.03)	\$ (0.05)
Loss from discontinued operations	\$ 0.00	
Loss per common share	\$ (0.03)	\$ (0.06)
Weighted average common shares outstanding:	. ()	
Basic and diluted	141,688,704	1115,848,332

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 5. INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

Identifiable intangible assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are comprised of:

		2011			2010			
	Gross Carrying Amount	Accumulated Amortization	Total	Gross Carrying Amount	Accumulated Amortization	Total		
Trademarks	\$315,745	\$ (211,879)	\$103,866	\$478,871	\$ (143,926)	\$334,945		
Intellectual Property	86,397	(24,685)	\$ 61,712	86,397	(12,342)	\$ 74,055		
Total	\$402,142	\$ (236,564)	\$165,578	\$565,268	\$ (156,268)	\$409,000		

The Company recorded impairment charges of \$163,126 and \$19,018 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, to write its trademark intangible assets down to their fair value. Aggregate amortization expense for each of the next five years subsequent to December 31, 2011 is expected to be as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2012	\$ 64,275
2013	64,275
2014	12,343
2015	12,343
2016	12,342

SALE OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 4. SALE OF
On Se

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

On September 12, 2011 the Company entered into a purchase and sale agreement with Prestige Capital Corporation ("Prestige"), whereby the Company sells certain of its accounts receivable to Prestige at a discount in order to improve the Company's liquidity and cash flow. Under the terms of the purchase and sale agreement, Prestige pays the Company a percentage of the face amount of the receivables at the time of sale with the remainder, net of the discount, paid to the Company within three business days after Prestige receives payment on the receivables, which generally have 30 day terms. At December 31, 2011 \$1.0 million of outstanding accounts receivable had been sold to Prestige, and in the year ended December 31, 2011 the Company recognized a loss on the sale of accounts receivables of approximately \$52,000 (see note 15) in connection with the sale of accounts receivable to Prestige. The transfer of accounts receivable to Prestige under this agreement meet the criteria for a sale of financial assets. As a result, such receivables have been derecognized from the Company's consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011.

Prestige also provided the Company with a one-time advance of \$208,382 on the closing date (see note 11). This advance is secured by a priority lien on the Company's accounts receivable; however it is not attributable to a transfer of specific accounts receivable and is therefore reflected as a note payable to non-related parties in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011. The proceeds from the advance were used to pay down other unrelated party indebtedness and for general corporate purposes. The advance is payable in 25 equal weekly installments beginning in October 2011 and an advance fee of approximately \$15,000 is payable 180 days after the closing date. The advance fee is being recognized under the interest method over the term of the advance. At December 31, 2011, \$103,073 of this advance remained outstanding.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 16. COMMITMENTS
AND CONTINGENCIES

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Leases

The Company has various non-cancelable operating lease agreements for office facilities (see note 21). A summary of the lease commitments under non-cancelable leases for years ending subsequent to December 31, 2011, are approximately as follows:

Year Ending December 31:	
2012	1,070,533
2013	1,128,063
2014	1,099,338
2015	891,097
Thereafter	
	\$4,189,031

Rent expense for all operating leases was \$1.0 million and \$1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Certain of the Company's leases include fixed rent escalation schedules or rent escalations based upon a fixed percentage. The Company recognizes rent expense (including escalations) on a straight-line basis over the lease term. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has no material outstanding purchase commitments with any equipment vendors.

Legal Matters

On July 30, 2008, a vendor that provides management consulting and software systems services filed a complaint in the Supreme Court for the State of New York (Software Synergy, Inc., v Fusion Telecommunications International, Inc., Index No. 602223/08) seeking damages in the amount of \$624,594 plus \$155,787 in Prejudgment interest and costs, allegedly due to the plaintiff under terms of a Professional Services Letter Agreement (the "PSLA") and a Master Software License Agreement (the "MSLA"). This complaint asserted claims for relief against the Company for breach of contract, failure to pay to plaintiff moneys allegedly due under the terms of the PSLA, violation of the terms of the MSLA, and prejudgment interest and costs. On September 17, 2008, the Company filed its Answer and Counterclaim against the vendor alleging the plaintiff materially breached its obligations to the Company under the PSLA and MSLA and is liable to the Company for damages, including full repayment of the amounts which the Company paid to the plaintiff for its failed development effort. On June 25, 2010, the parties entered into a Confidential Settlement Agreement resolving the litigation, providing for the mutual release of all claims, and agreeing to the dismissal of the case. As of December 31, 2011, the Company's obligations under this agreement have been paid in full.

The Company is from time to time involved in claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. Management does not expect that the outcome of any such claims or actions will have a material effect on the Company's operations or financial condition. In addition, due to the regulatory nature of the telecommunications industry, the Company periodically receives and responds to various inquiries from state and federal regulatory agencies. Management does not expect the outcome of any such regulatory inquiries to have a material impact on the Company's liquidity, cash flows, financial condition or results of operations.

EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 12. EQUITY
TRANSACTIONS

Preferred Stock

On September 10, 2010, an accredited investor exercised his rights to convert 700 shares of Series A-3 Preferred Stock with an aggregate liquidation preference of \$700,000 into 843,373 shares of common stock.

On May 16, 2011, another accredited investor converted 1,500 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock with an aggregate liquidation preference of \$1.5 million into 898,204 shares of the Company's common stock and 750 shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stock with an aggregate liquidation preference of \$750,000 into 903,615 shares of common stock. On September 2, 2011, this investor returned the certificates evidencing this common stock to the Company and notified the Company that he was abandoning any and all rights associated with such shares, including but not limited to any future distributions or dividends that may be paid by the Company and voting rights on any matters on which the Company's shareholders are entitled to vote.

All of the foregoing conversions were made in accordance with the respective terms of the preferred stock. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized and 5,045 and 7,295 shares of Preferred Stock (Series A-1, A-2 and A-4) were outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The holders of the Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends at the rate of 8% per annum payable in arrears, when declared by the Company's board of directors, on January 1 of each year.

Common Stock

On February 25, 2011, following authorization by the Board of Directors and stockholders, the Company filed a Certificate of Amendment to its Certificate of Incorporation increasing the total number of shares of common stock the Company is authorized to issue from 225,000,000 shares to 300,000,000 shares, par value \$0.01 per share.

During 2010, the Company entered into various subscription agreements with accredited investors and certain directors of the Company. The Company received gross proceeds of \$4,156,200 under these agreements and issued 29,821,608 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 15,891,238 shares of common stock as consideration therefor. In connection with these transactions, the Company paid \$578,699 of fees to a placement agent, which included \$528,000 of cash and warrants to purchase 3,142,862 shares of common stock. Also during 2010, holders converted approximately \$945,000 of related party promissory notes and accrued interest into 6,970,036 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 1,645,725 shares of common stock, and the Company issued 2,248,217 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 449,645 shares of common stock in connection with its receipt of \$321,417 in proceeds released from escrow.

In September 2008, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with a vendor providing, in part, that the Company issue common stock in the amount of \$75,000 to the vendor in settlement of a debt. However, due to a failure by the vendor to perform its obligations under the settlement agreement the Company never issued the shares, resulting in a transfer from equity to escrow payable in the amount of \$75,000 in 2010 (see note 15), and a correction to the number of shares previously disclosed as issued and outstanding in the amount of 416,667 shares.

During the year ended 2011, the Company entered into subscription agreements with 27 accredited investors, under which the Company issued an aggregate of 13,291,167 shares of common stock and five-year warrants to purchase 3,482,785 shares of the Company's common stock for aggregate consideration of \$1.1 million. The warrants are exercisable at 112% to 125% of the average closing price of the Company's common stock for the five trading days prior to

closing. Two of these investors, accounting for 1,037,038 shares, 272,224 warrants and proceeds of \$85,000, were directors of the Company.

As previously discussed in note 11, two of the Company's directors and two unrelated note holders converted an aggregate of \$0.7 million of promissory notes and accrued interest that were payable on demand into an aggregate of 8,409,685 shares of the Company's common stock and warrants to purchase 1,961,304 shares of the Company's common stock.

During 2011, the Company transferred \$80,000 from escrow payable to equity for proceeds received prior to 2011. The shares were issued in March of 2012.

As of December 31, 2011 the Company is authorized to issue 300,000,000 shares of common stock and there were 153,711,350 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.

Stock Options and Warrants

In accordance with the Company's 2009 Stock Option Plan, the Company has reserved 7,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance to employees at exercise prices determined by the board of directors. Options under the plan typically vest in annual increments over a three or four year period, expire ten years from the date of grant and are issued at exercise prices no less than 100% of the fair market value at the time of grant. The Company has also reserved 2,793,261 shares for issuance in the event of exercise of outstanding options granted under the now expired 1998 Stock Option Plan

The following summary presents information regarding outstanding options as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and changes during the years then ended with regard to all options:

	Number of Options	Weighted Average Exercise Price	Weighted Average Remaining Contract Term
Outstanding at December 31, 2009	4,642,524	\$ 1.19	6.28 years
Granted in 2010	1,458,500	0.12	-
Cancelled or expired in 2010	(378,649)	0.48	
Outstanding at December 31, 2010	5,722,375	0.96	6.59 years
Granted in 2011	1,532,000	0.09	·
Cancelled or expired in 2011	(620,114)	1.12	
Outstanding at December 31, 2011	6,634,261	\$ 0.75	6.86 years
Exercisable at December 31, 2011	3,886,350	\$ 1.20	5.42 years

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2011:

Range of Exercise Prices	Options Outstanding	Weighted Average Life (Years)	Weighte Average Pi		Options Exercisable	Weighted Average Price
\$0.06 - \$0.08	63,000	7.85	\$ 0	.08		\$ -
\$0.09 - \$0.09	1,408,500	9.76	0	.09	2,500	0.09
\$0.10 - \$0.10	36,000	9.22	0	.10	250	0.10
\$0.11 - \$0.11	999,000	6.77	0	.11	694,378	0.11
\$0.12 - \$0.12	1,271,000	8.29	0	.12	409,211	0.12
\$0.13 - \$0.25	84,500	7.69	0	.16	33,375	0.17
\$0.31 - \$0.31	982,000	5.68	0	.31	956,500	0.31
\$0.35 - \$0.69	669,000	5.26	0	.68	668,875	0.68
\$0.75 - \$3.15	699,435	4.04	2	.59	699,435	2.59
\$4.38 - \$6.45	421,826	2.62	4	.66	421,826	4.66
	6,634,261	6.86	\$ 0	.75	3,886,350	\$ 1.20

The weighted-average estimated fair value of stock options granted was \$.09 and \$0.12 during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. No stock options were exercised during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. As of December 31, 2011, there was approximately \$86,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to stock options granted under the Company's stock incentive plan which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.62 years.

The Company, as part of various debt and other agreements, has issued warrants to purchase the Company's common stock. The following summarizes the information relating to warrants issued and the activity during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

	Number of Warrants	Per Share Exercise Price	Weighted Average Exercise Price
Shares under warrants at December 31, 2009	28,830,132	\$0.12-8.58	\$ 2.58
Issued in 2010	21,129,470	0.14-0.21	
Exercised in 2010	-	-	-
Expired in 2010	(7,788,505)	2.97-8.58	0
Outstanding at December 31, 2010	42,171,097	0.11-1.67	0.27
Granted in 2011	5,444,089	0.08014	0.10
Exercised in 2011	-	-	
Expired in 2011	-	-	
Outstanding at December 31, 2011	47,615,186	\$0.08-1.67	\$ 0.25

All warrants are fully exercisable upon issuance.

RESTRICTED CASH

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Notes to Financial **Statements**

Note 8. RESTRICTED CASH Restricted cash represents cash held by banks as certificates of deposit collateralizing letters of credit. These letters of credit are required as security for certain of the Company's non-cancelable operating leases for office facilities. On October 27, 2011, the landlord over premises leased by the Company exercised its right under the lease to draw down the full amount of a letter of credit in the amount of \$428,391 that the Company had posted as security under the terms of the lease. The lessor subsequently acknowledged its receipt of the entire amount of the letter of credit and the Company reflected that amount as a security deposit on its consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011. The letter of credit was issued for the benefit of the Company by a third party lending institution and the Company had partially collateralized the letter of credit in the approximate amount of \$240,000 by depositing this amount in a money market account with the lending institution, which was reflected as restricted cash on the Company's balance sheet at December 31, 2010.

> As a result of the drawdown of the letter of credit, the Company derecognized approximately \$240,000 of restricted cash from its consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2011 and is required to pay the issuer of the letter of credit the difference between the full amount of the letter of credit and the amount of the collateral, which difference is approximately \$188,000 and is reflected in Accounts payable and accrued expenses as of December 31, 2011. While the Company's failure to make this payment constitutes an event of default under the terms of the letter of credit, the Company did not receive a default notice from the lending institution. The Company and the lender have agreed in principle on the terms of a forbearance and settlement agreement which among other things, sets forth payment terms for the outstanding amount at various dates through July of 2013. Although there can be no assurances, the Company expects the forbearance and settlement agreement will be fully executed during the second quarter of 2012.

> As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had approximately \$300,000 and \$533,000, respectively, of cash restricted from withdrawal.

PREPAID EXPENSES AND **OTHER CURRENT ASSETS**

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Notes to Financial Statements

CURRENT ASSETS

Note 6. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of the following at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

	2011	2010
Prepaid insurance	\$ 47,562	\$ 59,805
Inventory	-	4,243
Due from Prestige (see note 4)	261,437	-
Other prepaid expenses	79,344	40,050
Total	\$388,343	\$104,098

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 7. PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, property and equipment is comprised of the following:

	2011	2010
Network equipment	\$ 3,371,296	\$ 5,148,119
Furniture and fixtures	323,979	434,132
Computer equipment and software	1,219,897	1,389,273
Leasehold improvements	905,333	3,409,915
Assets in progress	22,491	3,345
Total	5,842,996	10,384,784
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization	(5,011,594)	(9,260,386)
Total	\$ 831,402	\$ 1,124,398

Depreciation expense was approximately \$437,000 and \$768,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 9. DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

In an effort to streamline operations, reduce expenses and focus on the development of the Company's corporate services and carrier services segments, the Company eliminated the consumer services segment and restructured its overall operations in 2009, and the Company classifies the operating results of its consumer services segment as a discontinued operation in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The Company's remaining assets related to the discontinued consumer segment consist of certain property and equipment with remaining balances of nil and approximately \$12,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010 respectively. The Company had liabilities of discontinued operations related to the discontinued consumer segment of approximately \$98,000 and \$165,000 as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, consisting mainly of capital lease obligations and accounts payable and accrued expenses.

The following is a summary of the operating results of the discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

	2011	2	2010
Revenues	\$ -	\$	7,617
Cost of revenues	-		(780)
Depreciation and amortization	12,449		19,834
Selling, general and administrative (including a credit of approximately \$3,000 to stock-based compensation expense in 2011)	(17,107))	820
Other income	5,065		-
Income (loss) from discontinued operations	\$ 9,723	\$ (12,257)

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 14. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH Supplemental cash flow information for the years ended December FLOW INFORMATION 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2011	2010
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow	
information:	
Cash paid for interest <u>\$ 121,566</u> <u>\$</u>	41,250
Supplemental schedule of non-cash	
investing and financing activities:	
Conversion of notes payable - related parties \$ 371,000 \$	724 800
to common stock	721,000
Conversion of notes payable - non related \$ 300,000 \$2	200.000
parties to common stock	
Transfer of restricted cash for satisfaction of \$ 240,391	
security deposit	
Non-cash financing of security deposit \$ 188,000	
Conversion of interest payable to common \$ 17,809 \$	19 982
stock	17,702
Transfer from escrow payable to common \$ 80,000 \$3	321 417
stock	
Transfer from equity to escrow payable - \$ - \$	75,000
shares to vendor, not yet issued	,,,,,,,
Transfer of vendor debt to escrow payable - \$ - \$	30,000
shares to vendor not yet issued	= -,000
Preferred stock converted into common stock $\underline{\$2,500,000}$	700,000

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 19. SEGMENT
INFORMATION

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

The Company complies with the accounting and reporting requirements on Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information. The guidance requires disclosures of segment information on the basis that is used internally for evaluating segment performance and for determining the allocation of resources to the operating segments.

The Company has two reportable segments that it operates and manages - corporate services and carrier services. These segments are organized by the products and services that are sold and the customers that are served. The Company measures and evaluates its reportable segments based on revenues and gross profit margins. The Company's executive, administrative and support costs are allocated to the Company's operating segments and are included in segment income. The Company's segments and their principal activities consist of the following:

Carrier Services

Carrier Services includes the termination of carrier traffic utilizing VoIP technology as well as traditional TDM (circuit switched) technology. VoIP permits a less costly and more rapid interconnection between the Company and international telecommunications carriers, and generally provides better profit margins for the Company than does TDM technology. The Company currently interconnects with over 270 carrier customers and vendors, and is working to expand its interconnection relationships, particularly with carriers in emerging markets.

Corporate Services

The Company provides a wide variety of communications services to small and medium-sized businesses, as well as enterprise customers, including basic voice and data communications services, broadband Internet access, private line services, audio and web conferencing services, e-fax services and a variety of other value-added services. These customers are sold through both the Company's direct sales force and its partner sales program, which utilizes the efforts of independent third-party distributors to sell the Company's products and services.

Operating segment information for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is summarized as follows:

	2011			
	Carrier Services	Corporate Services and Other	Corporate and Unallocated	Consolidated
Revenues	\$40,126,511	\$ 2,224,129	\$ -	\$42,350,640
Cost of revenues (exclusive of				
depreciation and amortization)	36,655,722	1,412,166	-	38,067,888
Depreciation and amortization	493,809	23,083	-	516,892
Loss on impairment of long-lived assets	109,294	53,832		163,126
Selling, general and administrative expenses	4,521,924	3,375,415	-	7,897,339
Advertising and marketing	57	14,902	-	14,959
Other (income) expenses	118,169	36,695		154,864
Loss from continuing operations	\$(1,772,464)	\$(2,691,964)	\$ -	\$ (4,464,428)
Total assets	\$ 2,694,738	\$ 1,418,399	\$ 443,831	\$ 4,556,968
Capital expenditures	\$ 124,345	\$ 4,841	\$ 10,748	\$ 139,934
	2010			

	Carrier Services	Corporate Services and Other	Corporate and Unallocated	Consolidated
Revenues	\$40,018,573	\$ 1,744,429	\$ -	\$41,763,002
Cost of revenues (exclusive of				
depreciation and amortization)	36,778,722	1,051,399	-	37,830,121
Depreciation and amortization	833,339	14,542	-	847,881
Loss on impairment of long-lived assets	12,742	6,276		19,018
Selling, general and administrative expenses	5,426,205	3,421,269	-	8,847,474
Advertising and marketing	-	38,973	-	38,973
Other (income) expenses	(69,360)	36,118	-	(33,242)
Loss from continuing operations	\$(2,963,075)	\$(2,824,148)	\$ -	\$(5,787,223)
Total assets	\$ 3,181,281	\$ 1,739,946	\$ 56,926	\$ 4,978,153
Capital expenditures	\$ 116,337	\$ -	\$ 107,234	\$ 223,571

The Company employs engineering, operations, information services and finance resources that service both the carrier and corporate services business segments and across multiple products and services. Depreciation and indirect operating expenses were allocated to each segment based upon its respective percent utilization of the personnel resources. The amounts reflected as Corporate & Unallocated represent those assets and capital expenditures that were not appropriate to allocate to a business segment or product line.

CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF

12 Months Ended

OPERATIONS Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010

(Parenthetical) (USD \$)

Income Statement [Abstract]

Share Based Compensation \$ 97,000 \$ 254,000

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

12 Months Ended **Dec. 31, 2011**

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 3. SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S GAAP") and in accordance with Regulation S-X of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). All material inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation, and certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of a sale arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed and determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. The Company records provisions against revenue for billing adjustments, which are based upon estimates derived from factors that include, but are not limited to, historical results, analysis of credits issued and current economic trends. The provisions for revenue adjustments are recorded as a reduction of revenue when incurred.

The Company's revenue is primarily derived from usage fees charged to carriers and corporations that terminate voice or data traffic over the Company's network, and from the monthly recurring fees charged to customers that purchase the Company's corporate products and services.

Variable revenue is earned based on the length of a call, as measured by the number of minutes of duration. It is recognized upon completion of the call, and is adjusted to reflect the Company's allowance for billing adjustments. Revenue for each customer is calculated from information received through the Company's network switches. The Company's customized software tracks the information from the switch and analyzes the call detail records against stored detailed information about revenue rates. This software provides the Company with the ability to complete a timely and accurate analysis of revenue earned in a period. The Company believes that the nature of this process is such that recorded revenues are unlikely to be revised in future periods.

Fixed revenue is earned from monthly recurring services provided to the customer, for which the charges are contracted for over a specified period of time. Revenue recognition commences after the provisioning, testing and acceptance of the service by the customer. The recurring customer charges continue until the expiration of the contract, or until cancellation of the service by the customer. To the extent that payments received from a customer are related to a future period, the payment is recorded as deferred revenue until the service is provided or the usage occurs.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, the Company evaluates accounts receivable and records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the Company's history of past write-offs, collections experience and current credit conditions. Specific customer accounts are written off as uncollectible when collection efforts have been exhausted and payments are not expected to be received.

The Company has an agreement to sell certain of its accounts receivable under an arrangement with a third party (see note 4). These transactions qualify as sales of financial assets under the criteria outlined Accounting Standards Codification Topic ("ASC") 860, *Transfers and Servicing*, in that the rights, title and interest to the receivables are transferred. As a result, the Company accounts for the sales of its accounts receivable by derecognizing them from its consolidated balance sheet as of the date of sale and recording a loss on sale for the difference between the book value of the receivables sold and their respective purchase price.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues is comprised primarily of costs incurred from other domestic and international communications carriers to originate, transport, and terminate voice calls for the Company's carrier and corporate customers. The majority of the Company's cost of revenues is thus variable, based upon the number of minutes actually used by the Company's customers and the destinations they are calling. Call activity is tracked and analyzed with customized software that analyzes the traffic flowing through the Company's network switches. During each period, the call activity is analyzed and an accrual is recorded for the revenues associated with minutes not yet invoiced. This cost accrual is calculated using minutes from the system and the variable cost of revenue based upon predetermined contractual rates.

Fixed expenses reflect the costs associated with connectivity between the Company's network infrastructure, including its New York switching facility, and certain large carrier customers and vendors. They also include the cost of fiber optic transmission facilities used to connect the Company's switching facility to certain international destinations. In addition, fixed expenses include the monthly recurring charges associated with certain platform services purchased from other service providers, the monthly recurring costs associated with private line services for certain corporate customers and the cost of broadband Internet access used to provide service to both carrier and corporate customers.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets and liabilities approximate their fair value presented in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, due to their short maturities.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill Impairment Testing

Intangible assets represent trade names and trademarks. In determining fair value, the Company uses standard analytical approaches to business enterprise valuation ("BEV"), such as the market comparable approach and the income approach. The market comparable approach is based on comparisons of the subject company to similar companies engaged in an actual merger or acquisition or to public companies whose stocks are actively traded. The income approach involves estimating the present value of the subject asset's future cash flows by using projections of the cash flows that the asset is expected to generate, and discounting these cash flows at a given rate of return. Each of these BEV methodologies requires the use of management estimates and assumptions. Intangible assets consist primarily of the trade name and trademarks related to Efonica FZ, LLC ("Efonica"), which are being amortized using the straight-line method over their useful lives.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets, including intangible assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable. If an impairment indicator is present, the Company evaluates recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the projected undiscounted cash flows, the Company is required to estimate the fair value of the asset and recognize an impairment charge to the extent that the carrying value of the asset exceeds its estimated fair value. The Company recorded impairment charges related to its Efonica trademarks of approximately \$163,000 and \$19,000 in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Asset	Estimated Useful Lives
Network equipment	5 - 7 Years
Furniture and fixtures	3 - 7 Years
Computer equipment and software	3 - 5 Years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the term of the associated lease. Maintenance and repairs are recorded as a period expense, while betterments and improvements are capitalized.

Advertising and Marketing

Advertising and marketing expense includes cost for promotional materials for the marketing of the Company's corporate products and services, as well as for public relations.

Income Taxes

The Company complies with accounting and reporting requirements with respect to accounting for income taxes, which require an asset and liability approach to financial accounting and reporting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed for temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities that will result in future taxable or deductible amounts, based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established to reduce deferred income tax assets when the Company determines it is more like than not that it will fail to generate sufficient taxable income to be able to utilize the deferred tax assets.

U.S. GAAP requires the Company to determine whether a tax position of the Company is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit to be recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. De-recognition of a tax benefit previously recognized could result in the Company recording a tax liability that would reduce net assets. During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized no adjustments for uncertain tax positions.

The Company is subject to income tax examinations by major taxing authorities for all tax years since 2008 and may be subject to review and adjustment at a later date based on factors including, but not limited to, on-going analyses of and changes to tax laws, regulations and interpretations thereof.

Foreign Currency Transaction

The Company's subsidiaries have in the past and may in the future enter into foreign currency transactions. Any conversion gains or losses resulting from these foreign currency transactions are included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Earnings (Loss) per Share

The Company complies with the accounting and disclosure requirements regarding earnings per share. Basic loss per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the income of the Company. The following securities were excluded in the calculation of diluted loss per share because their inclusion would be antidilutive:

	2011	2010
Warrants	47,615,186	42,171,097
Stock options	6,634,261	5,722,375
Convertible preferred stock	7,021,512	8,395,108
	61,270,959	56,288,580

The net loss per common share calculation includes a provision for preferred stock dividends in the amount of \$470,175 and \$583,600 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. However, no cash dividend had been declared by the board of directors for any of the years presented.

Discontinued Operations

The Company classifies a business component that either has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale as a discontinued operation if the cash flow of the component has been or will be eliminated from ongoing operations and the Company will no longer have any significant continuing involvement in the component. The results of operations of the discontinued component through the date of disposition, including any gains or losses on disposition, are aggregated and presented in the consolidated statement of operations as gain (loss) on discontinued operations. See note 9 for additional information regarding discontinued operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation by recognizing the fair value of compensation cost for all stock and stock-based awards over the service period (generally equal to the vesting period). Compensation cost is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of the awards at the grant date. An offsetting increase to stockholders' equity is recorded equal to the amount of the compensation expense charge.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of approximately \$97,000 and \$254,000, respectively. These amounts, which are included in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, have been reduced for estimated forfeitures. When estimating forfeitures, the Company considered historical forfeiture rates as well as ongoing trends for actual option forfeiture.

The Company calculated the fair value of each common stock option grant on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model method with the following assumptions:

	2011	2010
Dividend yield	0.00%	0.00%
Stock volatility	150.98%	136.75%
Average Risk-free interest rate	1.83%	2.26%
Average option term (years)	3-4	3-4

Recently Adopted and Issued Accounting Pronouncements

During the years ended 2011 and 2010, there were no new accounting pronouncements adopted by the Company that had a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. Management does not believe there are any recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting pronouncements, if current adopted, that would have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could be affected by those estimates.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

TRANSACTIONS

Notes to Financial

Statements

Notes to Financial
Statements
Note 20. RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the financing transactions discussed in notes 11 and 12, on March 29, 2011 the Company entered into a Desk Space Use and Occupancy Agreement with an entity affiliated with Mr. Rosen and another of the Company's directors. Under the terms of the agreement, this affiliate utilizes a portion of the Company's leased office space in New York City for a fee of \$9,000 per month. The initial term of the agreement ran from April 15, 2011 to October 14, 2011, and the agreement continues to be in effect on a month to month basis. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had received \$45,000 of advance payments in connection with this agreement, which is reflected in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the Company's consolidated balance sheet. The Company believes that the fee it receives under this agreement is comparable to what it would receive had the agreement been entered into with an unrelated third party.

12 Months Ended

Dec. 31, 2011

INCOME TAXES

12 Months Ended Dec. 31, 2011

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 13. INCOME TAXES

Due to the operating losses incurred, the Company has no current income tax provision for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

	2011	2010
Deferred		
Federal	\$(1,416,000)	\$(1,820,000)
State		(2,000)
	(1,416,000)	(1,822,000)
Change in valuation allowance	1,416,000	1,822,000
	\$ -	\$ -

The following reconciles the Federal statutory tax rate to the effective income tax rate:

	2011	2010
	%	%
Federal statutory rate	(34.0)	(34.0)
State net of federal tax	-	(0.4)
Other	2.2	-
Change in valuation allowance	31.8	34.4
Effective income tax rate		-

The components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liability consist of approximately the following at December 31, 2011 and 2010 respectively:

	2011	2010
Deferred tax assets		
Net operating losses	\$ 37,554,000	\$ 36,112,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts	81,000	118,000
Accrued liabilities and other	959,000	959,000
Property and equipment	4,737,000	4,726,000
	43,331,000	41,915,000
Deferred tax liability		
Property and equipment		
Deferred tax asset, net	43,331,000	41,915,000
Less valuation allowance	(43,331,000)	(41,915,000)
	\$ -	\$ -

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company has net operating loss carry forwards of approximately \$111.4 million and \$107.2 million, respectively, that may be applied against future taxable income, and which expire in various years from 2013 to 2031. Under the Tax Reform act of 1986, the amounts of and benefits from net operating loss carry forwards and credits may be impaired or limited in certain circumstances. Events which cause limitations in the amount of net operating losses that the Company may utilize in any one year include, but are not limited to, a cumulative ownership change of more than 50%, as defined, over a three year period. The amount of such limitation, if any has not been determined.

The Company maintains a full valuation allowance for its net deferred tax assets, as the Company's management has determined that it is more likely than not that the Company will not generate sufficient future taxable income to be able to utilize these deferred tax assets.